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Financial Highlights and Calendar
Hri 556k 2 IR Bl 55 H ik

Financial Highlights

BEEE
Year ended 31 March 2020 2019 Change
HE=A=1T—HItFE —EIERF —E—hEF S E
HK$000 HK$'000 %
FET FET B
(Restated)
(4 &E2)
Revenue PN 7,963,097 8,493,883 (6.2)
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIREFREA 73,634 569,907 (87.1)
of the Company FEAG 5 A
Total assets BELE 6,220,758 6,964,547 (10.7)
Net assets BEFE 2,671,312 3,179,854 (16.0)
Basic earnings per share R EA T F) HK$0.138 7T HK$0.98 7T (86.7)
Interim and final dividends per share GBI R AREIAR B HK19 cents Bl  HK84 cents /1l (77.4)
Net assets per share BREEFE HK$4.56 & 7T HK$5.43 87T (16.0)
Financial Calendar
% B
Announcement of Interim Results 26 November 2019
RHAZEE M —E-AF+—HAZ+RAH
Announcement of Annual Results 15 June 2020
PERERM —ETFRATHA
Dividends Interim dividend: HK19 cents per share paid on 27 December 2019
85\ RHIRR S, SRR 19 B R —E—hE+— A—++BER
Final dividend: Nil
REARR B, - i
Annual General Meeting (“AGM") 3 September 2020
BEREFERE —E-FTFNA=H
Closure of Register of Members 31 August 2020 to 3 September 2020 (both days inclusive)
BN EEBRP (for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)

“ECRFN\A=A-REZ_ZFAA=R (BERREREENRN)
(LAHETE & MR R A R IRENER)
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Chairman’s Message
FIERABY

The year under review marked a particularly challenging time for Hong
Kong's economy. A series of overlapping factors hit the market in rapid
succession, leaving a deep impact on the performance of all sectors across
the board.

A CHALLENGING YEAR

FY2019/20 began under the uncertainty of the Sino-US trade war, which
dampened consumer confidence and caused them to become more cost-
conscious. Hong Kong subsequently experienced a weak and unstable
market for months, accompanied by some losses of operating days, which
had a direct effect on revenue. Although the impact of these events was
reflected in the interim results, the Group made strong efforts to protect
margins by renegotiating rents and rationalising store networks. | must
thank the management team for coming together under these difficult
circumstances to rally together and face the challenges of the day.

However in January 2020, it became readily apparent that the coronavirus
outbreak was on its way to becoming a global pandemic. Although travel
restrictions and social distancing measures effectively flattened the curve
of infections, they also seriously impacted several sectors of the economy —
including the food and beverage industry.

The Group's quick service restaurant business was most impacted in terms
of scale, and the casual dining business was hit particularly hard as demand
evaporated — especially during the normally peak weekends and dinnertime
hours — as consumers stayed in the safety of their homes. Institutional
catering was also impacted, as suspension of visitors at hospitals decreased
traffic in canteens. At the same time, months of school closures wiped out
demand for the school lunch catering business, with a return to normal
operations dependent on the resumption of classes in Hong Kong.

Our business in Mainland China delivered relatively stronger results until the
COVID-19 outbreak, as the market was unaffected by the weak sentiment
that impacted Hong Kong. Our operations developed strong momentum
in good locations, and increased the number of stores during the year.
Although the economy was not immune to the effects of the coronavirus
lockdown, initially strict social distancing measures have paved the way for
an orderly return to business in China, sustainably supported by domestic
consumption.
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EVOLVING FOR THE FUTURE

With the pandemic still raging around the world as | write this message, the
outlook for the future remains under the control of external factors. Once
the pandemic is under control, | believe Hong Kong — and the world as a
whole — will need to adapt to a new business paradigm. The coronavirus
outbreak will force a re-shuffle of the way we conduct and operate, as
businesses around the globe adapt to the new market landscape.

Already, the Group is proactively reviewing lease agreements with landlords
to optimise our cost structure for the future. With the Group’s strong, 50-year
reputation and our position as one of Hong Kong’s leading listed catering groups,
landlords have been quite willing to work with us as we seek new equilibrium in
our rent structures. At the same time, we have been looking at the most effective
methods to maximise labour efficiency. As a result, we are introducing advanced
technology that will not only improve staff productivity, but also enhance the
working environment and job satisfaction of our employees.

Another important piece to consider is the way we interact with customers
across the Group. Part of our efforts are educational, such as helping
customers adjust to the new dynamics of social interaction — from self-
service ordering kiosks in stores to increased emphasis on online ordering
and home delivery services.

At the same time, we are making internal adjustments to our operations
by fine-tuning dishes and updating menus to optimise meals for delivery.
Anticipating a shift from in-restaurant dining to a broader mix of in-
store and delivery options, our focus on technology, efficiency and cost
effectiveness will only intensify going forward.

| am extremely proud of the calm and insightful response of the Group’s
management team under extraordinary circumstances. They have faced a
remarkably challenging year with courage, poise and conviction. Although external
events are beyond anyone’s control, | am confident the strength and capability
of our management team will be the most important factors in returning to
sustainable growth when prevailing health concerns have been addressed.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

In closing, | must thank our Board of Directors, business partners, staff,
investors and customers for their continued dedication, loyalty and support.
I would also like to convey my special thanks to our employees working in
institutional catering — your courageous efforts to keep our medical staff
and patients fed during these challenging times provide direct support for
Hong Kong's relief efforts.

Despite the dark clouds currently hovering over the global economy, |
remain resolutely positive about the Group’s long-term prospects. People
will always need to eat!

The Group's focus on providing tasty, nutritious and high-value meals has
embedded our business into the everyday lives of our customers. Looking
forward, | believe we have the opportunity to adapt our business to the
new market environment — taking leadership in providing safe environments
for our customers to eat, as well as healthy, nutritious dishes and menus
designed to boost the overall health of our diners.

As long as we remain open minded and market driven, | believe our

business will continue to evolve and thrive with the people of Hong Kong —
just as we have done for the past 50 years.

Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2020
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Business Highlights
FRIRE

o The Group’s revenue for the year amounted to HK$7,963.1 o
million, a 6.2% decrease compared to the previous financial year.
Profit attributable to shareholders declined 87.1% to HK$73.6
million. Performance across the Group's businesses further
declined in the second half of the year with deficit recorded in
the fourth quarter during the COVID-19 outbreak.

o To combat the challenges, our quick service restaurant business o
in Hong Kong took strong actions to control operating costs
including manpower and rental expenses, and adapt its business
strategies and operations whilst consumption behaviour shifted
to accommodate social distancing trends.

o The casual dining business was severely hit by the much o
weakened demand. The division responded actively with
manpower deployment, productivity enhancement and business
consolidation.

o The Mainland China business achieved encouraging performance o
with strong network expansion until the COVID-19 outbreak.
The Group is confident of its business growth when the market
situation recovers.

o The Group would remain resilient to the fast changing operating o
environment and continue to apply stringent cost control
measures to safeguard profit.

o In view of the operating results for the year and to preserve J
healthy cash flow, the Board does not recommend a final
dividend for the year (FY2018/19: HK65 cents per share). An
interim dividend of HK19 cents per share was paid during the
year, representing a dividend payout ratio of 151.1% for the year.

EEAFEHEWAT I THEESIT
BEFETEG6.2% IR EME TR
871%ZE73.6 BEEBIL - FEMBRER
THFHE—FTE TRENFEEH
TR Z BRI RS ESIE -

REMKE - FEEREKREHRIR
hEmEGFADEREEES S EEK
AR W BRI R 2B AR
RIFH BB S M R BER -

PRIEE SRR TS 2R3 B 7 SR BRI T X 21 8%
BITE  CRNSEHFRADER - =
THTHEENRBEER -

EPIW%%WE@%EE%%E’I%&%%EU&
BoANERE DERKRERLRE - £E
REZERBRMSRELDELERAR
B -

S EGIERR S B2 H S BIRE T RITE
R - HEEREBURIESI R A ARERE

%#Kﬁﬁ%%u&ﬁﬁhﬁhmfﬁi
//m EERBHETRBEAEERBKE

2N\ —NEE 6581l)- Eﬁq
JE?*EPEIHHQ,_#me B 2FREXR
A151.1% ©

Financial Performance — Net Profit & Earnings per Share
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CAFE DE CORAL
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Café de Coral Group Key Strategic Businesses
ARREEE T ERMER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

22 505m R 50

yilfr

INTRODUCTION AND HIGHLIGHTS

The year under review was a period of unprecedented challenges in the
external environment. The Group recorded a decline in revenue and a
significant drop in profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Months of weak market sentiment in Hong Kong had a significant impact
on revenue, which were reflected in a 34.5% decline in the Group’s profit
attributable to shareholders at the interim period. Although recovery was
initially expected during the second half of the year, this market weakness
continued into the third quarter. All business segments in Hong Kong —
quick service restaurant (QSR), casual dining and institutional catering —
as well as in Mainland China were even more severely impacted by the
outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") since early 2020,
causing the Group’s profit to decline deeper to the extent that a deficit was
recorded in the fourth quarter of the year.

In addition, the Group’s results were also impacted by the fact that the
Group adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” retrospectively this financial year and
recorded an impairment loss of right-of-use assets of HK$40.6 million. A
fair value loss of investment properties of HK$42.4 million was recorded,
as compared to a gain of HK$19.8 million for the prior reporting year.
Under the influence of all the above-mentioned factors, the Group’s profit
attributable to shareholders dropped by 87.1% as compared to last year.

To address the situation at hand since the second quarter, the Group took
proactive measures to tighten operational expenses including manpower
and productivity management, as well as rental re-negotiation. The business
actively protected margins as consumption patterns shifted in response
to social distancing regulations by promoting takeaway concepts and
offering home delivery services in partnership with third-party food delivery
platforms.

The Group's Mainland operations delivered relatively strong performance
until the COVID-19 outbreak, with network expansion accelerating
accordingly. Although the Mainland government’s strict COVID-19 response
in January 2020 led to restriction of operations at most restaurants, social
distancing measures are being gradually loosened as of March.
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The resolution of current global health issues remains uncertain — as well as the
government’s response to the changing situation, which impacts consumer
behaviour. Taking a prudent response, the Group is stringently managing
working capital to ensure healthy cash flow and a strong cash position, which
are vital to weathering the currently difficult operating environment. We will
continue to closely monitor market conditions and focus on effective cost
control and steering our business strategies so as to safeguard shareholders’
investments and prepare for a solid return to sustainable growth.

RESULTS OVERVIEW

The Group has retrospectively adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” with effect from
1 April 2019 and restated prior year comparatives. Right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities have been recognised for all leases, except for short-term and
low-value leases. Depreciation of right-of-use assets and finance cost on
lease liabilities have been recognised accordingly in the consolidated income
statement. During the year, an impairment loss of right-of-use assets of
HK$40.6 million was recorded. In addition, a fair value loss of investment
properties of HK$42.4 million was recorded during the year, as compared
to a fair value gain of HK$19.8 million for the prior reporting year. Also, a
subsidy of HK$57.2 million (FY2018/19: nil) was granted this year by The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR
Government”) under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue decreased by
6.2% to HK$7,963.1 million (FY2018/19: HK$8,493.9 million). Revenue by
business division is set out below:

N

HE-_ZTZ-_ZTF=A=1+—RHILtEE £E8K
AR 62%E7963.1EBBT(ZE— N
—NFE :84939BHEET) - EEWAKRE
BEET -

FY2019/20 FY2018/19
—E-h=% —=-)\/—h Change
£E FE HE)
HK$'m HK$’'m %
BEETT B2 B7L

Hong Kong o

QSR and Institutional Catering RRERMBIBENR 5,938.8 6,264.4 (5.2)

Casual Dining NGRS/ 779.2 905.8 (14.0)

Others* HAth 155.1 171.8 (9.7)

Subtotal INEF 6,873.1 7,342.0 (6.4)
Mainland China FEIR it 1,090.0 1,151.9 (5.4)
Group £ 7,963.1 8,493.9 (6.2)

*  Represents mainly income from food processing and distribution as well as rental income

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin decreased to 9.2% (FY2018/19: 14.4%). Although
stringent cost control measures had been implemented, the reduction of
cost of sales was insufficient to outweigh the negative impact from decline
in revenue as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 8.1% to HK$481.4 million (FY2018/19:
HK$445.5 million), mainly due to increase of share based compensation
expenses to HK$23.8 million (FY2018/19: a gain of HK$1.2 million) as no
performance shares awarded had been vested due to non-attainment of
vesting targets in the prior reporting year.
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Key Costs

The breakdown of major expenses is set out below:

Cost of raw materials RATR R B EE AR
and packing

Staff cost ALK

Rental costs* SR *

EERAR
EEHIHIIMT

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=t—-BHLEE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF

HK$’m % of revenue HK$’m % of revenue
BEETT WAIEEE (%) B2 WA (%)

(Restated)

C=27))
2,258.2 28.4 2,334.8 27.5
2,696.4 33.9 2,667.4 31.4
1,045.0 13.1 1,049.4 12.4

* Includes rental related depreciation in right-of-use assets and finance costs of lease liabilities as

well as rental costs of short-term lease and low-value leases and turnover rent

Other Income and Other (Losses)/Gains, Net

Other losses increased by HK$58.2 million, mainly due to a fair value
loss of investment properties of HK$42.4 million (FY2018/19: a gain of
HK$19.8 million), impairment loss of right-of-use assets of HK$40.6 million
(FY2018/19: nil) and an increase of government subsidies to HK$60.3
million (FY2018/19: HK$1 million). A subsidy of HK$57.2 million (FY2018/19:
nil) was granted this year by HKSAR Government under the Anti-Epidemic

Fund.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by 68.9% to HK$39.9 million (FY2018/19:

HK$128.5 million).

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

The Group’s profit attributable to equity holders decreased 87.1% to
HK$73.6 million (FY2018/19: HK$569.9 million), primarily due to decline
in revenue arising from poor market conditions in Hong Kong and the

outbreak of COVID-19 in the fourth quarter.
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Segment Results

Hong Kong segment results decreased 43.2% to HK$491.5 million
(FY2018/19: HK$866.0 million), mainly due to decline in revenue as a result
of weak market sentiment and the outbreak of COVID-19. Mainland China
results decreased 51.3% to HK$77.3 million (FY2018/19: HK$158.9 million),
mainly due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and RMB depreciation.

Basic Earnings Per Share
The Group’s basic earnings per share decreased 86.7% to HK$0.13
(FY2018/19: HK$0.98).

Dividend

Considering the operating results for the year and to ensure healthy
cash flow, the Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
(FY2018/19: HK65 cents per share). An interim dividend of HK19 cents
per share was paid during the year, representing a dividend payout ratio of
151.1% for the year.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS
QSR and Institutional Catering

The Group’s QSR and institutional catering businesses faced a tough year,
with dual impact from weak market sentiment in Hong Kong as well as
the disruption brought by the COVID-19 outbreak. As a result, revenue
decreased by 5.2% to HK$5,938.8 million (FY2018/19: HK$6,264.4 million).
The Group’s QSR and institutional catering business contributed 74.6% of
the Group’s total revenue for FY2019/20, and had a total of 294 outlets as
at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: 298).

During the year under review the QSR businesses experienced negative
same store sales growth of 6% and 7%, respectively, at Café de Coral
fast food and Super Super Congee & Noodles. Performance during the
first half of the financial year was impacted by weak market sentiment in
Hong Kong, marked by slower traffic and demand. Taking action to protect
revenue and market share, the business adjusted its marketing focus from
signature dish campaigns featuring sizzling plates to more value-oriented
early-bird hotpot and dinner offers, as well as ad hoc lunch and tea specials.
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Since the second quarter, the QSR business has tightened operational
expenses by proactively managing manpower, productivity and rental re-
negotiation. Nevertheless, the weak market sentiment continued into
the second half of the year, further dampening demand. The outbreak
of COVID-19 in the fourth quarter created additional significant impact
on revenue as government-mandated social distancing measures further
weakened consumer demand.

In addition to the strong actions on cost control measures for rent,
manpower and other operating expenses put in place since the second
quarter, the business adapted as consumption patterns changed in response
to social distancing regulations by actively promoting takeaway concepts
including value-oriented family dinner meal sets and express takeaway
service for selected menu items. Home delivery services are also being
offered in partnership with third-party food delivery platforms.

At the same time, the business is accelerating implementation of consumer-
side technology — such as mobile ordering apps and online platforms for
our Club 100 members — as well as operations-side improvements such
as ordering kiosks, Kitchen Video System and QR codes to drive sales and
productivity.

BRE-FENUR - BREREBC MEREERH
X BREEANERMEES  WEHHEZ
BEER - A THEFOMHERAFER
599 E—TITBEFER - HIEMARBERENF
EIR% - BUTHEZ Bhe R R BB RS 1
E—THEEEENT R REBBRATKRE

ZEBBRTEEF_FTERDHEES  ANE
IR Ne ELA 248 R S RO B ANEE Il FE A S - MRS
HEIEERMS - ERELHBERERTE
ELEERMBFRINERS - XRE=TTIE
RIEF &/ FREINERERY - UEERRF
it SRR RER I M B AR BERA -

BRI RPEMREBREREEEE
- WM Club 1008 B FHEEEARER
R LEFE - RN SCE L EBEARHY
/A EREMEER  REGRERREGR=
WS - MRS HEREET °

AREEEFR AR *2019/20 Fii

15



Café de Coral fast food opened 7 new outlets, and operated a network of
162 shops at year end (31 March 2019: 162). The Super Super Congee
& Noodles brand opened 6 new shops, ending the financial year with 45
stores (31 March 2019: 49). Although active network expansion has been
postponed during the second half of the year, the Group remains open to
considering promising locations at good terms, and will explore attractive
opportunities as they arise.

Asia Pacific Catering and Luncheon Star, the Group’s institutional
catering brands, faced major challenges during the year. Although Asia
Pacific Catering gained 7 new operating units and ended the year with
87 operating units (31 March 2019: 87), the closure of universities and the
Institutes of Vocational Education (IVE) from mid-November 2019 to January
2020, and from Chinese New Year onwards due to COVID-19 had a major
impact on revenue. Traffic at hospital outlets was reduced as visitors were
barred from hospitals as part of social distancing measures to prevent the
spread of disease. Luncheon Star also lost revenue as all schools in Hong
Kong were suspended after Chinese New Year. The Group is exploring new
opportunities for these businesses under the current environment, and
remains confident in their future prospects once the COVID-19 epidemic is
under control.

Casual Dining

Overall revenue from the casual dining business decreased by 14.0% during
the year to HK$779.2 million (FY2018/19: HK$905.8 million). The division
operated 62 shops at the end of the year (31 March 2019: 60).
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Facing weak market conditions compounded by the COVID-19 outbreak,
the casual dining business took an array of actions to adapt to the
challenging business landscape — including flexible operating hours,
temporary store closures, rental re-negotiations, productivity tracking and
manpower redeployment, as well as consolidation of underperforming
brands and shops.

Appealing to price-sensitive consumers, the business offered special value
meal sets and promotional offers for both dine-in and takeaway orders,
as well as free online delivery service through third-party food delivery
platforms and VIP incentive programmes.

The Group’s Chinese cuisine brands, Shanghai Lao Lao and Mixian
Sense, opened 2 and 4 outlets, respectively, during the year — ending
the year with 13 and 20 shops, respectively (31 March 2019: 12 and 17,
respectively). With a better understanding of the brand characteristics
and operating model, Shanghai Lao Lao continued to focus on offering
authentic seasonal dishes and menus. Mixian Sense refreshed its
positioning to become more of a fast-casual restaurant featuring reasonable
prices, attractive menus and reliable quality.

The Spaghetti House and Oliver’s Super Sandwiches, the Group’s non-
Chinese cuisine brands, opened 3 and 4 new outlets, respectively, during
the year — and operated 8 and 16 shops, respectively, at year end (31 March
2019: 7 and 13, respectively). The Spaghetti House continued efforts to
build its brand as a preferred “family restaurant”, while Oliver’s Super
Sandwiches revamped branding programme yielded sales growth in
signature products in all key categories.
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The year under review represented a period of consolidation for the casual
dining business. Seeking to maximise efficiency, a consultant was engaged
to explore opportunities for productivity enhancement in workflow and
manpower resources deployment.

The Group continued to fine-tune the business models of its franchised
brands, while exploring potential for future scalability.

Mainland China

Revenue from Mainland China decreased by 5.4% to HK$1,090.0 million
(FY2018/19: HK$1,151.9 million), in spite of a 4% decrease in Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollars as compared to last year.

The Southern China fast food business delivered strong performance despite
high inflation in food costs until the outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020.
The business recorded a 1.5% decrease in revenue to RMB921.3 million,
with negative same store sales growth of 5%.

Up to December 2019, the division’s key business strategies proved
successful and were delivering encouraging results with sales growth across
all stores and good profitability thanks to successful product campaigns,
Online-to-Offline delivery and increased pace of new store openings.
A successful sizzling plate product campaign drove incremental sales
and transaction volumes, while a company-wide “Building on Quality”
programme successfully enhanced total quality management and culture,
driving overall sales growth and customer loyalty.

However with the COVID-19 outbreak, most restaurants’ services were
restricted in February and March 2020 in line with government policies —
causing a significant drop in sales revenue for the industry as a whole. It is
expected that the market will require some time to recover to normal levels
once the pandemic is under control, although consumer sentiment and
future behaviour may be significantly altered by social distancing measures.

At the end of the financial year, the Group operated 114 stores in Mainland
China (31 March 2019: 107). With strong confidence in the market and
the potential for business growth, the Group opened 14 new shops during
the year, though our network expansion plans were interrupted by the
COVID-19 outbreak in January 2020. New store openings will be resumed
at a cautious pace during the first half of the new financial year, aiming to
return to rapid growth as the market situation improves.
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FROM BUSINESS CONTINUITY TO BUSINESS
EVOLUTION

In battling COVID-19, the Group has identified two distinct goals:
safeguarding lives vs. safeguarding livelihoods. Each goal cannot exist without
the other — which underscores the need for a balanced, compassionate and
rational response to the current situation. Applying this philosophy to our
business, we are actively pursuing a two-pronged development strategy that
addresses both lives and livelihoods in the post-pandemic world.

Refining our Brand

By successfully adapting to the new market environment, the Group has
an opportunity to demonstrate its leadership in both the industry and the
community.

Taking solid steps to protect the lives of our staff and customers, the
Group has introduced changes to our operating procedures and restaurant
facilities. In addition to heightened emphasis on cleanliness, lower-density
seating environments, safety shields between tables and temperature
screening checks have been put in place across shops. The Group is also
exploring new opportunities in health — looking beyond hygiene and safety
in food preparation, transportation and delivery to include a broader range

of considerations including the nutritional benefits of our dishes and menus.

The Group is also safeguarding livelihoods by aggressively adapting our
business to meet the new demands of the market environment. Adapting
to changing consumer preferences, we are applying advanced technology
such as mobile and online ordering for maximum customer convenience
with minimum contact risk. For customers wishing to avoid crowds, the
Group is introducing express takeaway counters for online orders, which will
eliminate the need to wait in line in the store. Other new technologies are
also being explored to fine-tune business models optimised for the future
operating environment.

Long term, we believe this dedication to protecting our customers, staff,
investors and business partners will enhance the Group’s hard-earned
reputation as a responsible corporate citizen and a pillar of everyday life in
Hong Kong that has grown with the community, through good times and
bad, for more than 50 years.
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Assessing our Network
As of 31 March 2020, the Group had a network of 356 stores in Hong
Kong and 114 stores in Mainland China.

During this challenging time, the Group is working closely with landlords
to restructure leases while striving for rental concessions. Although a
cautious approach is prudent, the current depressed market environment
should present opportunities to occupy attractive locations at favourable
rental agreements — and the Group will explore any premium locations that
become available.

In the Mainland China market, the Group anticipates an orderly return to
strong network growth once the pandemic is under control. It is currently
adopting a cautious attitude as the situation continues to evolve, and will
return to expansion mode as the operating environment stabilises.

Securing our Supply Chain

Prior to the virus outbreak, the year under review was already themed as
“Building on Quality” — underlining our commitment and continuous efforts
to uphold food quality and safety.

With a strong and robust supply chain proving critical under the current
environment, the focus of the Group’s global sourcing and direct
procurement strategy is to minimise any potential disruption to the business.
This advance planning allowed the Group to take immediate action to
ensure stable supply when the pandemic struck.

Maximising Manpower

Recognising that our people are the driving force behind our business,
the Group has placed high emphasis on redeploying manpower during
times of shifting demand, and training staff to take full advantage of new
technology to improve productivity, efficiency and staff satisfaction.

We have also introduced new measures to protect the health and safety
of our frontline staff, and the management team would like to convey its
thanks to the Group’s frontline staff for their courage and dedication in
serving Hong Kong's community during these challenging times.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2020, the Group had a workforce of 18,832 employees (31
March 2019: 19,110).

Staff training during the year under review mainly focused on “Quality,
Service and Cleanliness” with our continuous dedication to improve
customer experience. Our in-house training programmes, recognised
by the Qualification Framework (QF) Scheme of the Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic & Vocational Qualifications, were further
enhanced with the launch of our new Continuous Leadership Development
Program — designed to create a steady pipeline of talent for future growth.

The Group reviews internal equity and market benchmarking on pay level
regularly. Remuneration at all staff levels is based on individual experience,
qualifications, duties and responsibilities. Qualified employees are entitled to
participate in profit sharing bonus and performance incentive programmes
as well as share award and share option schemes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

During the year under review, the Group’s financial position remained
healthy. As of 31 March 2020, the Group recorded net cash of
approximately HK$345 million, with HK$786 million in available unutilised
banking facilities. The Group’s current ratio as of the same date was 0.5 (31
March 2019: 0.8), and the cash ratio was 0.2 (31 March 2019: 0.5). The
Group had no external borrowing (31 March 2019: nil) and a nil gearing
ratio (ratio of total borrowing less cash and cash equivalents to total equity)
(31 March 2019: nil).

The Group’s return on equity for FY2019/20 was 3% (FY2018/19: 18%),
and return on assets was 1% (FY2018/19: 8%).

Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year under review, the Group's capital expenditure (excluding
right-of-use assets) was HK$487 million (FY2018/19: HK$290 million). As
at 31 March 2020, the Group’s outstanding capital commitments were
HK$449 million (31 March 2019: HK$580 miillion).
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Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 March 2020, the Company provided guarantees of approximately
HK$945 million (31 March 2019: HK$915 million) to financial institutions in
connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. The Group had
no charge on assets as of 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: nil).

Financial Risk Management

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned revenue
and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
while those of our Mainland China businesses were in Renminbi. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group, but we will
remain vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to movements in relevant
currencies.

OUTLOOK

Although the outlook remains uncertain at the moment, and the challenges
of the COVID-19 situation are still continuing, the Group maintains a
cautious approach and is focused on refining its business strategies and
adapting its operations to thrive and evolve in this rapidly changing
environment.

It is becoming apparent that social distancing measures will affect
consumption behaviour and patterns — which will in turn modify our
revenue base. Anticipating a new business paradigm in the post-COVID-19
world, the Group is actively seeking new levels of equilibrium for operations
and customers to best adapt. At the same time, we will continue to exercise
tight cost controls on labour and rent, including lease restructuring.

Moving swiftly to address fast-changing consumer behaviour, the Group
has been taking proactive efforts to capitalise on new trends including
online and mobile ordering, and placed increased emphasis on takeaway
and delivery options in line with market demand. The active deployment of
new technology will drive innovation and development in both ordering and
fulfilment, thereby improving productivity and efficiency for the longer term.

Leveraging over 50 years of experience, the Group is confident in its ability
to weather the current hardships that we are facing — and to grow and
evolve with the community for many decades to come.
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Directors and Senior Management

BEBERGEREERAS

Non-executive Directors

Chairman

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 64, is the Chairman of the Company and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo joined the Group in 1982
and had been an Executive Director since 1990 until his re-designation as
a Non-executive Director in April 2016. He was the Managing Director of
the Company from December 1997 to March 2012 and the Chief Executive
Officer from April 2012 to March 2016. As Chairman, Mr Lo is responsible
for leading and managing the Board to ensure that the Board effectively
operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Mr Lo holds a Master’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr Lo is the brother of Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, and a relative of Mr Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of
whom are Directors of the Company. He is a director of Ardley Enterprises
(PTC) Limited and Victor Reach Investments Limited, each of which has
discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the provisions of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 67, joined the Group in 1982. Ms Lo has
been an Executive Director of the Company since 1990 except the period
from September 2016 to December 2017 which she was re-designated as
a Non-executive Director. She ceased to be an Executive Director in April
2019 and is currently a Non-executive Director. She has more than 35 years
of experience in the fast food industry. Ms Lo holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms Lo is the sister of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, and a relative of Mr Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all
of whom are Directors of the Company.
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Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 68, joined the Group in 1984 and
was appointed as a Director of the Company in 1988. Mr. Chan led the
Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and served as the Executive
Chairman from 1997 to 2012. He was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director in April 2012 and served as the Chairman of the Company
from April 2012 to March 2016. Mr Chan is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Having worked as a professional town planner
for various government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, Mr Chan has
considerable experience in planning and management. Mr Chan holds a
Degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.

Mr Chan is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing, a council member of the Hong Kong Management Association,
the Advisor of the Quality Tourism Services Association and an Adjunct
Professor of The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong.

In past years, Mr Chan was personally bestowed with the “The Stars of
Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”, the “Bauhinia Cup
Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the Year Awards”,
the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and “Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.

Mr Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Starlite
Holdings Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, Modern Dental Group Limited and Human Health
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Chan is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita,
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors
of the Company.
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Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 66, joined the Group in 1984 and
has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1997. Mr Hui
is currently a member of the Audit Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University in the United
Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael, BBS, JP, aged 62, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr Choi is a Director and Senior Vice-President
of Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. He has been in the real
estate industry for over 39 years with extensive knowledge and experience
in the real estate markets in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Currently,
he is the Vice-President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, a co-
opted member of Haven of Hope Christian Service and a member of Non-
subvented Service Governing Committee of Haven of Hope Christian
Service. Mr Choi graduated from the Business Management Department of
the Hong Kong Baptist College and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau.

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 70, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr Li is Chairman of IAM Family Office
Limited, a Hong Kong-based investment firm, and has extensive experience
in the fields of investment banking, merchant banking and capital
markets. He is a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
and an independent non-executive director of Kowloon Development
Company Limited and Pokfulam Development Company Limited. The
shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Li holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree of Science

in Civil Engineering from Brown University.
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Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, SBS, JP, aged 64, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is a Partner
of Kwok Yih & Chan, Solicitors. He is also qualified to practise as a solicitor
in Australia, England and Wales and Singapore. Mr Kwok is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA
Australia and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with Bachelor’s
Degrees in Economics and Laws respectively and a Master’s Degree in Laws.
He also obtained the Advanced Management Program Diploma from the
Harvard Business School. He has served regularly on Government boards
and committees. He is currently a member of the Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts of the Securities and Futures Commission and the Hospital
Governing Committee of the Prince of Wales Hospital. Previously, he served
as Chairman of the Transport Advisory Committee and Independent Police
Complaints Council, Convenor of the Disciplinary Appeals Committee
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Vice-Chairman of the
Consumer Coundil.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert, BBS, aged 69, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since January 2013 and is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr Au is the Special Advisor of BDO
Limited, the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited. He has
more than 40 years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr Au
was the President of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants from December 2007 to December 2008. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants..

Mr Au is currently an independent non-executive director, the Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of AAC Technologies Holdings Inc., the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Executive Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo joined
the Group in 1996 and has been an Executive Director since 1998. Mr Lo
was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2015 and has been the Chief Executive Officer since April 2016.
Mr Lo has performed key functions within the Group and led various major
projects for the growth and development of the Group’s business and
operations. As the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr Lo leads the
overall management and strategic planning and development of the Group’s
businesses and operations. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic
Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough University of Technology,
a Master's Degree in Medical Physics from the University of Surrey, a
Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University of London and an
Honorary Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is currently a non-executive director and a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of Wandels Investment Limited,
Verdant Success Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each
of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 46, is an Executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Nomination Committee. He also serves as a director
of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo was a Non-executive Director
of the Company from 2010 until his re-designation as an Executive Director
in March 2016. Mr Lo is in charge of property and branch development,
project and facilities management, quantity surveying and business analysis
of the Group. He had served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager
(Food Manufacturing) of the Group during the period from November
2003 to June 2009. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts, specialist in
Economics from University of Toronto and an Executive Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of LBK Holding Corporation and
MMW Holding Corporation, each of which has discloseable interests in the
shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Senior Management

Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony, aged 49, joined the Group in February 2019
and is the Managing Director (Quick Service Restaurants Group) of the
Group. She also serves as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Leung resumes full responsibility and leadership in providing
strategic vision, leading operation management and developing long
term business direction of the Group’s quick service restaurant business
of Hong Kong region. She has over 25 years of experience in retail and
fast-moving consumer goods industries across Asia Pacific region. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms Leung held senior management positions with
leading multinational corporations with extensive experience in general
management, brand marketing as well as strategic business development.
Ms Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts majoring in Comparative
Literature & Psychology from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr Yang Bin, James, aged 49, joined the Group in February 2016 and is
the Managing Director (China) of the Group. He also serves as a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Yang is responsible for
strategic planning, business operation and market development of the
Group’s catering businesses in Mainland China and Macau. He has over
20 years of rich management experience gained from various international
corporations where he was responsible for leading corporate strategic
business development, formulating operation direction and expanding
business in Asia Pacific region. Mr Yang holds Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Kellogg Business School, Northwestern University and
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Mr Lam Ming Fung, David, aged 51, joined the Group in April 2015 and
is the Senior General Manager (Casual Dining) of the Group. He also serves
as a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lam is responsible
for leading the overall management and development of the specialty
restaurants and casual dining businesses in Hong Kong. He has extensive
experience in business management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lam
had worked for renowned organisation and international retail group
responsible for strategic business development, operation management,
marketing and product development and customer management. He holds
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Leicester.

Mr Ng Tsz Chiu, Ivan, aged 49, joined the Group in October 2013 and is
the General Manager (Supply Chain) of the Group. Mr Ng is responsible for
management and development of strategic procurement and supply chain
of the Group's operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as
overseeing operations of the Group’s central food processing centres. He
has extensive experience in procurement management and has worked for
leading retail and international product distribution groups where he was
responsible for various strategic commercial and technical procurements.
Mr Ng holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business from Queensland University of
Technology in Australia.

Mr Lim Hung Chun, Mike, aged 56, joined the Group in January 2011 as
Chief Financial Officer. He also serves as a director of most subsidiaries of
the Company. With extensive experience in general management, corporate
finance and financial control all gained from top management positions
held in renowned corporations and firms, Mr Lim is responsible for the
overall oversight of the Group’s financial planning and strategy as well as
headquarters management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lim held various
general management positions and directorships in listed and private
conglomerates with operations spanning key international markets since
1990. Mr Lim holds an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEREIBRS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and constantly strive
for a responsible and value-driven management focusing on safeguarding
and enhancing interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the Group.

Shareholders &
Stakeholders
BRREFDE

Sustainability &
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AFEER KL Board & Board
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BTZE®

People & Planning
ANEREIRE
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A SEE

Risk Management
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Compliance With Corporate Governance Code

Adhering to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code"”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), the Directors’ Handbook of
Corporate Governance adopted by the Board guides the Group’s corporate
governance framework and practices. For the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and
adopted the recommended best practices of the CG Code insofar as they
are relevant and practicable.

Key practices under the Group’s corporate governance framework are set
out in this report.
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Board of Directors

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board conducts periodically evaluation of its performance with a view
to enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and corporate governance. The last
Board evaluation was conducted by an external professional advisor in June
2018, with areas of improvement identified and implemented to strengthen
the Board’s operations.

Directors

The Board currently comprises ten members, including four Non-executive
Directors, four Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Biographies, including relationships among members of the Board are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of the Company’s
Annual Report 2019/20.
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The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive
Directors with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise contributing to the successful performance and development
of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties of care,
skill and diligence. In situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are
required, external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses. Comprehensive liability insurance
coverage is in place to provide protection to the Company, the Directors and
senior management.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in the charter adopted by
the Board (the “Board Charter”).

The Chairman, being a Non-executive Director, provides leadership for the
Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the
lead to encourage Directors to make active contribution to the Board’s
affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company
and is accountable to the Board. His main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies as
well as monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied background
and experiences. Through active participation in Board meetings and
serving on various Board Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and strategic decision-
making of the Group.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed during the year the independence of each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors based on the guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered them independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives including skills, professional experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age, as well as other attributes and strengths that are
required for the Company’s business from time to time. Board appointments
are made on a merit basis and candidates are considered against objective
selection criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Board has delegated the Nomination Committee to review the Board
Diversity Policy on a regular basis, make recommendations on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor
the progress on achieving the objectives.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted specific procedures for identifying, assessing and
nominating suitable candidates to the Board for appointment as a new
director of the Company in addition to the incumbents or to fill a vacancy.
Nomination to the Board shall be based on merit and consideration of
objective selection criteria developed by the Nomination Committee in light
of the needs and desires of the Board as well as the Company’s business
and strategies. Selected individuals shall be evaluated against the desired
criteria with consideration of the following factors:

o skills and knowledge

o related business/financial acumen and experience

o leadership and communication capabilities

o cultural background and personality

° integrity and reputation

o other commitments, including directorships in other listed companies
and public organisations

o independence criteria of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (applicable
for appointment of independent non-executive directors)

o other attributes and strengths, as appropriate
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), (i) any Director who is appointed
to fill a casual vacancy is subject to election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment; and (ii) all Directors should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-
election.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company have been appointed for a specific term subject to retirement by
rotation as required by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Development
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the operations, business
and governance policies of the Group. In addition, our external legal adviser
meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully aware of the
responsibilities as a director under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development is critical
for them to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive
from senior management and the Company Secretary regular updates and
presentations on developments to the Group’s business and changes to the
statutory and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors’ discharge
of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and briefing
sessions regularly for the Directors to help them keep abreast with the
Group’s business and operation as well as developments of regulatory and
compliance requirements.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous improvement
programmes held by external bodies at the expense of the Company. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their training record on
a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set out

ARRIBEEF2HINERBE R 2 HEER
sz WAKERBER - TAESHATEHA
ARERERE 2 EICE - FRESHFIL
EEFIE -

below:
Directors 2= Training Areas (o
$2 3| g D)
Non-executive Directors JEITESE
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman) BRI E(FE) a, b

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita EEBTL a, b
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BR¥EH S a, b
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FFREES A a, b
Independent Non-executive Directors B EMITES

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael EOEMREE a, b
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEESE a,b,cdfg
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry EllS e a,b,cdefgh
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert &M A& a, b
Executive Directors WITES

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer) BIEASL A (BEHITE) a,b,cd
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan EEASE a,b

Note: Training relating to (a) business development update of the Group; (b) business environment/
management; (c) corporate governance/risk management; (d) Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting; (e) legal or regulatory update; (f) banking/accounting/financial reporting;
(9) information technology and (h) political

The Board and Management

The Board Charter sets out the duties and powers of the Board as well as
the roles and responsibilities of the Directors, the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board.

The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders
regarding management of the Group in addition to those powers and
authorities conferred upon it under the Bye-laws. The role of the Board is to
provide overall strategic direction for the Group and effective oversight of
management. The Board Charter sets out a schedule of matters reserved to
the Board which mainly include the following:

o Approval of strategic and business plans and financial budget of the
Group;
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o Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,
Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

o Approval of significant transactions and investments and major
financial matters;

o Ensuring risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

e Approval of Company’s announcements, circulars and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports; and

o Appointment or removal of external auditor.

The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management Board
is headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members include all the
Executive Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and such other senior
executives of the Group as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and
agreed by the Board. When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, clear directions are given
as to the limits of the authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances
where management should report to the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board reviews
its delegation of responsibilities to the Management Board from time to
time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need of the Group and
its business. Principal functions that are delegated to the Management
Board include the following:

o Development and implementation of corporate strategy, business
plans and financial budgets;

o Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters within the
limit delegated by the Board;

o Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of risk management
and internal control;

o Development of human resources policies and succession planning of
executives; and
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o Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with sufficient
and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to the Group’s
business and financial performance.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board to discharge its
functions. Each Committee has specific written terms of reference which
sets out clearly the Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are published on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, including the management support and engagement of independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Committees report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations and maintain an effective
and constructive communication with the Board.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following five Directors
with majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny Non-executive Director and Chairman
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan Executive Director

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing at least
annually the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed

changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

o The structure, size and composition of the Board with due regard of
the Board Diversity Policy;,
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o Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors;

o Re-election of Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 September 2019; and

e Senior management succession plan.

In the annual review during the year, the Nomination Committee
considered the current structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board appropriate for leading and promoting the success of the Group’s
development.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following four
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and the specific
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management.
Remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to duties and responsibilities of the role, experience and
performance of the individuals as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration of Executive Directors is structured to align with the long-
term interest of the Company with significant proportion of remuneration
linked to corporate and individual performance.

Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were reviewed and considered and
recommendations were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Market benchmarking mechanism for review of Executive Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration package;
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P

e Remuneration package of Chairman, Executive Directors and senior e  IE - BITEZERAERERABZFHMET
management; and B R

RIBAR N R0 B2+ B T BRI 2

o Share award proposal under the Company’s Share Award Scheme.

et

Audit Committee BRZEES
The Audit Committee currently comprises the following five Directors with ~ BZZE € H NI AL ESMEK - TEKXE
majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors: RBIEITES -
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert Independent Non-executive Director Bk A BUIERTES

(Chairman of the Committee) (ZEZ2F/F)
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent Non-executive Director FEIEE S BUIERITES
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael Independent Non-executive Director ZOEMRE A B EMITES
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent Non-executive Director FEE 4 BUIERITES
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel Non-executive Director TR g FHITESR

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the financial EEZECXTEEREMARRZHBEER -
information of the Company and overseeing the financial reporting UREEMBERSGE - BT IERASEE
system, risk management and internal control systems as well as corporate R AT EEABLAE

governance functions.

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year when the ~ B|HZZE@NFRLETZNSH  FERLEE
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations ~ FHEZEIBEMEERRESBHIELES
were made to the Board where appropriate:

e Independence of the external auditor and engagement of external o  INEREEMZBUMRKHEREH:
auditor;

e External auditor's remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit ¢ SMNEERXBIETIR M HAZE N IR BURS 2 Hr
services; [

e Audit findings by external auditor and the related management o  SMNEZBE 2 BZER L EREMNIEED

responses as well as development in accounting standards and its JE - ARG ERZERREEARER 2
effects on the Group; 7
e Annual and interim results announcements and financial statements; o  ERFERPHEENERIBEEE
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o Internal audit plan, risk management and internal control performance
as well as effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

o Corporate governance practices, compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

o Changes in requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules;

e The Group’s continuing connected transactions; and

o Adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting as well as internal audit functions.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions with the
external auditor and external internal audit consultant respectively without
the presence of management.

Board and Board Committee Meetings

Regular Board and Board Committee meetings are scheduled a year ahead
to facilitate maximum attendance by the Directors. Formal notices of at
least 14 clear calendar days are given in respect of regular meetings. For
special Board or Board Committee meetings, reasonable notices are given.
Arrangement is in place to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda
for regular meetings.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at least three
clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decision reached, including any concern
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the meetings and kept by the Company Secretaries.
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During the year, the Board held four regular meetings at approximately ~— FR - EEFET T WA EHE® (HWEFTET
quarterly intervals for Directors to revisit and align views on the Group’s ~ —X) - EHEEE E =G BRI T AW EL
strategic directions. Directors’ attendance of the Board Meetings, Board ~ #E - SEEREE-_Z-_TF=HA=+—H
Committee Meetings, Annual General Meeting and other meetings I EERIT 7 EEZRER EETREZEE
delegated by the Board held during the year ended 31 March 2020 areset ~ € - BRREAFAS L EMBEEREESR
out below: HE LS H TN T -

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

EREE/BHEZEERY
Budget
Deliberation
Nomination Remuneration Audit Working Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Group General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
=R REZEE FMzEe ENZEE REEAIE RREE
g3 ] S S g3 A
Non-executive Directors SEHTESE
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny ERAEE 4/4 11 N/A TN N/A TNE R 11 11
(Chairman) (/)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEBUL 3/4 N/A TNEF N/A NEF N/A RN 171 7
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BAKEE 44 N/A TNEF 313 N/A i 1 1
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FRESE 4/4 N/A REF N/A RN 373 1 1
Independent Non-executive Directors By i {TES
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael EEREE 4/4 11 33 23 N/A N 1
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FHELE 4/4 1" 33 33 N/A RN "
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry FHELE 4/4 17 33 33 N/A NEf 7N
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BESELE 4/4 N/A REF N/A RN 373 N/A R 1
Executive Directors RNTEE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEREE 4/4 N/A @R N/A 1@ R N/A 1@ R n il
(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHTTE)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BEAKE 4/4 17 N/A T Ef N/A M Ef n 17N
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Group’s
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the reporting period.
The Board is aware that its responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval. Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor
A statement by the external auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2019/20.

The Company has adopted a policy on engagement of external auditor
for non-audit services. The external auditor may provide certain non-audit
services to the Group as permitted under the policy provided that the
external auditor’s independence of audit work shall not be impaired. The
Audit Committee reviews the nature, size and proportion of non-audit
service fees as to the total service fees of the external auditor on an annual
basis.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

GEEYSEE

B RS EE R
EEERREAEERUAEE 2HBRE -
AR B AN IE 2 BR 7K S [ 10 B 3 HA ) 2 R 765
ARIUA R A KRR REBMOMR  BFE K h
BE - RAEEERIZEE  RELHHARR
EATHRBZEMAREREIMBEER - AR
RBEVIMEATREZEN  EFRATHE
AR BW R SINERONRET -

EREERAEERRABTEAGRMER
A8 RREFTRRLTEEBIEZ I
R R AL RHE S AR © % B A A 1T
ADNFZBREBAR - SRS REME
— S &R -

SNEEAZ BRM
SNERZ BEM L S 2 BB BT E R 2 B RS
AR T 201920 F 3R 7 B AZBEN RS A o

ARRE RN —IRA R A SMNEZ BN R 1 3F
T BRHS 2 BOR » JNEAZ B Al FE BUR i/ 88
BRI L IR BARTS - T RER B IR M
REURBSR 2Bt - ERERE@RFRAIN
B RS A ERBIRSE AR 2 3FRH
RIS MEE ~ RRREEH -

REBFER » NRABNIZBEE B GES
sHER ST oI T -

Fee paid/payable

Type of services BRISESE e ERER
HK$'000

FET

Audit services ZEARTE 3,759
Non-audit services* IERZEARTE * 999
Total 4t 4,758

*  Include mainly advisory services on taxation and information system
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems is pivotal
to the fulfillment of the Group’s business objectives and its long-term
sustainable growth. The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks according to the Board's
risk appetite in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management and internal
control systems.

Risk Management Structure and Process

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
founded on internationally recognised standard and designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of
the Group and can provide reasonable, but no absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The systems are made of by two essential
features — the risk governance structure and risk management process.

Risk Governance Structure — The Group's risk governance structure
is based on the “3 lines of defence” model comprised of day-to-day
operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The enterprise risk management (“ERM") policy
formalised by the Group clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of
each of the multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, Audit
Committee, Management Board, department and operation heads as well
as Internal Audit.

Board
EER

1st Line of Defense: 2nd Line of Defense:

R\ R T I N BR B
MEBREZEREERABEE R TIERAR
SEEKERLREAFBER ZHERME -
EERAEBETHEMRIEEEBRAZRES
BEASESERRIN B S AEZARME
BREE  WHERAARIBRIMERSENE
M R ERERARE IR RS - UWRERRE
BRAKEZEE - Rt EFRFERNL
hEHE R B N ABPEE R o

s EERBRERF

ARRmlz Rk EE MR R G IR IR B R
AIEEREY - §REEEMIEHERASEE R E
PRER B IR Z AR - WA &R IR RET
SHIMBAHRRALERE - ZFRZFAMA
PRISER 2 BB A - Rl R B AR I
R EER

B EESEE — A EBEZERERRBIAN=
BRI BARER  BREATEFEERE
7 BB kARERARBIUIRE - AEED
RBHECXREREERR  BWMRAERBEAZ
EEmH(BRESR BZZEg BER &
FINEETEURANEES) EEBEZACKRE
£ o

Audit Committee

EREEE

3

3rd Line of Defense:

Risk Content and Risk Process and
Accountability Accountability
B FEEAR
RARARREE RBRBREREE

Department and operation heads
BPIREELE

— Day-to-day management control
and internal control measures
AEEREE R AT

Management Board chaired by CEO
HERITEFENERER

- Risk and compliance oversight
[\ Ko & 47 B B2

Risk Process and
Content Monitoring

BB
EBRER AR EE

Internal Audit
REBERET

- Independent assurance
B RTE
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The Audit Committee, delegated by the Board, provides oversight and T ZE8ehm=EERE FESH  HEABREE
review on risk management, financial reporting and internal control system. BTSN EPESIE R AR BEE KBl o

The Company’s Internal Audit team, co-sourced with external consultant, — ZANA A2 WEBERET/NME BB AL - BHNZER
is an independent function reporting directly to the Audit Committee. It ~ FIAAERRNEZEABZE ESER - NEFE
provides independent, objective, assurance and consulting services on risk ~ F/NEBLER EIE KA EE IR BT - B
management and internal control. B RE LB ARE o

Risk Management Process — The Group's ERM approach is a structured BB EZEF — AEBZ CERKEIRH T

mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising, BEBEHEBORP S - FEHR - T - T8

managing and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The risks B EIEAFF « BIE MERAEBAEY 2R

are categorised into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and % o RO HAKRKERR SERRE - KR

compliance risks. The key process of the Group’s ERM is illustrated below: B RERER ANEBCERBREE 2 FER
FERIATR ¢

RGN 0 e PO
Annual Review .
2 Risk Assessment
FER BB

Conduct annual review on the
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The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in our strategy development,
business planning and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously assesses and
manages its risk profile on a regular basis. The ERM system uses risk
indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks identified. Risk owners
are required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation plan promptly and
regular risk reports are presented to the Management Board and Audit
Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The key risks identified,
managed and monitored during the year included management succession,
brand management, business development, food safety, site acquisition
and retention as well as supply chain management. Action plans were
formulated and implemented during the year to address the areas of
concern effectively.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2020. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Heads of
key business units and functional departments are required to confirm the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of their
responsible areas during the year. The Board has received a confirmation
from the Management Board on the effectiveness of the systems. No
significant areas of concern have been identified and the Board considered
the systems effective and adequate.

During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity at all
times. A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation is in place
to provide guidance to our employees and business partners who may,
from time to time, need to raise issues relating to the Group in confidence
and to ensure that they can raise any matters of genuine concern, in the
knowledge that they will be taken seriously and that the matters will be
investigated appropriately and regarded as confidential.
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Under the Group's Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation,
employees and business partners may raise their concern by sending their
malpractice reports to the Head of Internal Audit who reports directly to the
Audit Committee on receipt and investigation of malpractice reports. For
malpractice reports concerning any member of the Management Board,
informants may make direct reports to the Chairman of Audit Committee.

Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of Directors of the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model Code
for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.

Inside Information

The Company takes seriously of its obligations under the Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules with respect
to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Group's Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines
and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Group is disseminated to the public in equal
and timely manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the Company’s Disclosure
Team comprising Executive Directors and members of senior management
have the overall delegated authority to decide whether the information
reported is inside information and requires disclosure and to refer the
subject matter to the Board for approval. Measures are in place to preserve
the confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that its recipients
recognise their obligations to maintain it confidential. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Communication is held regularly for
officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.
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Company Secretary

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also to the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on day-to-day duties
and responsibilities. Company Secretaries are responsible for supporting
and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretaries to ensure that Board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional training
requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.

Communication With Shareholders And
Shareholders’ Rights

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavours to enhance returns on shareholder investment
by way of, inter alia, distribution of regular and stable dividends. Guided
by the Dividend Policy adopted by the Board, the Company’s dividend
payout amount and frequency shall be based on the Group’s profit available
for distribution and shall make reference to historical payout ratios and
amounts to achieve consistency in dividend distribution. The Board shall take
into account all relevant circumstances when it decides on the Company’s
dividend distribution, including but not limited to, the Group’s business
performance, operating results, cash flow, working capital requirement and
business development plans as well as general market condition and other
internal and external factors that the Board may consider relevant. Dividend
payment shall normally be in the form of cash, unless the Board resolves
otherwise.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established its Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure proactive communication with Shareholders and keep Shareholders
informed of balanced and understandable information about the Company
in a factual and timely manner. The Policy also serves to govern the
Company’s open and regular dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers,
analysts and the media through effective corporate communication system
covering various communication channels including Shareholders’ meetings,
corporate’s publications and website, press and analyst conferences.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 September
2019, the Chairman of the Board and all other Board members, including
chairmen and representatives of the Board Committees as well as senior
management and the external auditor were present to communicate with
Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting on the proposed resolutions
were explained at the meeting by the Chairman. The Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, acted as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted and
the poll results were published on both the websites of the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not convene any
other Shareholders’ meeting during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company and put
forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
Company’s head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui
Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
make enquiries to the Board directly at general meetings.

Constitutional Documents

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During
the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no change to the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.

Investor Relations

Management of the Company meets with institutional investors, financial
analysts or media from time to time and provides updates on the business
progress and recent developments of the Company. The Company also
participates in investor summits or corporate days when appropriate, to
enhance communication with the investment community. Investors are
welcomed to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Department
at ir@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for the latest
information of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

EEBR[IkS

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in operation of quick service restaurants (“QSR”) and
institutional catering, casual dining chains, as well as food processing and
distribution in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group recoded decline in revenue and substantial decrease in profit
attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group’s
businesses in Hong Kong — QSR and institutional catering as well as casual
dining were severely impacted by the weak market sentiment during the
reporting year and the outbreak of COVID-19 since January 2020. Mainland
operations recorded strong performance with accelerated network
expansion until the COVID-19 outbreak. To combat the challenges, the
Group has taken stringent cost control measures and adapted its business
strategies and operations to safeguard profit and maintain healthy cash
flow. The “Management Discussion and Analysis” section in the Company’s
Annual Report 2019/20 provides a detailed business review of the Group’s
performance for the year with analysis using financial key performance
indicators as well as discussion on principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and business development outlook.

Together with the Annual Report 2019/20, the Company publishes its
standalone Sustainability Report which discloses the Group’s sustainability
performance in four key areas, namely, Total Customer Satisfaction, Focus
on People, Investing in Our Community and Resource Optimisation for the
year ended 31 March 2020. The report discusses in detail the Company’s
environmental policies and performance as well as our relationship and
continuous engagement through various channels with our customers,
employees, suppliers and other key stakeholders who have a significant
impact on the Group.
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Business Review (Continued)

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and integrates industry best practices into our operations
where appropriate. Details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business
and operations are set out in the Sustainability Report 2019/20 and the
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report 2019/20.

The relevant discussions in the Company’s Annual Report and Sustainability
Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 as set out above form part of this
Directors’ Report.

Results and Appropriations

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 79 of the Company’s Annual Report 2019/20.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK19 cents per share was paid.
Considering the operating results for the year and to ensure healthy cash
flow, the Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year. Details of
dividends for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2020, pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$462,142,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the percentage of sales or purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers was less than
30%.

Principal Investment Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are set out
on page 225 of the Company’s Annual Report 2019/20.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$538,000.
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Share Capital

During the year, 161,000 new shares of the Company were issued on
exercise of share options under the Company’s Share Option Schemes.
Details of the movements of share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 19 and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 226 to 228 of the Company’s
Annual Report 2019/20.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s listed
securities, except that the trustee of the Company’s Share Award Scheme
purchased on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) a total of 1,686,126 shares of the Company at a total
consideration of about HK$40.6 million to satisfy the award of shares to
selected participants pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of
the Share Award Scheme.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or
Similar Rights

Other than the Share Option Schemes described in this report, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
as at 31 March 2020. Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the year.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company's Bye-laws and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Hui Tung Wah,
Samuel, Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter shall
retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on
3 September 2020 (“AGM") and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. Information on Directors proposed for re-election will
be set out in the circular to shareholders of the Company accompanying the
resolutions to re-elect them at the AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and the officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company which may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for
the directors and officers of the Group.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Saved as disclosed in this report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Share Option Schemes
2003 Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 24
September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company might grant options
to eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The Company had
granted options to certain employees of the Group (including Executive
Directors of the Company) pursuant to the 2003 Scheme. Summary of the
2003 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Participants Employees (whether full-time or part-
time), Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, suppliers and customers
of the Group and consultants, advisers,
managers, officers and corporations that
provide research, development or other
technical support to the Group

Total number of ordinary Nil
shares available for issue

and the percentage of

the issued shares that it
represents as at the date

of this report

Maximum entitlement of In any 12-month period shall not exceed
each participant 1% of the shares in issue
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2003 Scheme (Continued)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, a period of five years
commencing on the date on which an
option becomes exercisable and expiring
on the last day of the five-year period
save that such period shall not expire
later than ten years from the date of
grant

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, there is no general
requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be
exercised

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2003 Scheme expired on
24 September 2013
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2012 Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing of a
shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”).
Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. As of the date of this report, no
share options had been granted by the Company under the 2012 Scheme.
Summary of details of the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Participants Employees, Executive Directors, Non-

executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, suppliers
and customers of the Group and
consultants, advisers, managers, officers
and corporations that provide research,
development or other technical support
to the Group
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Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued shares that it
represents as at the date
of this report

Maximum entitlement of
each participant

57,182,403 ordinary shares representing
9.76% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2012 Scheme (Continued)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Such period shall be determined by the
Board and specified in the letter to the
grantee, which may be varied by the
Board in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Scheme, provided that it shall
not under any circumstances exceed
ten years from the date of grant of the
relevant option

The Board may, in its discretion,
determine the time or period when the
right to exercise the option in respect of
all or some of the shares the subject of
the option will vest

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2012 Scheme remains in force until
10 September 2022 unless otherwise
terminated under the terms of the 2012
Scheme
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
Movement of Share Options Granted

Details of movements of the share options granted under the 2003 Scheme

oD FREET & ()

CREBRDHEZZ
BE-Z-TF=A=+-ALFER &=

during the year ended 31 March 2020 were as follows: TE-FHECRBZRMDBAEESHFBL
T
Number of options®
R EEHE @
Exercise
price per Outstanding Outstanding
option at 1 April at 31 March
SHREG 2019 Exercised Lapsed 2020
Dateof  HEfTEE  Exercise R-Z-N%F during during R-ZZEF
Grantees grant HKS period MA—B the year theyear =A=1—H
ERA REBH BT T e RATHE FRTE FRERH T RATHE
Continuous contract employees 28/10/2010® 22.370 31/3/2011- 255,000 (161,000) (94,000) -
BEAYIEER 30/3/2020
255,000 (161,000) (94,000) -
Notes: BE -
(a) Number of options refers to the number of underlying shares of the Company covered by the (a) FRDEAE BB T B R IE — ST = F 5T 2R LR B FT
options under the 2003 Scheme. WRZANREERNDEE -
(b) These options vested in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31 March 2011, 15% on 31 March (b) ZERDBHEE S AMIZUTHERE 105K %

2012, 20% on 31 March 2013, 25% on 31 March 2014 and 30% on 31 March 2015 and
were exercisable during a five-year period commencing the respective dates of vesting.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or

cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Share Award Scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 27 August 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), under
which any individual being an existing director, employee, officer, supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser or manager of any member of the Group is
entitled to participate in as selected participant who may be granted an
award of restricted shares and/or performance shares during the period
commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on the day immediately
prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date. The purpose
of the Scheme is to recognise and reward selected participants for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group. The Scheme
also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/or incentive package
in order to attract and retain talent for the development of the Group’s
business, and to promote long term success of the Group by aligning the
interests of selected participants and shareholders.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 15
years from the Adoption Date and is administrated by the Board and the
trustee of the Scheme. The total number of shares to be awarded under the
Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time.

= 17 2 B 5t 2l
RAABIRZE—=FNA=Z++tBHEMNAB
HA 1) BRAN ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂhﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂjiﬁi
&) - EZEEIT - REBMERKE QR
ﬁﬁ%%\ﬁé\ﬁﬁAi‘ﬁEﬁ\gﬁ\
B FBRARKEE Z EAEAEALE
%ﬁ%%ﬁh@ﬁ%ﬁ%’m%maﬁtﬁi
DEFEMBBTRATE BT —H AR TR
E%F&/@%F%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@°a%%25
MARERREKHESHAENRNEREBL K
ZROER  AREERHEBRZI N Z2EHFH R
S RE S MW%&% AN - HEEARE
B ¥R WKATESEERRR 2F
=BT RERNSECREXT

IR RENE BN A S B RMA Hﬂﬁ_uﬂ%ﬁﬁ 15
F UHEERRZAEZTEAETER -
TR T AR 2 RID BTN SEBBARA AT;TEW
BETIRMDEE 5% ° ZTE TR FER
KEESLEEENABB RO EE TF
HBRARR TR ETROEEZ1% °

AREEEARADA 201920 F8# 59



Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, restricted shares were awarded to
selected participants pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. Details of shares
awarded under the Scheme during the year were as follows:

Number of shares

Hﬁﬁé%ﬁb%‘f%ﬂ (%)
REE=F=FE=A=4ALFE A2
SRR S RIS R R
HERRAD © IRIBZ BRI 2 RO RFRZE
HIEMT

B EE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
2019 during during during 2020 Vesting
Date of grant R=-Z—NI%F the year the year theyear R-Z-ZF period
Eduell=p- mA—H REARH RERBEB RERLHR =HA=+-—H REH
1/8/2016 269,181 - (269,181) - - 31/7/2017 -
31/7/2019 @
31/7/2017 579,327 - (285,146) (18,030) 276,151 31/7/2018 -
31/7/2020 @
31/7/2018 1,327,223 - (436,480) (61,927) 828,816 31/7/2019 -
31/7/2021 @
31/7/2019 - 1,202,289 (1,059) (69,857) 1,131,373 31/7/2020 -
31/7/2022 @
31/7/2019 - 3,273,474 - (124,846) 3,148,628 6/2022 ©
2,175,731 4,475,763 (991,866) (274,660) 5,384,968
Notes: BRE -
(a) The awarded shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the awarded shares (a) RIFBMOIRLLPIRE - AR AR E—EAFE &

respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance
of the remaining awarded shares on the third anniversary date of the grant date. In case
such anniversary date is not a business date, the date of vesting shall be the business day
immediately thereafter.

(b) The awarded shares are subject to attainment of performance targets with reference to the
Group's performance.

(0) During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors of the
Company, participated in the Share Award Scheme.

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 15,452,017 shares had been awarded
under the Share Award Scheme, representing approximately 2.64% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2020.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2020, the interests of each Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

EEREETHRAERRSD - HE
BROREBEZP 2ERRAR

R-IZE-TF=ZA=1T—H ARARERZSH
REIE GO (TE 5 R BB RD] 1) 5352 K
FEZECMATRRE - SRIE LT RAM S+
Pz EMARERETEFRZRESTA
(MEETRI D BTG ARRR RE BB
ARREERRARPITERAR R LEARR
EE (REH MERPIEXVE 2 RE) 2 Kk
0~ MR MESF 2w T

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
AATBER HERGHE (FR)

% of total
issued
Equity shares *
Personal Family  Corporate Other derivatives Total EB AT
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests IR interests g E-C]
EEnA B AR QiYL NG 2 HipEs PTETER ERAY ZED*

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 23,450,500 - - 40,983,394@ - 64,433,894 11.001%
EHNTE

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 14,039,928 - - 3,000,000 ® - 17,039,928 2.909%
BETLL

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,419,407 9,614,500© - - - 17,033,907 2.908%
BRIR ST

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - - - - 25,837 0.004%
FHREL A

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,000@ - - - - 55,000 0.009%
TEELE

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 620,349 - - 91,708,213©®  568,571% 92,897,133 15.861%
BIERSE

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 94,906 - - - 203,062 % 297,968 0.051%
BRASTE

*  The percentage has been calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at * BOLNERZZE_EF=A=+—HBERRRDHITRG

31 March 2020.

585,704,033 fXEtE ©
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (Continued)

Notes:

(a) These shares comprised (i) 3,000,000 shares held by a foundation in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny (“Mr Lo") is a trustee; and (i) 37,983,394 shares held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited
("Avrdley”) in the capacity of trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”) of which Mr Lo and Victor
Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”) were the unit holders. Mr Lo was deemed to be
interested in these shares by virtue of being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor
Reach as well as a beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

(b) These shares were held by a foundation in which Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita is a trustee.

© Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests
of his spouse, of which 3,000,000 shares were held by a foundation in which his spouse is a
trustee.

(d) These shares were held by Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly with his spouse.

(e) These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned
by Sky Bright International Limited (" Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success Holdings
Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr Lo Tak
Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of
one of the family trusts.

(f) These represented interests in unvested shares granted under the Company’s Share Award
Scheme.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company were long positions. None of the Directors held any short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their respective associates had or
was deemed to have any interest or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests FEREER

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of every person, RZZZTF=A=+—H AR AREEH
other than a Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, in the N EAERPIE 336 (RRTF 2 B AMAAR - #
shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the BARR ARG AR D SOk R 2 At (BD
Company’s issued share capital, as recorded in the register kept by the ~— HARF R EHITRAS% I L) (RALQFE
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: EREFITEINFHINWT

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
AATBER HERGHE (FR)

% of total
issued
shares *
Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Total EE 81T
substantial shareholders interests interests interests interests interests IR0 4258
ITERRESR BB PN Rk DE) R HtEs ESAE ZED*
Wandels Investment Limited - - - 91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
Sky Bright International Limited - - - 91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
Verdant Success Holdings Limited - - - 91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited - - - 91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
Ms Tso Po Ping - 64,433,894 © - - 64,433,894 11.001%
BEYLL
Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited - - - 37,983,394 37,983,394 6.485%
Victor Reach Investments Limited - - - 37,983,394@ 37,983,394 6.485%
Mr Lo Hoi Chun 132,000 - 67,880,834 @ - 68,012,834 11.612%
EHEBLE
Ms Man Bo King - 68,012,834 - - 68,012,834 11.612%
NERLT
LBK Holding Corporation 35,969,133 - - - 35,969,133 6.141%
MMW Holding Corporation 31,911,701 @ - - - 31,911,701 5.448%
*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March * BAARDERN-_B-_TE=A=+-RAARABETEMN
2020. 585,704,033 f%&15 °
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50%
owned by Sky Bright International Limited ("Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-
owned by Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in these
shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

Ms Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

These shares were held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited (“Ardley”) in the capacity of
trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”). Victor Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”)
was deemded to be interested in the shares by virtue of being a beneficiary of the Unit Trust.
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in
the shares by virtue of being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach as well as a
beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

Mr Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares which were held, as to
35,969,133 shares, by LBK Holding Corporation (“LBK") and, as to 31,911,701 shares, by
MMW Holding Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and MMW were wholly-owned by Mr Lo
Hoi Chun.

Ms Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by LBK which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by MMW which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the register maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no other

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 3 March 2017, the Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company
Limited (“Fung Yuen”) entered into a new non-exclusive framework
agreement (“2017 Framework Agreement”) which governs the terms
upon which Fung Yuen and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would
be engaged by the Group to provide interior decoration, renovation,
adjustment, repairing, maintenance and/or related services to the shops
operated by the Group in Hong Kong, Macau and Guangdong Province in
the People’s Republic of China (the “Renovation Works") for a further term
of three years from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 subject to the following

annual caps:
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 HK$35,000,000
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 HK$40,000,000

1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 HK$45,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a deemed connected person of the Company as Mr
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita (both being Directors of the Company), has a majority control in Fung
Yuen Group. Thus the Renovation Works constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2017 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 March 2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the aggregate value in respect of the
Renovation Works under the 2017 Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$7,811,000 and did not exceed the annual cap for the
year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen (Continued)
On 19 March 2020, the Company and Fung Yuen entered into a new
agreement (“2020 Framework Agreement”) to renew the 2017 Framework
Agreement for a further term of three years from 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2023 subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 HK$30,000,000
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 HK$30,000,000
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 HK$30,000,000

Details of the 2020 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 March 2020 and 24 March 2020.

Annual Review

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions under the 2017 Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2020 and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(© according to the relevant agreement(s) governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.
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Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements (other than the transactions relating to the operating
lease rentals paid to a related party, which constituted continuing connected
transactions but were exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Changes in Information of Directors

The changes in information of Directors are set out below pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey retired as an independent non-executive director
and ceased to be a member of the audit committee of Tai Ping Carpets
International Limited on 18 May 2020. He also retired as an independent
non-executive director and ceased to be the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee and nomination
committee of Kunlun Energy Company Limited on 27 May 2020.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert ceased to be the chairman of Professional
Services Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council on
1 April 2020.

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter

(Executive Director)

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter has been appointed as a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited with effect from 1 December 2019.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the BARELEBERQATRKRRE
Shareholders of Café de Coral Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFMETHERAF])
Opinion 2R

What we have audited EMEETHRE

The consolidated financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the ~ ARKLEEFR AR (LA TEBE [ERR]]) KA
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 224, MBARI(LATHBIEERDINSERET7TE

which comprise: 4 EMFREMBRE - B

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020; o R E-THF=A=+—HWNGEETBER
MK

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended:; o HEZHIIFENGEERRK

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ~®  #HZEZ B ILFERGE ZEBRARE

then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ¢ BZEZB ILFENGaEREHR
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and o HEZHILFENEGS mExX &

e notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a o BRAFBHEMNTE  BREETESEHERE

summary of significant accounting policies. 2o
© PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong BERGEE RIS - BETIRATAE2E
T. +852 2289 8888, E5E - +852 2289 8888 -
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com {55 : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Opinion (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Key Audit Matter

RARETER

e
¥
X
1—04

BARESE1E ()
BFVEE BB BR B FEBANT -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BHNES N EERREETEE

Risk of revenue recognition

WA TR R

Refer to note 2.19 for the Group’s accounting policies on
revenue recognition and note 21 for the analysis of revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.
pa%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiz 19 E5EARARAERN SRR &M
21 SEREZ_ZT_TF=A=1t—"HILFEHNKA
St -

The Group recognised revenue of HK$7,963 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020.
EEEREBE_T_ZF=-A=T—HILFEERRA
7,963 BEBTT °

We focused on revenue recognition in particular for
sales of food and beverage due to its magnitude and the
characteristics of the Group’s industry nature. The recording
of revenue involves high volume of small amount transactions
through various systems. Any errors arising from capturing
of data or interfaces of data amongst the various systems
may have significant impact on revenue. Therefore it required
significant time and resource to audit.

RERKEBORER BEEREMESTELENENE
N BRPLCHEINHERY KKmE AR « KA
RS RABEB IR RFETH/NER S - EEREIE
R RSEEIRE AR EENERIZELE - 9 R EH AR
REATE @ At FEAFTERERRAKREIR

We understood, evaluated and validated management's key

internal controls in its revenue recognition process.

I SHELRBEEEBNERABRDBEFNTE
PEBIZE ] o

We involved Information Technology (“IT") specialists to
evaluate the design of the relevant IT systems and controls
(including IT controls) over revenue recognition and tested
the operating effectiveness of those controls.

B BEE MBI ([1T]) EXRFHEFIATER MR HI4E
E@ TREREE (BREITERE) WARHZEEENEER

We performed analytical procedures on revenue through
comparing the actual result of the current year with that of
the prior year.

HAEBLBRAFENERERE TFENBRER &
WA DA HT o

We tested samples of sales transactions by tracing to bank
receipts and other relevant evidence.

BB BEPIRITRIR M EMAARRE MEHER S ©

We tested journal entries posted to revenue accounts
selected on risk based criteria.

BfRAREERE T ABRATRW ARRE °

We found the sales transactions being tested were supported
by appropriate evidence.

BB RARTHHEZXZH D EREEERE
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ms Kong Pui Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 March 2020 R=ZE-ZF=A=+—H

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R-B-2F R-F-N& R-EB-N\&
=B=1+-H =A=1+—H MA—A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FET FET FET
(Note 2.2) (Note 2.2)
(FizF2.2) (KizE2.2)
(Restated) (Restated)
(45 E51) Ciez7))
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB RRE 6 1,608,831 1,532,256 1,619,170
Investment properties REWE 7 585,600 628,000 663,300
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 6 2,705,239 2,980,808 3,109,016
Intangible assets BV ERE 8 1,421 1,852 4,051
Deferred income tax assets EERIBEE 16 66,294 56,729 72,457
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFENAEMZERA
other comprehensive income LEMEE 10 101,033 154,102 147,978
Non-current prepayments and deposits FRBENFERRE 11 277,820 307,871 295,657
5,346,238 5,661,618 5,911,629
Current assets MENEE
Inventories "E 12 260,626 241,325 234,362
Trade and other receivables e E G 13 166,518 165,086 191,466
Prepayments and deposits BFERES 13 60,920 38,099 35,561
Current income tax recoverable BNEA AT U ] #5788 39,743 1,017 3,383
Bank deposits with maturity over three B =18 A2 MRITER
months 14 1,641 21,865 22,778
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReSEER 14 345,072 835,537 801,240
874,520 1,302,929 1,288,790
Total assets BEE 6,220,758 6,964,547 7,200,419
EQUITY g
Capital and reserves attributable to ARERERAA
the equity holders of the Company FEAR RN I e
Share capital [N 19 58,570 58,554 58,554
Share premium BHaE 20 621,122 616,811 616,811
Shares held for share award scheme B SR B AT 21 A 2 R 1D 20 (146,021) (133,020) (145,053)
Other reserves Hipfkts 20 468,520 542,070 601,812
Retained earnings 1 B A 20
- Proposed dividends - KRR S - 380,603 573,832
- Others - Eth 1,664,542 1,709,616 1,638,225
2,666,733 3,174,634 3,344,181
Non-controlling interests JERE M R RS 4,579 5,220 2,839
Total equity PR FEb 2,671,312 3,179,854 3,347,020
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As at 31 March 2020 R=ZE-ZF=A=+—H
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R-B-2F R-F-N& R-EB-N\&
=A=+-H ZA=+—H MmA—H
Note HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B = FET FET FET
(Note 2.2) (Note 2.2)
(FfizE2.2) (HiE2.2)
(Restated) (Restated)
(45E2) (A5E2)
LIABILITIES &f&
Non-current liabilities FEnRFaE
Deferred income tax liabilities RERHEEE 16 29,410 27,659 30,957
Provision for long service payments REORG S B A 15 48,778 45,258 34,990
Retirement benefit liabilities BREEFEE 15 10,346 13,459 18,747
Lease liabilities HEARE 6(c) 1,845,279 2,017,541 2,052,769
1,933,813 2,103,917 2,137,463
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables B REERIA 17 172,161 219,710 207,478
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HApfETERIA K s T & 18 675,200 648,178 632,876
Current income tax liabilities BEfIB A E 13,487 39,300 41,129
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(c) 754,785 773,588 834,453
1,615,633 1,680,776 1,715,936
Total liabilities maffE 3,549,446 3,784,693 3,853,399
Total equity and liabilities RN & ERRE 6,220,758 6,964,547 7,200,419
Net current liabilities FREaf (741,113) (377,847) (427,146)
Total assets less current liabilities AEERREAE 4,605,125 5,283,771 5,484,483
The notes on pages 85 to 224 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 1E28 85 F 224 B 2 it AZAN4R & B 1§k a9 B
financial statements. Iy o
The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 224 were approved EB77% 224EZ?$997T%¥&2§2‘<‘%$)%)\5’\\:

by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
ER
Chairman

1
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COHSO"dated Income Statement — By Function of Expense
él?ﬁé ,E‘ESE - RERIEEN T

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BHZ—Z T F=H=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E_FF —E—hF
Note HK$’000 HK$000
BiteE FET FET
(Note 2.2)
(MizE2.2)
(Restated)
(45 EZl)
Revenue A 21 7,963,097 8,493,883
Cost of sales SHEE AR 23 (7,232,445) (7,266,605)
Gross profit EF 730,652 1,227,278
Other income and other EH AU A R E A
(losses)/gains, net F(E518) 22 (40,540) 17,687
Administrative expenses TR E A 23 (481,414) (445,453)
Operating profit ZiEm 208,698 799,512
Finance costs, net BRI FR AR 24 (94,440) (99,386)
Profit before income tax FRA5 Al Al 114,258 700,126
Income tax expense TS & A 25 (39,872) (128,456)
Profit for the year ARE Z A 74,386 571,670
Profit attributable to: PEfRER
Equity holders of the Company RARREFREA 73,634 569,907
Non-controlling interests FE 1 A 752 1,763
74,386 571,670
Earnings per share for profit R RIIRHEREE AFEIG
attributable to the equity holders i ) 2 AR A
of the Company
Basic HAR 27 HK$0.13 /&t HK$0.98 /& 7T
Diluted e 27 HK$0.13 T HK$0.98 7T
The notes on pages 85 to 224 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7E55 85 % 224 B Z fist AN 4R & B s R U E
financial statements. BBE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ROFEMIRARE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BHZ—Z T F=H=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECRE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
(Note 2.2)
(MizE2.2)
(Restated)
(A& E2)
Profit for the year REZ G 74,386 571,670
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hiv 2 (F518) WA -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss @ E# 548582 B H
Exchange differences arising from BRI AR 2 N =
translation of foreign subsidiaries (25,293) (41,936)
Items that will not be reclassified T BfE1E B A 18 em o A
subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of retirement benefit EFtERReENEaERRE
liabilities and provision for PR 7% & B
long service payments (2,775) (12,393)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at BEAFEINAEMZERAZ
fair value through other SREENATE(EBR) wF
comprehensive income (53,069) 6,124
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ANFEE#EE2E (EE), WA (6,751) 523,465
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEMLANFERZE (BER) WA :
for the year attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company - ARNFREFEA (7,503) 521,702
— Non-controlling interests — IR RS 752 1,763
(6,751) 523,465

The notes on pages 85 to 224 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7E55 85 % 224 B 2 izt AN 4R & B SRR A=

5 -

il
kol

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

inOlEREEMER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZ ==

F—FBE-_A=t—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

E

quity

AAFRREN
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  scheme reserves  earnings Total interests equity
R R
HE] J i
BAE  ROEE 2kt Hit@es REEA @t s RES
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000
FEn FiE7 FiET FEn FiE FiEm FEn FE7
Balance as at 1 April 2019 RZE-NFNA—A
(as previously reported) EA(NEAZR) 58554 616,811  (133,020) 537,776  2,335367 3,415,488 6,262 3,421,750
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 RAERUBRE
(Note 2.2) 6728 (MT22) - - - 4294 (245148)  (240,854)  (1,042)  (241,896)
Balance as at 1 April 2019 (as restated) R=F—NFNA—H
o (RED)) 58,554 616,811 (133,020) 542,070 2,090,219 3,174,634 5220 3,179,854
Profit for the year $¢E)§$‘J - - - - 73,634 73,634 752 74,386
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hit2E (BE) /A :
Exchange differences arising from Mﬁ/i?\%% P4
translation of foreign subsidiaries ERESE - - - (25,293) - (25,293) - (25,293)
Fair value loss on financial assets at BATEIAEMZE
fair value through other WAZ REER
comprehensive income NHEER - - - (53,069) - (53,069) - (53,069)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit X HEEKLEHEE
liabilities and provision for ERERBERE
long service payments - - - - (2,775) (2,775) - (2,775)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income B2E (BE) /A - - - (78362) 70859 (7,503) 752 (6,751)
Employee share award scheme-value  {EE k(7@ 2] - (B8
of employee services ik (EfE - - - 23,845 - 23,845 - 23,845
Purchase of shares B - - (40,631) - - (40,631) - (40,631)
Proceeds from shares issued Bl e 16 3,585 - - - 3,601 - 3,601
Release of share-based compensation  E/T{E k{7 EE AR 7
reserve to share premium upon RRBEREEA
exercise of share options RITGEE - 726 - (726) = = = =
Vesting of shares of share R REE AR5
award scheme - - 27,630 (21,637) (5,993) - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options R {7 EfE S e - - - (555) 555 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserves ERDLTRE - - - 3,885 (3,885) = = =
Distribution to non-controlling interests 7t Tl - - - - - = (811) (811)
Dividends RE = = = - (487,213)  (487,213) (582)  (487,795)
16 4311 (13,001) 4812  (496,536)  (500,398) (1,393)  (501,791)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 RZZZZF=A=1—H
e 58,570 621,122  (146,021) 468,520 1,664,542 2,666,733 4579 2,671,312

RREE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

inOlEREEMER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE—ZE-—ZTF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Equity

YN
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserves  earnings Total interests equity
FRin1eR)
itElE FEERINE
BA  BAEE KRB EftBE  REEH st Ba  RESE
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
8T FEr  TEr FEr  TEr TErn T FEr
Balance as at 1 April 2018 RZE-\FHA—H
(as previously reported) A (RERIZR) 58554 616811  (145053) 602542 2,436,827 3,569,681 3819 3,573,500
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNEBRBaS
(Note 2.2) %816, 2%2 (WE2.2) - - - (730)  (224770)  (225,500) (980)  (226,480)
Balance as at 1 April 2018 (as restated) R =F—/\FEHA—H
S ACEL) 58,554 616811  (145053) 601812 2,212,057 3,344,181 2839 3,347,020
Profit for the year (restated) REERER (@5\1) - - - - 569907 569,907 1763 571,670
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hit 2@ (BE) /A :
Exchange differences arising from Mﬁ/i?\%% 174
translation of foreign subsidiaries R Z5 (FE5])
(restated) - = - (41,936) - (41,936) - (41,936)
Fair value gain on financial assetsat ~ ZATEFIAZMEE
fair value through other WAZ EREER
comprehensive income ATERH - - - 6,124 = 6,124 = 6,124
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ EFHEEREEHAE
liabilities and provision for kRERBERKE
long service payments - - - - (12,393) (12,393) - (12,393)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income B2mE (58) /WA - - - (35812) 557514 521,702 1763 523465
Employee share award scheme-value BB} 282 - [ES
of employee services i (EME - = = (1,209) = (1,209) = (1,209)
Purchase of shares EIN G - - (10,800) - - (10,800) - (10,800)
Vesting of shares of share R &R AR 5B
award scheme - - 22,833 (20,247) (2,586) - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options  ER {3 BB A & - - - (1,067) 1,067 - = =
Transfer from statutory reserves BAT REER - - - (1,407) 1,407 = = =
Loan capitalisation -E¢-vinld - - - - - - 1,200 1,200
Dividends RE = = = - (6792400  (679,240) (582)  (679,822)
- - 12,033 (23,930)  (679,352)  (691,249) 618 (690,631)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (restated) R=ZE—-hE=A=1—H
S ACEL) 58,554 616811  (133,020) 542,070 2,090,219 3,174,634 5220 3,179,854
The notes on pages 85 to 224 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7£55 85 % 224 B 2 i s AN 4R & B SR =

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BHZ—Z T F=H=+—HILFE

-

2020 2019
b g 23 —T-hF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BiteE FET FET
(Note 2.2)
(MizE2.2)
(Restated)
(A& E2)
Cash flows from operating activities REXBEEZIRERE
Net cash generated from operations EEBEELEFRES 30(a) 1,529,292 2,008,884
Hong Kong profits tax paid B2 EEFEH (93,319) (82,458)
Overseas taxation paid 25 2 E5NHIE (18,956) (33,149)
Net cash generated from operating KEXBEEFRE
activities 1,417,017 1,893,277
Cash flows from investing activities WERHEEZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and NBEWE - WEKREE
equipment (502,307) (293,388)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - BB KRBTSR
plant and equipment 30(b) 1,294 4,952
Proceeds from disposal of HERE YIS
investment properties 30(c) - 54,359
Proceeds from disposal of HERTEEMSNR
intangible assets 30(d) - 2,142
Decrease in bank structured deposits RITEBUERZRD 18,238 5,800
Dividend received from listed investments & 4 & &% 2 12,246 11,736
Interest received Btz FIE 16,098 14,803
Decrease in bank deposits with 838 =& A 257 B e iR1T 13K
maturity over three months o 20,224 913
Net cash used in investing activities ARE & EE) 2 FiRE (434,207) (198,683)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BHZ—Z T F=H=+—HILFE

-

2020 2019
—E_FF —E—hF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BiteE FET FET
(Note 2.2)
(MizE2.2)
(Restated)
(A& E2)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEETBEEZHRERE
Purchase of shares held for BB E R BRI 8B 2 IR Hh
share award scheme (40,631) (10,800)
Dividends paid BfIRE (487,795) (679,822)
Payment of lease liabilities TRNEEARE 30(e) (935,542) (941,162)
Net proceeds from issue of shares TRt BRRE M BT TAR 1D 2
upon exercise of share options FTiSR0% 58 3,601 -
Distribution to non-controlling interests it F 3F3% Hl 1 #E 25 (811) -
Net cash used in financing activities A& &8 FiRe (1,461,178) (1,631,784)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekBFeFBEBEZ
cash equivalents FCRd) /1 (478,368) 62,810
Cash and cash equivalents at FREMEFRS R
the beginning of the year ReFEER 835,537 801,240
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMN&E R E: » 22 (12,097) (28,513)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRERFRSR
the end of the year HeEEER 14 345,072 835,537

The notes on pages 85 to 224 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7E55 85 % 224 B 2 fisk AN 4R & B sk &

#B e

i
kol

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im OBl TS R R EE

2.1

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda with limited liability on 1 October 1990. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in operation of quick
service restaurants and institutional catering, casual dining chains, as
well as food processing and distribution business in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2020.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), which are carried at fair
value.

2.1

IGED

AREEEBERAR(ARA]) R
—NWNEF+A-—BEBRREREN
—NWN\—FRAEFMR LA —EER
BERERR AR - M SEH i
/s Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda °

ARATEELEBBRAER - KAATZ
B AR EEREE R ERBEE R
RERRBBRA - KHERARAS
ERR D EES -

RRABBNREBEEMERXZABERAR]
(T&BHAT]) R LT -

SRR BRAIN  NREHMBHRRIAET
(B RBLAZFH - YELHEFRN
“ERCTRFEATRARETIE -

EEETHRAEE

WA M RREANER ST
RN T o BRIESTTRRAL - L FBER
EFMEHRNAEFENERER °

mREE

AREIMEMEAR (5 [ ARE]) 2
REMBHRRIVIRBEMABEREBMG
HRELRRBB(RRAGDINFE 6228 2
BRERERE - HREVBHRREERE
SERAERE - YRE[REYE NIZ
NEFEINAREMEZERAZEREEY
BAHESRRMIERER] ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lll’-.'i

2.1

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group reported profit of
HK$74,386,000 (2019: HK$571,670,000) and had operating cash
inflows of HK$1,417,017,000 (2019: HK$1,893,277,000). As at 31
March 2020, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$741,113,000 (2019: HK$377,847,000). As at the same date,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$345,072,000 (2019:
HK$835,537,000) and had no borrowings (2019: Nil). The net
current liabilities mainly resulted from the recognition of the current
lease liabilities of HK$754,785,000 upon the adoption of HKFRS 16
“Leases” (See Note 2.2).

The current liabilities of the Group will be settled in the coming
twelve months in accordance with their payment terms. In particular,
the aforementioned current lease liabilities of HK$754,785,000,
representing the aggregated lease obligations for the coming twelve
months, will be settled on a monthly basis. Management is of the
view that these current liabilities will be satisfied by the operating
cash inflows in the coming twelve months.

As of 31 March 2020, the Group had available unutilised banking
facilities of HK$785,538,000 (see Note 3.1(e)). In June 2020, in
order to further maintain flexibility in future funding, the Group has
obtained additional bank loan facilities, primarily long-term loans, of
approximately HK$1,180,000,000.
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2.1

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

mEREZE ()
MU & BBHMBRE LN AT
BEBECAETHRGEE - §2

BN AT AR B B RIBIR
I o
BE-T-_THE-A=f+—ALFEE-

K%lﬁ’* a/ﬁﬂz%74,386,ooo,%7c(_
T — N4 : 571,670,000/ 7T ) K& &
HE R AB1,417,017,000%8 (- =
— L% :1,893,277,000/8 7T ) ° ®X —
E-_EF=ZA=+—8"  AEEZR
FEEBLEREEET41,113,000%
TE(=ZF— N4 377,847,000/ T) °
AH ASEHEERESERESEEE
B %345,072,0008 T( =T — L F :
835,537,000 7T ) & I AR B K (=
T-NEF E) FRAPEEZER
MR ERANBEBV B RESER 6] M
g (AF22) #ERABHHEHEAE
754,785,000 B ILATER °

AEEZ R B EFREEEZRIERR
AR+ _EAXf - LimHHEEREE
754,785,000 TR KRR+ =8 A &

BITZHEEERT E@EZXEESARAER-
BEEERE  ZERBEBEREBRE
K+= 1.)%%?%.% HEemAXAT o

R-ZZ-_ZTF=A=+—H A%£E8E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ill’-.'i

2.1

(i)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flows
projections, which cover a period of twelve months from 1 April
2020. The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
anticipated cash flows generated from the Group’s operations, the
possible changes in its operating performance and the availability of
the Group’s banking facilities, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to fulfill its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the coming twelve months from 31 March 2020. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

New and amended standards and interpretation adopted
by the Group

The following new and amended standards and interpretation have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2019:

° Amendments to HKAS 12, HKAS 23, HKFRS 3 and HKFRS 11,
“Annual improvements 2015 — 2017 cycle”

° Amendments to HKAS 19, “Plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement”
o Amendments to HKAS 28, “Long-term interests in associates

and joint ventures”

2.1

(i)

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

mEEYE (&)
RAREFEERAEBEZRERER
Al EZ?E?E'J?@%Q:%:?EEE*EI
AT ZEAZHE - FEFRE - K&t
&Z’K/ilﬁfkﬁﬁﬁi,z}?ﬁﬁ‘l'fﬁﬂimué N
FEEENEERANAEBAHAZ
RITEERR - AEBBAERERDE
CRNER-_ZE-_TF=-A=+—HKE
S AR —ERRBBPZHBEELE -
Bt - ZE R P BRRIRGELE
EmimE -

AREECHMBFE] R EIEFTEER]
K2R

REEBR-_ZT—NFMNA— Bk %M
BRI B B BRI A T 5] RAE1E
FIERIA R 2RE

. EREGTER12 BEGEL
23 BAEMBHRELENIRES
MRHELER 1 2T [ZF
—HAEE_T—+FAHFEX
#

. %.i/ 2 ER19 2 1&
B3] ~ BREEE

5T Tata

o EBGHERI8ZIE - [RE
BARRAE AT Z R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im OBl TS R R EE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EESHBERBEGE)
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEZE (F)
(i) New and amended standards and interpretation adopted (i) AEBECHEMRFERLETZES
by the Group (Continued) LUK (8)
. Amendments to HKFRS 9, “Prepayment features with . BERBMBMELER I BT TR
negative compensation” BfE 2 B RIE R
. HKFRS 16, “Leases” . HEMEHREER 16 [HE]
. HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, “Uncertainty over income tax treatments” . EBE(EEUBEHREZREZE
2)- RE23 [FEHERZT
iSalel
Except for HKFRS 16 “Leases” as described in Note 2.2 “Changes BRIFzE2.2[ @5t EREE | itz BB
in accounting policies”, the adoption of these amendments to B mEER16[HE] I - HNZFAE
standards and interpretation does not have any significant impact on Al Z BRI MR B AL 2 ¥4& R
the results and the financial position of the Group. R R EARTE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ill’-.'i

2.1
(i)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting 2

Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

New and amended standards and conceptual framework (ii)

not yet adopted

The following new and amended standards and conceptual
framework have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2019 and have not been early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

FE gt BRI KRB ER8 ZER]

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
BEETHER39 - BEMBEERE
&W7&§%%WW¢&W ZAERT
Amendments to HKFRS 3
EEMIBERMELER|3 Z1EFT
Conceptual framework for
financial reporting 2018
— N\ FHBEHRERSER
HKFRS 17
BEMBSREER17
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
BEMBmEREA 10 REBGET
ERI28 2 &5

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

mAEE (&)
el RAERT ZRI KRR

PEAESR

(RS

Definition of material
BRZEE
Hedge accounting

Hmest

Definition of a business

FB2EE

Revised conceptual framework
for financial reporting

ISR AT S B SAESR

Insurance contracts

REREL

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate
or joint venture

REFEHBENE AL AT
ZENEELESITE

AT B AR R FTR] A R & 18
CEFRRZF—
AFAAMBREREER - TMERF RN

SMEESR

FIREYSL
NFMA—

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
FEHBERS
W2 EERN

1 January 2020

—T_TF—HA—H
1 January 2020
—T-TF—A-H

1 January 2020

—E-TF—H—H
1 January 2020
—=-=F—-H—H

1 January 2021
—F-_—%—A—-H

Not yet established

by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified

Public Accountants
e N E S ERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ill’-.'i

2.1
(i)

2.2

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards and conceptual framework
not yet adopted (Continued)

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and amended standards and conceptual framework, but is yet
in a position to state whether they would have significant impacts on
its results of operations and financial position.

Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” from 1 April 2019
retrospectively and restated prior periods comparatives. The tables
below show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item
as at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ill’-.'i

2.2

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EZSFBEREE(H)
Policies (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 SEBEREE ()
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption ERBHRETER6IEE] -
AN 2 SR
Consolidated statement As at
of financial position 31 March 2020
GERBRRE Before
adoption of As at
HKFRS 16 Effects of Asat | 31 March 2019 Effects of As at
\ZZ2TE adoption of |31 March 2020 |  As previously adoption of | 31 March 2019
ERET—E HKFRS 16 | As presented reported HKFRS 16 As restated
REs Fas ZEZEE | RIT-NE FaEE | RZE-NE
aEel  BEREEd :H_'I' A | =ZA=t-R Bif%&EEd | =A=1+-A
16,2 El 16252 mE5| MERIZH 16272 L]
HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FiET FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREE
Leasehold land and land use rights &R T0fFHE 71,159 (71,159) = 75,231 (75,231) =
Property, plant and equipment WE BENEE 1,987,983 (379,152) 1,608,831 1,922,710 (390,454) 1,532,256
Investment properties RENZE 585,600 = 585,600 628,000 = 628,000
Right-of-use assets RREEE - 2,705,239 2,705,239 - 2,980,808 2,980,808
Intangible assets BYEE 1,421 - 1,421 1,852 - 1,852
Deferred income tax assets BREEE 16,006 50,288 66,294 12,681 44,048 56,729
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEFI AL
other comprehensive income ZENAZEREE 101,033 = 101,033 154,102 = 154,102
Non-current prepayments and deposits 3FRBIERFEREZS 277,820 = 271,820 307,871 = 307,871
3,041,022 2,305,216 5,346,238 3,102,447 2,559,171 5,661,618
Current assets RHEE
Inventories (3 260,626 - 260,626 241,325 - 241,325
Trade and other receivables SEREMEWERE 166,518 = 166,518 165,086 = 165,086
Prepayments and deposits BAFERES 146,875 (85,955) 60,920 126,813 (88,714) 38,099
Current income tax recoverable I EE e 39,743 = 39,743 1,017 = 1,017
Bank deposits with maturity BB=(EAZIHA
over three months HRTER 1,641 - 1,641 21,865 - 21,865
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAeSEER 345072 - 345,072 835,537 - 835,537
960,475 (85,955) 874,520 1,391,643 (88,714) 1,302,929
Total assets BEE 4,001,497 2,219,261 6,220,758 4,494,090 2,470,457 6,964,547
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Ill’-.li

2

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EESHEREE (&)
Policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 SEBEREE ()
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued) ERBHRETER6IEE] -
RN S2E (48)
Consolidated statement As at
of financial position 31 March 2020
LERBRRAR Before
adoption of As at
HKFRS 16 Effects of Asat | 31 March 2019 Effects of As at
RZZZ%F adoption of |31 March 2020 |  As previously adoption of | 31 March 2019
Ef=r—E HKFRS 16 | As presented reported HKFRS 16 As restated
RaEs RawE® “BIEE | RIZ-NE &S | NIE-NE
MEREE  EEEmEEl :H =t-B | ZA=t+-B BEHEEE8 | =ZA=1-H
16,271 16252 kL] MENZR 16252 L]
HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAT TAT FiEn AT TET AT
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable AR AR
to the equity holders B NEBRA
of the Company KR
Share capital B 58,570 - 58,570 58,554 = 58,554
Share premium RITGRE 621,122 = 621,122 616,811 — 616,811
Shares held for share award scheme /2 @zt 2l
BEZRR (146,021) - (146,021) (133,020) - (133,020)
Other reserves Efthfekt 458,973 9,547 468,520 537,776 4,294 542,070
Retained earnings RE & 1,930,568 (266,026) 1,664,542 2,335,367 (245,148) 2,090,219
2,923,212 (256,479) 2,666,733 3,415,488 (240,854) 3,174,634
Non-controlling interests El2udillig Eay 5,673 (1,094) 4579 6,262 (1,042) 5,220
Total equity IR aE 2,928,385 (257,573) 2,671,312 3,421,750 (241,896) 3,179,854
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Ill’-.li

2.2

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies (Continued)

SETRREE (&)

BRUHREER 16/ HE |-
RN 2 S ()

Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

Consolidated statement As at
of financial position 31 March 2020
GEBERAR Before
adoption of As at
HKFRS 16 Effects of Asat | 31 March 2019 Effects of As at
\ZZ2TE adoption of |31 March 2020 |  As previously adoption of | 31 March 2019
ERET—E HKFRS 16 | As presented reported HKFRS 16 As restated
REs FwES | WRZBZZ%E | RN_E-NE FhEE | RZE-NE
BIRERER  BiEHREER | ZA=+-B | =ZA=t-H  BEEEEE | =ZA=t-H
16,280 162528 MEF| LRI 28R 162528 ]
HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
LIABILITIES 8%
Non-current liabilities FRBaE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEHEARE 31,230 (1,820) 29,410 29,479 (1,820) 27,659
Provision for long service payments & EIIRESHE 48778 - 48,778 45,258 - 45,258
Retirement benefit liabilities RREEHER 10,346 = 10,346 13,459 = 13,459
Lease liabilities MEARE = 1,845,279 1,845,279 = 2,017,541 2,017,541
90,354 1,843,459 1,933,813 88,196 2,015,721 2,103,917
Current liabilities TEaE
Trade payables BEEMERE 172,161 - 172,161 219,710 - 219,710
Other creditors and accrued liabilities  EftfERERIE
REFER 796,610 (121,410) 675,200 725,134 (76,956) 648,178
Current income tax liabilities HHEaRE 13,487 - 13,487 39,300 = 39,300
Lease liabilities MEARE = 754,785 754,785 = 773,588 773,588
982,258 633,375 1,615,633 984,144 696,632 1,680,776
Total liabilities BafE 1,072,612 2,476,834 3,549,446 1,072,340 2,712,353 3,784,693
Total equity and liabilities RiEN A FER 4,001,497 2,219,261 6,220,758 4,494,090 2,470,457 6,964,547
Net current liabilities FREaE (21,783) (719,330) (741,113) 407,499 (785,346) (377,847)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDAR 3,019,239 1,585,886 4,605,125 3,509,946 1,773,825 5,283,771
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i O Bl R ZR B S

2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2 EESHBREEE

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 SEBEREE ()
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued) ERBHRETER6IEE] -
N2 w2 (&)
Consolidated statement As at
of financial position 1 April 2018 Effects of As at
tRE IR R As previously adoption of 1 April 2018
reported HKFRS 16 As restated
R=ZT—\F BMmES | RZZ—\F
MA—H  BEsmRE2ER) MmA—H
MASERT 25 16 2572 &5
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets EMBNVEE
Leasehold land and land use rights A& 41 K + 3 5 PR 4 79,485 (79,485) =
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ HE NG 2,020,925 (401,755) 1,619,170
Investment properties B 663,300 = 663,300
Right-of-use assets FREEE = 3,109,016 3,109,016
Intangible assets EEE 4,051 = 4,051
Deferred income tax assets FIEFRTBE B 30,506 41,951 72,457
Financial assets at fair value through ZAFEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ &R EE 147,978 = 147,978
Non-current prepayments IERBNTEN IR RIL S
and deposits 295,657 = 295,657
3,241,902 2,669,727 5,911,629
Current assets MENE B
Inventories e 234,362 - 234,362
Trade and other receivables B R H b FEURARTE 191,466 - 191,466
Prepayments and deposits AN FOE MRS 121,198 (85,637) 35,561
Current income tax recoverable BNEA AT Uk [B] 718 3,383 = 3,383
Bank deposits with maturity aE=1{E A 2 H B &
over three months SRITER 22,778 = 22,778
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEAR 801,240 = 801,240
1,374,427 (85,637) 1,288,790
Total assets B 4,616,329 2,584,090 7,200,419
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Ill’-.'i

2.2

O Bl 55 R 2= Biil 53

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

:

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

2 EESHBREEE

2.2 EETHEHEREH (8)
BEBUBBREEDI[HE |-
R & (1)

Consolidated statement As at
of financial position 1 April 2018 Effects of As at
tRE IR R As previously adoption of 1 April 2018
reported HKFRS 16 As restated
RZZE—N\F HWEE | RZZE—N\F
MA—B  BiERE%ER] MmA—H
MASERT 25 16 25 &Y
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable RNABIRERE AFE
to the equity holders AR K (e s
of the Company
Share capital [N 58,554 - 58,554
Share premium A1 5 (8 616,811 - 616,811
Shares held for share award scheme &1 2Eh5t S35 A 2 (5 (145,053) - (145,053)
Other reserves H b 602,542 (730) 601,812
Retained earnings IREB R A 2,436,827 (224,770) 2,212,057
3,569,681 (225,500) 3,344,181
Non-controlling interests FERR M R e 3,819 (980) 2,839
Total equity fxiesasm 3,573,500 (226,480) 3,347,020
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Ill’-.li

2.2
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O Bl 55 R 2= Biil 53

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

:

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

2 EESHBREEE

2.2 SEHREH (A

)

BRUHREER 16/ HE |-

KA B2 (1)
Consolidated statement As at
of financial position 1 April 2018 Effects of As at
tRE IR R As previously adoption of 1 April 2018
reported HKFRS 16 As restated
R-ZT—N\F HMES | R N\F
WMA—H  FESREER mA—H
n5E AT 23R 16 252 EEET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FEIT FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFIAR E 33,520 (2,563) 30,957
Provision for long service payments ~ RHIRHG & BfE 34,990 - 34,990
Retirement benefit liabilities RikeRFasE 18,747 18,747
Lease liabilities HERE = 2,052,769 2,052,769
87,257 2,050,206 2,137,463
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables BEENIRTE 207,478 = 207,478
Other creditors and accrued liabilities E fih e~ BEIE & T & 706,965 (74,089) 632,876
Current income tax liabilities IR ER=E 41,129 = 41,129
Lease liabilities HERE - 834,453 834,453
955,572 760,364 1,715,936
Total liabilities FEb = 1,042,829 2,810,570 3,853,399
Total equity and liabilities faiE R & ERRE 4,616,329 2,584,090 7,200,419
Net current liabilities FREAE 418,855 (846,001) (427,146)
Total assets less current liabilities wEERTEAE 3,660,757 1,823,726 5,484,483
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Ill’-.li

2.2

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” —

Consolidated income statement

Impact of adoption (Continued)

2

2.2

V= |

For the year ended 31 March

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

SETBEREE ()

BEBUBBREEDI[HE |-
AN 2 A

(%)

GeBR% H2=A=T-HLEE
2020
Before
adoption of Effects of Effects of
HKFRS 16 adoption of 2019 adoption of
“Eo%F HKFRS 16 2020 As previously HKFRS 16 2019
BRI &% | Aspresented feported Rohak s restated
LR ABaEEs - ZI-NF ABREES “I-NE
16,281 16272 3| nERZH 16252 ]
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AT AT FAT AT AT AT
Revenue WA 7,963,007 - 7,963,097 8,493,883 - 8,493,883
Cost of sales HERA (7,312,333 79,888 (7,232,445) (7,356,665) 90,060 (7,266,605
Gross profit EH 650,764 79,888 730,652 1137218 90,060 1201278
Other income and bW ARE
otfer (losses)/gains, net F(E8) /& (44,020) 3480 (40,540) 17,687 - 17,687
Administrative expenses THER (481,414) - (481,414) (447,788) 2,335 (445 ,453)
Operating profit 2ELT 125330 83,368 208,698 707,117 92,395 799,512
Finance income/(costs), net BFRA/ (5E) 16,098 (110,538) (94,440) 14,803 (114,189) (99,386)
Profit before income tax N 141428 (27.170) 114,258 721920 (21,794) 700,126
Income tax expense FEHER (46,112) 6,240 (39872) (129,810) 1,354 (128,456)
Profit for the year RER&T 95,316 (20930) 74,386 592,110 (20,440) 571,670
Profit attributable to: ElEEF -
Equity holders of the Company RAFIREREA 94,512 (20,878) 73,634 590,285 (20,378) 569,907
Non-controling interests JEm R 804 (52) 752 1825 (62) 1763
Earnings per share for profit A Lu fo Hﬁ/\
attributable to the equity holders ;7
of the Company
Basic o HK$0.167  (HK$0.03) 7 HK$0.13387 HK$1.02%  (HKS0.04)%T HK$0.98:57
Diluted g7 HK$0.167T  (HKS0.03) 7 HK$0.1338 7 HKS1L.013  (HKS0.03)%T HK$0.98:570
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im o Al IS IR B 5t

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EESHBERBEGE)
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 EFTHERLE (&)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued) ERBHRETER6IEE] -
Rz & (&)

Consolidated statement For the year ended 31 March
of comprehensive income BZ=A=t-HLEE
GRRERAER 2020
Before
adoption of Effects of Effects of
HKFRS 16 adoption of 2019 adoption of
e 3 HKFRS 16 2020 | Aspreviously HKFRS 16 2019
REBIE RE® | As presented reported KA As restated
BEE BHEREER - St 22 Z-hE BBREER E-NE
[P 162%& 23 IFERI2 R 162%& ]
HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FE7 TET FEr FAT AT FE7
Profit for the year REF R 95,316 (20,930) 74,386 592,110 (20,440) 571,670
Other comprehensive (loss)income ~ Eft 27 (5%8) /A (86,390) 5,253 (81,137) (53,229) 5,024 (48,205)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income J (&
for the year A 8,926 (15,677) (6,751) 538,881 (15,416) 523,465

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company RAFREREA 8,122 (15,625) (7,503) 537,056 (15,354) 521,702
Non-controlling interests JEFERII RS 804 (52) 752 1,825 (62) 1,763
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im OBl TS R R EE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

Consolidated statement

2 EESHBREEE

2.2 EEHEREH (&)
BEMBHREEN16[HE |-
RN 2 S ()

FE= \nH

For the year ended 31 March

of cash flows (Extract) HE=A=1-HILEE
GRBSRER (HR) 2020
Before
adoption of Effects of Effects of
HKFRS 16 adoption of 2019 adoption of
“ZCFF HKFRS 16 2020 | Aspreviously HKFRS 16 2019
REBIE RE® | As presented reported KA As restated
WEEA B ER “E_ERE “E-NE BEHREEN —Z-NEF
16,271 162528 mes| MERIZ R 162728 L]
HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$"000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FEr
Net cash generated from operations ~ #@E4 735 % 593,750 935,542 1,529,292 1,067,722 941,162 2,008,884
Net cash generated from BERBEEL
operating activities e 481,475 935,542 1,417,017 952,115 941,162 1,893,277
Payment of lease liabilities THHEEEE - (935,542) (935,542) - (941,162) (941,162)
Net cash used in financing activities ~ F REEEE O FRE (525,636 (935,542) (1,461,178) (690,622) (941,162) (1,631,784)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as “operating
leases” under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.
The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied
to the lease liabilities ranged from 3% to 8%, depending on the
jurisdiction of the operating lease contracts and lease terms.

RERBBR RS LR 166 - NEE
ERRBEEAGTEN17[HE] 2R
ABln R IREHE | 2 HERATEER
5 - 2FRAERBEENRBRE I RE
B MERABEAZEEERMEET

IR EERMENF 3% E8% » RFK
EHEAHMEE R RIAERME
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2.2

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the initial measurement of lease liabilities, adjusted by
certain items as set out in Note 2.24 below. The right-of-use assets
were recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Depreciation was charged on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term.

The recognised right-of-use assets all relate to properties, leasehold
land and land use rights. As a result of the above changes, certain
items in the consolidated income statement as highlighted above are
restated.

Cash payments for the settlement of lease liabilities for the year
ended 31 March 2019 of HK$941,162,000 were required to be
reclassified from operating activities to financing activities according
to HKFRS 16 in the restated consolidated statement of cash flows.
The Group’s total net cash flow is unaffected.
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im OBl TS R R EE

2.2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

The definition of segment results of the Group was adjusted as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 16. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16,
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group, who is identified
as the Chief Executive Officer reviews the definition of segment
results, which represents operating profit before fair value changes
on investment properties, depreciation and amortisation; and
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets less related depreciation of right-of-use assets — properties;
and finance cost of lease liabilities. Before the adoption, segment
results are defined to be the operating profit before fair value
changes on investment properties, depreciation and amortisation;
and impairment losses of property, plant and equipment.
Accordingly, the comparative segment information has been restated
to reflect the current definition.

Under the new definition, the segment results were decreased by
HK$27,170,000 and HK$21,794,000 for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 respectively.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adoption the new leasing
standard.

2.2

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

SETBEREE ()
BEMBHREEN16[HE |-
Rz sE (&)
AEERDBEEZERZRNRRET B
BmE 16 MiER THE - REAE
BUBREER161E  AEBZEFES
BRREAN - HERHRITESEMOBRE
M2 ER HERREVEZATEE
B WEREBHEARYE - BFER&E
KRR ERERBRREEAES
E—MEZRBNE: RHEHEREZY
TERANRT 2 28 - RERAAT - DR
XEETERBREVMEAFEES -
ME - BE kR ITE R RE
BRI EEER - At - LD RE
HEBFIARRIRE 2 F %

BEFEE BHE_T_ZTFEK_F
—NFZA=ZT—HULEFEZEXE
5 Bl 4> 27,170,000 7% 7T & 21,794,000
PETT ©

HARRMHAE L] R AKEHA
ERLEARMBEEEZ T IRIE(E
{EfTFHEE -
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

(@) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

2.3
(a)

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

e ()

FYEE 2~ E] (48)
AR B R A B R AR A A B B 2 B Y AR
E2HEWPA - SHAEES @ﬁ“#&%ﬁﬁ&i\

RHEBAFAMBHRRPERER
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2.3
(b)

2.4

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes strategic
decisions.
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2.5
(a)

(b)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company'’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘finance costs, net’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement item are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation

of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholder’s
equity.
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2.5
(@]

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group's ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.
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2.6

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property, plant
and equipment, except for freehold land, are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold
land is stated at historical cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified Shorter of remaining period of

the lease or useful life

2.5%

Shorter of remaining period of

as finance lease
Building
Leasehold improvements
the lease or useful life
10%
12.5% - 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture and other equipment
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2.6

2.7

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. They are included in the consolidated income
statement.

For property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
which becomes an investment property, the Group revalues such
property on the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is dealt with in assets revaluation reserve.

The fair value at the date of the change in use is the deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as investment properties. On disposal of
the property, revaluation reserve is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and buildings. Right-
of-use assets of the leasehold land that meet the definition of
investment property are classified and accounted for as investment

property.
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2.7

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by
external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2.8
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group's share in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or joint venture or associate at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint
ventures or associates is included in investments in joint venture or
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
costs of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5
to 20 years.
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2.9

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

(a)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement

categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for equity investments at
FVOCI.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(@]

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group's management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in “other income and other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

2.12 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.10 and Note 3.1(d) for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade and other receivables for a description
of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdraft.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.16 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17
(b)

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

BVEA M AESER IR (48)

LL?’F)EEIE
EERIAF AR EXREEMAEOR
HEEBEMBBEELGREVBRRNERE

EMEREEZEEEE - A B
ERIBEEREEMENVIEER - LA

RERLEHIERAER S (TEREEEE
BB EEXBBENVRER - MER

ST ESTRE K EREFERIE
K B N FRERRTERER - BLERIIR
FRERSEAHIEEAEE LFEHE
%vﬁ&ﬁ%MLLﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
EFRIEAEAERTENESBANMRE
(RIER) MERE -

EFETH IR A BTN Pl B8 AR R FE AR Bt i 7
T FALLE A 68 PR B By = R A R

BB RMB AR - a2 AR ME

BRAINKRE 2 R ERMBHME - R
EXERAAEMS - KEAEFERE

R BEERE MEREZEAEER

BRARRATEREEIAIERIN

ERETERMITR DK IR E R
BIEAR IR A G - BEEHRIBREEMN
BESMAR RS ERTEE
STRERREBBBEERNFERELE
REMGHAERE - IR SREHRRE
EHEAEE AR -

AREEEFR AR 201920 Fik

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im o Al IS IR B 5t

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods
and services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of food and beverages

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the consolidated
income statement at the point of sale to customers or when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Royalty and franchise income
Royalty and franchise income are recognised on an accrual basis over
the period in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised over the time
when services are rendered.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Dividend income
Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVOCI.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the consolidated income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.21 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

2.22 Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

2.23 Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Profit sharing and bonus plans
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.

120 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2019/20

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

(if)

EEZSTTHRRE (&)

BREWA
BB ERDTEF AL ERAL

T RIE EE P URER o B% B e A URER FRIE B

BEFEIREGREEaRPERAEM

WA o

BT 8Bl

WAl B EREBEAEBBFTAATAMEK

HMmESHEE - AR A FERRBRA

e o

FE YA

F B A B A BB F S E L R E 1
RARR ©

EBEEF

EEEEH

BEZAEFFREREEZERREA
fR-MHBEEH AEEEHEEDIRR
HERTS M EE £ 2 FRIRRT RS E L -

BEZEFHRBMERTSKER &
EREEBEAEZZERA -

MED ZMIEALETE
EAREREECRE ZRBMELR
BEATHMERME  MREE L
SHER - FBEIEM b%h%éﬂZi‘Eﬁ
AR ER R RS o

MBELDZEMIEA S AERBE+ =
BAAXA - W LATRE 2 & BT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im OBl TS R R EE

2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans typically
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)  Pension obligations (Continued)
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in statement of
profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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2.23
(iv)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
discounted to present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Remeasurement are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v) Share-based compensation
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or the awarded shares
as at the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (i) excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
or awarded shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from the
open market for the shares to be vested under the share award
scheme. The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested
for this share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and
recorded as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction
under equity. Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs
of the purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share
award scheme”, and the related fair value of the awarded shares
are debited to share-based compensation reserve with the difference

charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (hominal value) and share
premium.

2.24 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Company is the lessee. The
new policy is described below and the impact of the change is
described in Note 2.2.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on their nature.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.25 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

2.26 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantees at inception, but performs a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its net liability
regarding the financial guarantee with the amount that would be
required if the financial guarantee to result in a present legal or
constructive obligation. If the liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no hedging activities are undertaken by
management.
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3.1
(a)

(b)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risks against their respective functional
currencies. It mainly includes managing the exposures arisen from
sales and purchases made by relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not used any
hedging arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within the Group are
mainly denominated in the respective company’s functional currency,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits
against changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would not
be significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for
bank deposits and bank structured deposit notes, the income and
operating cash flows of which are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits at variable interest
rates which are subject to cash flow interest rate risk. The directors
are of the opinion that any reasonable changes in interest rates
would not result in a significant change in the Group’s results.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented for interest rate risk.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position as financial assets at FVOCI. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s financial assets that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2020, if the price of the listed equity securities
(financial assets at FVOCI) had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables being held constant, the Group’s FVOCI investment
reserve would have increased/decreased by HK$10,103,000 (2019:
HK$15,410,000).

Credit risk

Risk management

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual
cash flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, deposits
with bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers and debtors, including trade and other receivables.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Majority of the Group’s
bank balances and deposits are placed in banks and financial
institutions which are independently rated with high credit ratings.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these banks and financial institutions as they have no default history
in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is
assessed to be close to zero and no provision was made as at 31
March 2020.
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3.1
(d)
@i)

(ii)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The credit quality of the landlords is assessed based on the financial
position of the landlords as well as past experience of the Group in
dealing with the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with appropriate
credit histories and credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. The
Group’s historical experience in collection of deposits and other
receivables falls within recorded allowance and the directors are of
the opinion that expected credit loss rate of these balances is close
to zero and no provision was made as at 31 March 2020.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group's bank
balances and deposits are deposited in over ten financial institutions
with good credit ratings, and the Group has a large number of
counterparties for rental deposits, trade and other receivables.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three main types of financial assets that are subject to
the expected credit loss model:

(1) Cash and cash equivalents;

(2) Trade receivables; and

(3) Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

3

3.1
(d)
(i)

(ii)

B EREE (&)

PR b B = ()

=8 R (&)

FEERE (&)
EIWEEERTIREBEMBHICRIAR
AEBEBEEIRIZNBELRMT
e AEBRABRBRAAGRIFE
ERBeXERHEEBRE - WHASE
MEBARTEEY - REAZEHNB
E&E - BEnRE M E M EKARIEYL
RBHAREZRTE  WEFAR/ZF
BENBEHEEBRRZOT ¥R
Z_TF-_A=1+—HILEHEEE

REB R IRTTAERR T FI9 9 BUIF
BB tTHERNA EARIFESFRzCBHE
B BYEEHEERR MASEE
BEREZHEBRE AR EE LAt R IR
HENRZH 77 - EEERBTEHIREA
ZETRBERIZE T REAOMES
HYEMIRR

ERMEERE
AEEXARAEEEEREMRRN S
BMEEAD /=K :

(1 ReFRBRELFEER

) =ZXREEEER: R

() HEHENAFEZHMEBEE
(BEfFR R E b EKERER)

AREEEERAF 201920 F3 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im OBl TS R R EE

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

) Trade receivables

Trade receivables of the Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on the nature of customer accounts,
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 months before 31 March 2020 or
31 March 2019 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HBERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEBEZE (&)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued) d) =ERk(E)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) SHEEREBEGE)

(2)  Trade receivables (Continued) 2)  EEENER(E)

On the basis, expected loss rate of trade receivables is BHWEE R -_FTF=H
assessed to be close to zero, as at 31 March 2020 and =E=1E & = — jl F=H
31 March 2019. In respect of trade receivables, the loss =t+—H ZEEWKREBENTEH
allowance as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 was BIEEXFFTLAELS - L%
determined as follows: EUWERTEmME R _TF=

A=+t—BERZZE—hF=H
—t+—HAESERBEETENT ¢

0-30 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over 365
31 March 2020 days days days days days Total
ZE-EF-A=t-H 0Z30A 31Z60H 61290H 912365H #1365 A b
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
&7 TEx Fér &% Fér &%
Gross carrying amount BERE
- Trade receivables - BERWERR 23,754 7,070 9,272 10,084 877 51,057
Loss allowance EERE - - - = (875) (875)
0-30 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over 365
31 March 2019 days days days days days Total
“E-N$=A=t-R 0%30H 31Z60H 61290H 91Z365H #3651 &5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT TAT FAT TET TET FAT
Gross carrying amount B
- Trade receivables - EREYRE 49,724 11,201 5,581 4,320 1,225 72,051
Loss allowance BEAE - - = = (1,182) (1,182)
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

3

Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Other financial assets at amortised cost include the other
receivables excluding prepayments. The credit quality of other
financial assets at amortised cost has been assessed with
reference to historical information about the counterparties
default rates and financial position of the counterparties.
Management is of the opinion that the risk of default by
these counterparties is not significant and does not expect
any losses from non-performance by the counterparties.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other financial
assets at amortised cost is assessed to be close to zero and
no provision was made as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies, after considering the
expected market conditions and the global health issues, maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available credit facilities. The Group continues to maintain
a healthy net cash position by keeping credit lines available and
to maintain flexibility in future funding. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had total banking facilities amounting to HK$945,000,000
(2019: HK$915,000,000) of which HK$159,462,000 were utilised
(2019: HK$133,353,000). As at 31 March 2020, the Group had
available unutilised banking facilities of HK$785,538,000 (2019:
HK$781,647,000). In June 2020, in order to further maintain
flexibility in future funding, the Group had obtained additional
bank loan facilities, primarily long-term loans, of approximately
HK$1,180,000,000.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are payments for trade and
other payables and operating expenses. The Group mainly finances
its working capital requirements through internal resources.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HBERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEBEZE (&)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) MBELREME (E)
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted FHPWENSTEAASLORKIRRER
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying 2 BREIRM %%‘ITEX - Et
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. TEARNII BN ARERE R A RE#
Total
undiscounted
Between 1 Between 2 More than  cash outflows
Ondemand Within1year ~ and2years  and 5 years 5 years RERBS
REX 15/ 1226/ 2E5ER S5ENE RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tén i FiET Tér FiEr Tén
At 31 March 2020 W-E-FTF=R=
Trade payables BEENER 172,161 - - - - 172,161
Other payables and At ERREREER
accrued liabilities (TBEESRAE)
(excluding non-financial
labiltes) 492,586 - - - - 492,586
Lease liabilities MEARE - 839,579 699,664 1,172,609 103,320 2,815,172
664,747 839,579 699,664 1,172,609 103,320 3,479,919
Total
undiscounted
Between 1 Between 2 Morethan  cash outflows
Ondemand  Within 1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years KRR
RER 1R 1226/ VELE SENE R
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT AT AT FET FET FET
At 31 March 2019 RIZ-NE=A=1-
Trade payables BEENRR 219,710 - - - - 219,710
Other payables and At ERRERESER
accrued liabilites (TefEEesak)
(excluding non-financial
liabilities) 492,114 - - - - 492,114
Lease labilities HEBE - 864,386 688,608 1,213,251 255,873 3,022,118
711,824 864,386 688,608 1,213,251 255,873 3,733,942
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group'’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Total capital of the Group is calculated as “capital and reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company” less total
borrowings, if any. Management considers that the Group’s capital

risk is minimal as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The difference levels have been defined as
follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

3

3.2

3.3

B REREE (&)
EXEBER

A EEOERELE 0 AREASEE

FHESE T AREREERT AR

RIS BB A AR 2 - RS RS

BIEMEREBARIEE SR -

REFRBEEREHE  ARRTER
BEXMATREGRELE - WRFE
BIEA  BATHRA I B A EAREE
&% -

REE 2 BB [ AR R IRE
FrA AR R4 | R s E4asa (0

E)E+# ° E’Q\_’é*jli:ﬂ :_1_7 H X
“E-TFZA=+—0 ERERA
REENERRERBIMEKTE
AF{EfE

TRAMBEEESTRAFEARNE
BTH- - TRERNERNT

. FREEEXRBEETRMS LN
HECREHAB)(F—) -

. W IEMAE —MAERE - Hew]
B (BBl ER) sk (AR
BER) BENEESRBENBA
BH(EZMR) o

. WIHMRBABENTSEENE
E B EeE A E (BIErT8sH
ANE)(E=) -

AREEEAR DA 201920 £k 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im OBl TS R R EE

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2020:

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZEREE

— Listed equity investments - ERRRERE

3 MBERREEE)

3.3 R {EfE (&)
ARER-TTF=A=1T—HEA
FEFFENSRMAESIN T

Level 1 Total
E— #at
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
101,033 101,033

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2019:

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ ©RVEE

— Listed equity investments - LR E

AEBRZZE-NEF=A=+—RHER
FEAENSREESHIINTE

Level 1 Total
F—H 45t
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
154,102 154,102
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3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values less loss allowance of trade and other receivables
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment,
including the consideration of the expected market conditions
and the global health issues, in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in the
business; and (jii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
and amortisable lives and therefore affect the depreciation and
amortisation charges in future periods.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(00 Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward not
recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

No deferred income tax assets are recognised when it is uncertain
whether there are sufficient future taxable profits available before
such tax losses expire where the final outcome of these uncertainties
are different from the estimation, such differences will impact the
carrying amount of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such determination is made.

Judgement is required in determining the provision for withholding
tax on the undistributed retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries. The
Group assesses its needs to make distribution out of its subsidiaries.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised on the undistributed
retained profits that are expected to be distributed by the Group in
the future.

142 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2019/20

(0)

BV S ET & R HE (8)

Frig%i
AEBEBERZEREERBNAAEH
REETE ST B B RS B IE h E R -
AEBRBGFREBESNRINGIEA
mERBELRAVBESLEE ° WA
BAEE I REFTNERE RN RVCE
ZEE AEBEERKeYEFLAR
BT HAM 2 PSR SR RE R TR Ak 4

AEBETAERRBEE L RNELHR
HEETHER - MRHEBNETEHIAE
BE - MER RT BB AR R B BR B )i M| LA $E. 40
HERZE AR

EBBEIEA - MU KRERESEE R
HE R ERTOGE A - B A2 HERIRIT
MIAEE » MBI HEE R RN RZHE
RTARGE - ZERHEFERETH
HEEAEHARET HRMNKREE -

REETEMNBARADEREENZ
BN R R ES - AEHIE - NEERY
MERAFEENEMBATMEL YK - I
AIRAAKEBERED IR ZADEIRE
i A FEREER R A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ill’-.'i

(d)

(e)

(f)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets
The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an active market
are determined by the quoted market prices.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value with changes
in the fair values recognised in consolidated income statement. The
Group obtains independent valuations at least annually. At the end
of each reporting period, the management update their assessment
of the fair value of each property, taking into account the most
recent independent valuations.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and
(iii) including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

(d)

(e)

(f)
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(g) Determination of lease term
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most

relevant:

° If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend),
the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a

significant remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or
not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
lessee.
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Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service
restaurants and institutional catering, casual dining chains, as well as
food processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to allocate resources amongst different segments.
He assesses the business principally from a geographical perspective
including Hong Kong and Mainland China. Segment result as
presented below represents operating profit before fair value
changes on investment properties, depreciation and amortisation
and impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-

AEEIZEEERERNBBRR
KRB ERARRYES N D HFRT °

AEEEEATERBABRE AR
BR UntRES  SREE&RTE
A - AP EEBAR - R T2z
BRERRBEREDEZAFEE

FERBHEARYE  BER&RERE
REEEZREBBREEBERESR
E—MEZNE  MEERE MK

use assets less related depreciation of right-of-use assets — properties;

and finance cost of lease liabilities.

Segment information of the Group for the current year and

KA &iE

AEBARFEN D BEMNLREFN

/ﬁnj‘:u

comparative figures are as follows: g
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB REIR it rEH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE_T-_TF=HA=1—H
IFFE

Total segment revenue 4 "*EHAZ)\ 6,877,088 1,202,574 8,079,662
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) EBoFEUA (BIFED) (3,959) (112,606) (116,565)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2R B INEBUR ) (BT i)

(Note ii) 6,873,129 1,089,968 7,963,097
Represented by timing of RIMAERNRERT

revenue recognition:
— At a point in time - R 6,819,214 1,089,968 7,909,182
— Over time - EXE—BRKERN 53,915 - 53,915

6,873,129 1,089,968 7,963,097

Segment results* (Note iii) RS~ (MisEii) 491,525 77,304 568,829
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 Z2¥&ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
B8 Bl At rEE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Depreciation and amortisation HrEe K se
(excluding depreciation (ERAREE-MEIHE
of right-of-use assets — properties)  E&4h) (316,686) (55,749) (372,435)
Fair value loss on investment ‘EME 7 N EEIE
properties (42,400) - (42,400)
Impairment loss of property, M - BEEREZ
plant and equipment BEEE (12,069) (3,185) (15,254)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 1 FAHEE & 2 i (EE1E (25,180) (15,400) (40,580)
Finance income g A ON 13,912 2,186 16,098
Income tax expense FieHi & (24,712) (15,160) (39,872)
3 See Note 2.2 for details regarding the impact of segment results upon the adoption * BTN E B REER 1618 B DA EE
of HKFRS 16. R EHE - F2REME22 -
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 Z2¥&ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
B =N AEE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#EEZ) (#EEZI) (AEEZI)
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE—_ZT—-—hF=A=+—~H
IFFE
Total segment revenue FEEET PN 7,345,454 1,274,169 8,619,623
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) AEB D FBUA (I EED) (3,500) (122,240) (125,740)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2R B NEBURA) (BT = i)
(Note ii) 7,341,954 1,151,929 8,493,883
Represented by timing of RIRAFERHRRERR
revenue recognition:
— At a point in time - FER B2, 7,284,096 1,151,929 8,436,025
— Over time - EX—EREEA 57,858 = 57,858
7,341,954 1,151,929 8,493,883
Segment results* (Note iii) DABEELE *~ (Misxii) 866,052 158,876 1,024,928
Depreciation and amortisation rE R
(excluding depreciation (ERREE-MEITE
of right-of-use assets — properties)  E4h) (304,708) (51,168) (355,876)
Fair value gain on investment REWMEZ N FERN
properties 19,800 - 19,800
Impairment loss of property, M - BE KRB REEE
plant and equipment (3,529) - (3,529)
Finance income s A 11,646 3,157 14,803
Income tax expense TS & A (104,107) (24,349) (128,456)
* See Note 2.2 for details regarding the impact of segment results upon the adoption * BRARME SV BREER16 R H D IEFEE

of HKFRS 16. MBS - F2HME22 -
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 Z2¥&ERGE)
(i) Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the normal (i) NP IBR Z TN IEE ¥:151B2
course of business. AT o
(ii) The Group has a large number of customers. For the (i) AREBHEERERE - HE_Z
year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no revenue was “EERZFE-NF=ZA=1—
derived from transactions with a single external customer AIEFE - WHEE—IINBERZ
representing 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue. RPEFERERBKA10% 3K
PAEZ WA o
(i) Information of segment results iy oEEFEER
(@  The following items are included in the measure @ MNUTHEBEFALRKEESR
of segment results reviewed by the Chief Executive FERTEEHND BER
Officer of the Group. FTE o
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BH FER AEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAT FET
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-T-TF
E EJE+ E'ﬂ:i/x
Depreciation - right-of-use assets - properties  #& - FREEE - % 781,012 80,770 861,782
Finance cost of lease liabilities MEB BB 87,795 22,743 110,538
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB IR, AEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2019 EENE
Depreciation - right-of-use assets — properties #7% - (FEEE - W% 771,195 77,362 848,557
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEBBEMIBHA 89,462 24,727 114,189
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

(i) Information of segment results (Continued)

(b)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

5 98

¥ ()

Reconciliation of total segment results to total profit (b) HEHEFEEARTAG
before income tax is as follows: MEE BRI -
2020 2019
—E-EH —E—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
(Restated)
(#5&EZl)
Segment results DEEELE 568,829 1,024,928
Depreciation and amortisation E R
(excluding depreciation (ERREEE-MEZTE
of right-of-use assets BRI
— properties) (372,435) (355,876)
Fair value (loss)/gain on B2 N E(BE), %R
investment properties (42,400) 19,800
Impairment loss of property, M - BE REEREESR
plant and equipment (15,254) (3,529)
Impairment loss of right-of-use  {EAEEE 2 REKE
assets (40,580) -
Finance income B RS M 16,098 14,803
Profit before income tax B AR BT Al 114,258 700,126

RREE
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Segment Information (Continued) 5 ZSEEHNGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB Bl At rEE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2020 R-E-_TF=FA=+—H
Segment assets DIREE 5,127,814 885,874 6,013,688
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_T-TF
ZA=+—RHILEE
Segment assets include: DEEERLRE
Additions to non-current assets REFNDEE(ERIAR
(other than financial instruments EEFIBE ERR YD)
and deferred income tax assets) 1,054,482 172,649 1,227,131
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
N A AEHE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(45 E5]) (#Z&2%l|) (#Z &%)
As at 31 March 2019 R=ZE—NF=H=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 5,793,309 959,390 6,752,699
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE—ZT—NF
=A=+—HILFE
Segment assets include: DIEERSRE
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE(EMIAR
(other than financial instruments REFIIBE ERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 915,061 189,867 1,104,928
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T

Segment Information (Continued)

As at 1 April 2018

Segment assets

RN _E—-N\FOA—H
/\*E élé

5 2Z28ERE)

Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB HR B A RE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#FEZ) (#xEZ) (45 &%)
5,794,030 1,182,571 6,976,601

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s non-current assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) that
are located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China amounted
to HK$4,562,078,000 (2019: HK$4,802,823,000) and
HK$616,833,000 (2019: HK$647,964,000) respectively.

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is provided as

follows:

R_ZE_ZTF=ZA=+—08 A&£H
ENEENTEANMNIERDEE
(ERMIARETCHBEEERIN) D5
#4,562,078,0007% ;w( = T — N, F:
4,802,823,0007% 7T ) }616,833,000/% 7T
(ZZ— N4 : 647,964,000 7T) °

BOBEERBEENHRIT -

As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R=ZB-BE RIT-IAF RIZT-N\F

=A=+—H =A=+—-H mA—H

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FEIT

(Restated) (Restated)

(#&&7%l) (#E&E%))

Total segment assets BAKEE 6,013,688 6,752,699 6,976,601

Deferred income tax assets RIEFIIAE 2= 66,294 56,729 72,457
Financial assets at fair value through 3ZAFEIIAHMEE

other comprehensive income WAZ &REE 101,033 154,102 147,978

Current income tax recoverable BNHEA AT Uk B 718 39,743 1,017 3,383

Total assets mEE 6,220,758 6,964,547 7,200,419
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #¥ BMERIERERE

of-Use Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
0% BRERXE fREEE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture land
buildings and other and land
(Noteb) ~ Leasehold  equipment ~ Plantand use right
HHREF improvements FAR  machiney | Subtotal | HELHR  Properties | Subtotal Total
(Wih) HEETRE  EpRE BRRES NGt | TR E Iy 2
HS000 HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOD | HKSOOD | AKSUOO  HKSUOO | HKSUOD HKSO00
FAT FET AT FET 74T FET T TAT T
At 1 April 2018 RZF-\FMA-A
Cost, as previously reported RA(msAI25)) 1246288 1161960 1504565 214537 | 4127350 - - - 430
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16~ REEAETKHE
El1652 (508,159) - - - | (B0B1SY) | 632488 454784 | 5180272 4672113
Cost, as restated WA (HE5) 738129 1161960 1504565 214537 | 3619191 | 632488 4547784 | 5180272 8799463
Accumulated depreciation ZRAERAER
and impairment losses, I ES)
s previously reported (244786)  (702,145)  (1,037466)  (122,028) | (2,106,425) - - - (2106425
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16~ REEAEKHE
El1652 106,404 - - - | 106404 | (151248) (1920,008) | (2071,25) (1964852
Accumulated depreciation ZRNERAEEE
and impaiment losses, (i=5)
a restated (138382)  (702,145) (1,037 466) (122,028 |  (2,000,021) (151,248)  (1,920,008) | (2,071,256)  (4071,277)
Closing net book amount, EREHRE
a restated (ig=5) 599,747 459,815 467,099 92509 | 1,619,170 481240 2627776 | 3109016 4,728,186
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 ¥¥ HERREREAE
of-Use Assets (Continued) BE (&)
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
0% BRERXE fREEE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture land
buildings and other and land
(Noteb) ~ Leasehold  equipment ~ Plantand use right
HHEET improvements AR machiney | Subtotal | BELMR  Properties | Subtotal Tota
(Wih) HEETRE  EpRE BRRES N | THPRE E Iy %
S0 HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSUOO | HKSO00 | HKSO0D  HKSUOD | HKSO0D  HKSTOOD
FAT FET AT FET 74T FET T TAT T
Year ended 31 March 2019 HETENE
A=T-HLER
Opening net book amount, ERESE
3 previously reported (a5 1001500 459815 467,099 90509 | 2020905 - - - 20095
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16~ RANEAHTHE
Ed6 /%2 (401,755) = - - (401,755) 481240 262776 | 3109016 2,707,261
Opening net book amount, ERE (A (HE5))
a restated 599,747 459,815 467,099 92509 | 1,619,170 481240 2621776 | 3109016 4,728,186
Additions, as restated RE (L) = 141,649 135,598 12,936 290,183 = 753,198 753,198 1,043,381
Disposals ik = (8,028) (743) (719 (15,540) - - - (15,540)
Depreciation, as restated HE(8%5]) (17811)  (144753) (159665 (18820) |  (41050) | (14260  (848557) | (862,819  (1,203869)
Impairment e - (1377) (2,15) - (3,529 - - - (3529)
Bichange differences, asrestated X5 (&) (6,354) (5,908) (1975) U | (16978 (1293 (17204 | (18587)  (35,569)
Closing net book amount, as restated  FXEAFE(LE7)) 575,082 441,398 831472 88304 | 153225 465685 2515123 | 2980808 4513064
At 31 March 2019 ey 2
=f=T=1
Cost, as restated WA (%5]) T30 1213061 1547000 20,000 | 3708631 | 630817 5283688 | 5914505 9623136
Accumulated depreciation ZRNERAESE
and impaiment osses, as restated (A5 (152268)  (771,763)  (1,115,548) (136,796) | (2,176,375 (165,132 (2768565 | (2933697)  (5,110072)
Closing net book amount, as restated  FXEAFE(LZ7)) 575,082 441,398 831472 88304 | 153225 465685 2515123 | 2980808 4513064
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #¥ BMERIERERE

of-Use Assets (Continued) BE (&)
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
EN T fERgEE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture land
buildings and other and land
(Noteb) Leasehold  equipment  Plant and use right
KBS improvements AR machinery | Subtotal | EE1HE  Properties | Subtotal Total
(Wih) BERTRE  AHRE BERER M| THERE S it g
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00  HKSUOD |  HKSO00 | HKSUOO  HKSOD |  HKSU00  HKSUOD
7T 7L 7L 71 FET 71 FEL 71 FET
Year ended 31 March 2020 BEo30%F
ZA=T-ALER
Opening net book amount, ERESE

3 previously reported (a3 955% 441398 8140 84304 | 192,710 - - - 1810

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16~ RAEAHTHE
E86 /%2 (390,454) - - - (390,454) 465,685 2515123 | 2980808 2,590,354
Opening net book amount, ERE (A (HE5))

a restated 575,082 441,398 431412 84304 | 1,532,256 465685 2515123 | 2980808 4,513,064
Additions hE - 205,961 222970 57,789 486,720 - 697,945 697,945 1,184,665
Disposals hE = (9,799) (10,362) (205) (20,366) - - - (20,366)
Termination of lease RiHEE - - - - - - (39,909) (39,909) (39,909)
Depreciation e (17674) (147330  (172,881) (19897) | (357,784) (14283)  (861,782) | (876,025 (1,233,809
Impairment A - (1391) (7,863) - (15,254) - (40,580) (40,580) (55,834)
Exchange differences B (5,678) (6,578) (2,7%) (1,689) (16,741) (1131) (15,869) (17,000 (33,741)
Closing net book amount EREREE 551,730 476,259 460,540 120302 | 1,608,831 450311 2254928 | 2,705239 4,314,070
At 31 March 2020 N-%2-%

=h=1-H
Cost i 77564 1293206 1,642,168 269917 | 3,922,855 630817 58830668 | 6514485 10,437,340
Accumulated depreciation ZENERNESE

and impairment losses (165834)  (816,947)  (1,181,628)  (149,615) | (2314,024) | (180,506)  (3,628,740) | (3,809,246)  (6,123,270)

Closing net book amount EREREE 551,730 476,259 460,540 120302 | 1,608,831 450311 2254928 | 2,705239 4,314,070
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #¥ BMERIERERE

of-Use Assets (Continued) BE (&)

(@)  Depreciation expenses of HK$1,207,421,000 (2019 restated: (@) WTERX1,207,421,000 (=
HK$1,178,833,000) and HK$26,388,000 (2019 restated: T—NFLEF :1,178,833,000
HK$25,036,000) have been charged to cost of sales and 770 ) % 26,388,000 T (= F
administrative expenses, respectively (Note 23), while — N F £ E %I : 25,036,000
impairment losses of HK$55,834,000 (2019: HK$3,529,000) L) EDRIFFAHEEK AR KT
have been charged to other income and other (losses)/gains, B E A (K E23) WTEJ% b=
net (Note 22). 55,834,000 T( —Z T — L F -

3,529,0007%8 7T ) & aJr A H b h
AREME(EE) % F (M
22)°

(b)  The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows: (b) AEBTHMREFSFEAT :

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R-ZB-Z2F RIZ-NE RIZE—N\F

=HA=+—H =A=+—8H MH—H
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(#€&E3l) C=27)

Net book value: BRTEFE
Freehold land KA SERE T 14,811 14,811 14,811
Buildings B¥ 536,919 560,271 584,936
551,730 575,082 599,747
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
of-Use Assets (Continued)

Q) This note provides information for the leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position

Mk BMERKEREME
'E (&)

(0)

It F R R AN SR B R AR A BV 7E
&8 -

()  RERBFFHIRILE R
B & FH

A MBI RESIAT

shows the following amounts related to leases: HEEEHNERE
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R-ZBE-EF R2—NEF RIZ—N\F
=A=+—H =A=1+—H mH—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(FEEZ) (FEEZl|)
Right-of-use assets ERERE
Leasehold land and TRE L4 & 1t fsF PR A4
land use right 450,311 465,685 481,240
Properties IES 2,254,928 2,515,123 2,627,776
2,705,239 2,980,808 3,109,016
Lease liabilities HEEE
Non-current FETRED 1,845,279 2,017,541 2,052,769
Current mE 754,785 773,588 834,453
2,600,064 2,791,129 2,887,222
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #¥ BMERIERERE

of-Use Assets (Continued) =946 D)
(0  This note provides information for the leases where the (0 UEMERHASEREAHEANH
Group is a lessee. (Continued) EER - (B)
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) MNEEERXRTRRIE
income statement 8
2020 2019
—EBCEE —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET

Depreciation of right-of-use assets & E ZITE

Leasehold land and land use right FA& £ & + Hb {5 A4 14,243 14,262
Properties )3 861,782 848,557
876,025 862,819

Interest expenses MEFX
(included in finance costs) (FFABA TSR AR) 110,538 114,189

Expense relating to short term HEHEERHRCER

leases (included in cost of sales)  (FEASHERA) 22,737 15,606
Expenses relating to variable BEARAHEREZ

lease payments not included in ~ AJEFAERTR - WAEIE

lease liabilities (included in EHEBENEHRCER

cost of sales) (FFASHEKA) 49,970 71,093
Leases entered by the Company were generally with RRARAEINLZ2HE—REB
lease term of 1 to 9 years with renewal option. 1E9FME - WAEEE

e

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, BHE_Z_ZTFR_-F
total cash outflows for leases were HK$935,542,000 —NWEF=ZA=+—HLHF
and HK$941,162,000, respectively. B HEREREEED

Bl /935,542,000 7T &
941,162,000 7 7T ©
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7 Investment Properties 7 BEYx
2020 2019
—ECIEF —T-NEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FNEEER 628,000 663,300
Fair value (loss)/gain (Note 22) AFE(EEB),wh (FizE22) (42,400) 19,800
Disposal (Note 30(c)) & (BI5E30(0) - (55,100)
End of the year FREEER 585,600 628,000
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties: MR EMER BT HERNSH
2020 2019
“ECEF —T-NEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T
Rental income e A 21,312 24,468
Direct operating expenses EEHSRAZYEZ
from properties that generate BEERZEER
rental income (867) (1,543)
20,445 22,925

As at 31 March 2020, the group had no un-provided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2019: Nil)

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by CBRE Limited (the “Valuer”), to determine the fair
value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
Fair value (loss)/gain has been charged/credited to other income and
other (losses)/gains, net (Note 22), respectively.
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|||l-.ﬁ
7 Investment Properties (Continued) 7 BEYx(E)
The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair THRAIBBEERZAFESITIREDE

value, by valuation method.

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2020 using

R-B-BF=A=+—HZAVEFEFXEH
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
EEEEREER Hity AT & EMN FERTEEMN
% EWIRE ERWAE ERWAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fiat (B—#%) (B=#) (B=4)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET

Recurring fair value measurements & EMHEAF(EE
Investment properties: KEME -

— Shops — Hong Kong - - BB - - 585,600

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2019 using

RZE-—NF=A=1T—RAZATEFEH\ER
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
RAREEESRE HAb I #RE FERTEIERE
M5 FHHRE BERBAE BERBAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
et (B—H) (B4 (B=4)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFrET T T

Recurring fair value measurements ~ &HMEQFETE
Investment properties: KEME

— Shops — Hong Kong - HH - B - - 628,000

AEBBRANEN A R EHER

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of

fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in EZBERAERERE  BRATEER
circumstances that caused the transfer. HEEA RE -
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. FRB—R BLBARFE=LEHE

B -
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 March 2020
were determined on the basis of a valuation by a qualified valuer in
accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards 2017 published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, which is also compliant with
the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the International Valuation Standards
(IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset
or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under the direct comparison method, fair value of the investment
property is derived from comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved
by the property under consideration. The most significant impact
into this valuation approach is price per square meter. The higher the
price per square meter, the higher the fair value of the investment
properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique with that of prior
year.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by
independent valuer and holds discussion of the valuation processes
and results are held with the independent qualified valuer once a
year for financial reporting purpose.
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8 Intangible Assets 8 HEEEE
Other
intangible
Goodwiill assets Total
BE HtEFEE 4 zE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 W=ZT—/\FmA—H
Cost AR 1,350 59,371 60,721
Accumulated amortisation RAEHE S MR EE R
and impairment losses (246) (56,424) (56,670)
Closing net book amount FIREETEFE 1,104 2,947 4,051
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE T NWF=A=1+—BItFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,104 2,947 4,051
Amortisation expense (Note (a)) #3528 (Mt (a)) - (564) (564)
Disposals HeE - (1,577) (1,577)
Exchange differences EH =5 - (58) (58)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 1,104 748 1,852
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-—NF=H=1+—H
Cost AR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation RIRE S MR EE R
and impairment losses (246) (57,046) (57,292)
Closing net book amount FREETEFE 1,104 748 1,852
Year ended 31 March 2020 BHE-_ZT-_ZF=A=1+—HILFE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 1,104 748 1,852
Amortisation expense (Note (a)) 4% /A (M3t (a) - (408) (408)
Exchange differences EH =5 - (23) (23)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 1,104 317 1,421
At 31 March 2020 RN—_E-_EF=H=+—H
Cost AR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation RIEE S MR EEE
and impairment losses (246) (57,477) (57,723)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFAE 1,104 317 1,421
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(a)

(b)

(c)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$408,000 (2019: HK$564,000) has been
charged to costs of sales.

Other intangible assets mainly represent franchise rights with useful
lives of 5 to 20 years.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified according to country of operation.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below.

Hong Kong BB

(a)

(b)

(9]

BREE (&)

408,000/ 70 ( == — JL4&F : 564,000

TC) 2B E AR AT ASHERA -
EMEREETEREEFE  EFA
FHASE204F -
EERERIER
R NREAE B ESER (RIER e
EEBMHR) Di
BMESENDIREZ RO -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FETT
1,104 1,104

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the
higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and i) value in use determined
using the discounted cash flow method. The calculations of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined
with reference to their fair value less costs to sell.

162 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2019/20

RBeEEBEMRAREE R () R F
TE/@Z&%@Z$&(II) ABLIRIA &M EIERT
B2ERABEUABRSERE)ETE -
REBREEBUMHAIRE SR
BEATERLDERANFE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im OBl TS R R EE

9 Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2020:

Name of subsidiary
B AT B

Asia Pacific Catering
Corporation Limited

RERRBRAA

Barson Development Limited
BHERARAT

Bloomcheer Limited
HEARAH

Brilliantwin Limited
AR AR

Café de Coral Assets Limited

Café de Coral Central

Processing Limited

Café de Coral (China) Limited
ARE(FE)BRAT

Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
SRS B 3L
RS2

Hong Kong
&R
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands

B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Denmark
2

Issued/
registered
capital
B8T/

o it AR 2

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T
HK$10,000

10,000 % 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

Us$1
[E

HK$20
20/87T

HK$92,291,880
92,291,880 7T

DKK 125,000
125,000 fH25 52 BB

9 MEBAF

TRIIR-_E-_ZEF=A=+—HH

TEMHBAREH

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fifs et
4738 51 BOL!
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

AREEEFR AR 201920 Fik

Principal activities

Catering

R

Property investment
MERE

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Investment holding
REZRK

Food processing
RYEE

Investment holding
REZRK

Investment holding
REZRK
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MELTE)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary FEM RSB 3Z B®1T/ FE Fr#B#  Principal activities
MEARERE RASE it 2 aEfERA RGER B! EEEK
Café de Coral Development British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited' RBERES 1%1T  E@® REER
Café de Coral Group Limited Hong Kong HK$148,923,550  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RRELFBRAT] BB 148,923,550 /87T Ll R
Café de Coral (Guangzhou) The People’s HK$21,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited Republic of China 21,000,000 77T KR
ARE(BMN) RmBRAR ("PRC")
i A RHAME
(ThE)
Café de Coral (Macau) Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 70%  Catering
AR ORM) BERAF] P 300,0002FT & KR
City Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
Bz AR AR B 200,000  Ei@ MERE
Dongguan Asia Pacific PRC HK$7,400,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 7,400,000 7T KR
REZRHRARAT
Dongguan Continental PRC RMB39,186,061 - 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited 2lE0 AR 39,186,061 7T BYIEE

REBERRARLQF

Eldoon Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
B 1,000,00087L E@ R
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Exo Enterprises Limited

Foshan Café de Coral Catering
Company Limited
BILARERRBR AR

Gateway City Limited

Global Force Limited
BRBEARAR

Grand Seasons (Central)
Food and Beverages
Caterers Company Limited

Greatpower Kingdom Limited
AEBEFARAF

Greenwise Limited
MEER AT

Guangzhou Asia Pacific
Catering Company Limited
BINZEHRRARAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FMARL R
RiEEHE

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
i
Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
G

Issued/
registered
capital
BERT/
ERlITIEN

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 77T

HK$6,000,000
6,000,000 77T
HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$12,466,446
12,466,446 78T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T
HK$12,000,000

12,000,000 7T

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 87T

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000 % 7T

9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
BiEs] P AR AR
i EnE bl BAL!
Ordinary 100%
=8
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
3
Ordinary 100%
3
Ordinary 100%
=
Ordinary 100%
e
Ordinary 100%
e
- 100%

AREEEFR AR 201920 Fik

Principal activities
TEXRE

Catering
#R

Catering
#R
Catering
%A

Catering
R

Catering
#A
Catering
R

Catering
R

Catering
R
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MELTE)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary FEM RSB 3Z B®1T/ FE Fr#B#  Principal activities
MEARERE RASE it 2 aEfERA RGER B! EEEK
Guangzhou Café de Coral PRC US$23,500,000 - 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited i 23,500,000 % 7T RYEE
BEMARLERmEEAR AR
Honour Congee & Noodles Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Food Limited B 1,000,00087T  EiB@ KR
ERERMAERAT
Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering ~ PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 3,200,000 7T R
BMZEHRRARAE
Invol Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$6,125,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
R ERERERAR (incorporation)  6,125,000/87C  Ei& MERE
PRC (operation)
B (ML)
FE ()
Jiangmen Café de Coral PRC HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 5,000,000 7T KR
IFIRREHRRAR AR
Kamstar International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
TERBBERRAT B 1,000,00087T  Ei@ KR
Kater International Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
ErEBIFR AR A A B 1,000,00087T  EiB@ KR
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MELTE)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary FEM AR S BR 3Z B®1T/ FE Fr# B #  Principal activities
MEARERE RASE it 2 aEfERA  ROER B! EEXEK
Kolink Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of premises
Bl b EBR AR BB 28T E@ space
MEMELE
Luckyview Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of properties
HREEARAF BB 18T TR HEME
Maradona Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
BH 2087 L@ REZER
Paramount Success Limited Hong Kong HK$14,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
RKARAT BH 14,000,000  E@ REZER
Perfect Plan International British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBERHE 16T @ REER
Real King Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
B BR AR BB 5,000,000/ &Ll KR
Regal Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$8,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BERRERAA] BB 8,000,000 L@ KR
Scanfoods Limited Hong Kong HK$2,100,000  Ordinary 100%  Food trading
IR RRARAR BB 2,100,000 &l BEmE 5
Shenzhen Café de Coral PRC HK$12,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited 12,000,000 77T 7928

RNRKERRBRAF
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PRC (operation)
&8 (GEARL)
B ()
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MELTE)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary FEM RSB 3Z B®1T/ FE Fr#B#  Principal activities
MEARERE RASE it 2 aEfERA RGER B! EEEK
Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering  PRC HK$32,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 32,000,000787C KR
A BRR AR AR
Silver Weal Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RAEPEBRAR] 5 1,000,00087T  Ei@ KR
Sparango Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
5 6,000,000 &A@ KR
The Spaghetti House Hong Kong HK$10,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Restaurants Limited B 10,000,000/  Ei@ REER
EHERRAR
Very Nice Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$17,025,000  Class A2 100%  Catering
HEBRBARRE BE 17,025,000  A%EHI2 #BR
HK$5,675,000  Class B2
567500087 BRI
Vogue Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
BAATEMNER AT 5 1T ERE REER
Weli Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BZARRA 5 1,000,00087T  Ei@ KR
Winfast Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
KEEBER AR (incorporation)/ 10,0007 @& MERE
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Worldway Limited
pNERE] YN

Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited
BEEHRRERAH

Zhongshan Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited
PIUARRERRBR LA

Zhuhai Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited
KEARERRAR AR

g Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have voting rights, while holders of class
B shares have no voting rights.

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FMARL R
RiEEHE

Macau
SBFT

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
G

PRC
i

Issued/
registered
capital
BERT/
ERlITIEN

MOP300,000
300,000 27T

HK$6,701,560
6,701,560 87T
HK$2,872,100
2,872,100/ 7T

HK$1,300,000

1,300,000 87T

HK$8,000,000
8,000,000 77T

Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have priority over those of class B shares
on certain shareholders’ rights.

The official names of the companies incorporated in PRC are in Chinese. English
translation is for reference only.

° All of the companies incorporated in PRC are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held'
Fiks PR in
B 10 48 5l Bak?
Ordinary 100%
Class A3 100%
ARERI?
Class B?
BAEAI3
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities
TEXRE

Property investment

MERE

Catering and property
investment
HKREMERE

Catering
R

Catering
#R

i Café de Coral Development Limited 2N /A &)
HERSE - IEHMHBAR REEEEE -

: HRIMIE A T ARG 2 H A A ZE TR
FARFIERBIARIRIA 2 B AFEAE 2

7 o

3 WEKERRAERRD ZHEARERR
# o T BARRIRRD 2 5B AN AR AE o

¢ REPBEEMEAZNABZEELBERS
N o HIGRREHRSE -
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12
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Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 10 ZEAFEIAHME2EBA
Other Comprehensive Income ZERMEE
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income EAFEINAEMZEHKAZEREE
include the following: BIELATIAR -
2020 2019
—B-EF —T—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Listed investments denominated in HK$ & (LABTEHE)
— Market value of listed equity - FikEESE
securities 101,033 154,102
The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on their EREREN QA FEREBERTSH
current bid prices in an active market. WITEHEE -
Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11 FRBEMNRERZRS
Non-current prepayments and deposits mainly comprise rental and FRBEMNRERZETERFEHEE R
utility deposits and prepayments for property, plant and equipment. IKEBREIZERME  BEREZEOTER
I o
Substantially all of the non-current prepayments and deposits are BABHIERBTENRIB RIRS B
denominated in HK$ or RMB. TLHRARBEHE o
Inventories 12 FE
Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores and are FEXZERERY R ERD - RKAE

stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$2,258,184,000 during the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: HK$2,334,759,000).
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:

13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments

and Deposits

13 EXREMEWKRE  BAF

MERZRE
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018

R-ZB-EFE RZE-NF RZIZE—N\F

=A=+—H =A=+—H mH—H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET FETL

(Restated) (Restated)

(#EEZI) (FEEZ)

Trade receivables S REERIA 51,057 72,051 66,306
Less: Loss allowance B IR (875) (1,182) (1,045)
Trade receivables — net (Note a) B EBCFERIA (HiEa) 50,182 70,869 65,261
Other receivables (Note b) H b Uk iRIAE (FisEb) 116,336 94,217 126,205
166,518 165,086 191,466

Prepayments and deposits TBRRIE R iRE 60,920 38,099 35,561
227,438 203,185 227,027

(a) The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.

The Group also grants a credit period between 30 to 90

days to certain customers for the provision of the Group's

institutional catering services, sales of merchandise for the

Group’s food manufacturing business and its franchisees.

(a)

AEEUEFPZHENRER S
RE - AEETHKT=1TENT
REEH TR REAKEKE
BRI - HEAKERMEE
FH5 R 2 BE MR RTNEER
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 13 € XRHMEWERIE - (Y
and Deposits (Continued) MIERES (&)
(b)  Other receivables primarily comprise value-added tax (b)y HMEWERIEF EBHER U EE
recoverables, receivables from a security logistic company B - RELWm A 78 E hE U
and certain structured deposit notes with PRC banks. As at RERETHEBETREE 1)
31 March 2020, the Group had RMB denominated bank FHARFBEAMIET R_E =
structured deposit notes amounting to HK$10,918,000 EF=A=1+—H AKEEEFH
(2019: HK$29,156,000) which are principal guaranteed, and ARG EZRARITEEE
with maturities of 3 months (2019: 3 months) at an effective FRZE$10,918,000/8 T (==&
interest rate of approximately 2.3% per annum (2019: — AL 29,156,000/ 7T ) © £
Ranging from 2.7% to 2.8% per annum). RAEA(ZZE—NF 3
A) BEBRFMNELN23%(=ZF
—NEFE NFR27%E2.8%) °
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: EEEUARIENRE ST T -
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R-ZBE-ZEF RZZE-—NEF RZZE—N\EF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H mA—H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET FET
0 - 30 days £2=+1+H 23,754 49,724 43,600
- 60 days =+—HEA~TH 7,070 11,201 11,529
— 90 days ~NT—BZEATHE 9,272 5,581 7,052
91 — 365 days N+—BZE=A,1+HH 10,084 4,320 3,183
Over 365 days BE=A/,1ThH 877 1,225 942
51,057 72,051 66,306
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Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 13 & xR HMEWIRE - FHS
and Deposits (Continued) MIERES (&)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure REBEERBEASVBRESENIBIH
provision for loss allowance which uses a lifetime expected loss FRrEEERE  2EBEREHMEE
allowance for all trade receivables. Details on the calculation of loss FRWRIERAFEREREERME
allowance is set out in Note 3.1(d). The creation and release of loss BB 2 T E R IEE A MIEE3.1(d) » #7
allowance of trade receivables have been included in administrative BRI ) & F R W ARTEE BB A A
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged ANGFEBRRAZITRER - £RER
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no BRI B — R e R A D
expectation of recovering additional cash. The Directors are of the HINRBEMIE - EFRREFREYH
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible trade receivables MERE AREEWRE 2 & EEKRBEED
has been made in the consolidated financial statements. TOBME -
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and deposits R EFARESE - &% RHE A BRI
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. B ReNREEAOBENEATE -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are REER) EEREMEWRRIE 2 BREE
denominated in the following currencies: RIATEBEE
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R=ZBZBFE RIZT-IF RIZT-N\F
=A=t+—H =—A=+—H mA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT F&T FHIT
HK$ BT 117,506 97,302 113,553
RMB AR 48,804 67,782 77,898
Others HAtb 208 2 15
166,518 165,086 191,466

AREEEFR AR 201920 Fik
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14 Bank Deposits With Maturity Over Three 14 EB=EAZHBENRITHE

Months And Cash And Cash Equivalents MERRERFAESEEEH
(@) Bank deposits with maturity over three (a) EB=1EAZIH HWRITER
months
As at 31 March 2020, bank deposits with maturity over three RZZEZTF=A=+—H HBiBE=E
months bore average interest rate of 1.25% (2019: 2.63%) per ARBBE/MNETERNFGERNRE A
annum. 1.25% (ZZ—N%F : 2.63%) °
Bank deposits with maturity over three months: 838 = & A 2 H A A IR1T1F 3K
2020 2019
—B-TF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHIT
US dollar e - 19,527
Canadian dollar mEKXIT 1,641 2,338
1,641 21,865
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) RERREZFEIEE
2020 2019
HK$ '000 HK$°000
FHET FEIT
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHRE 152,377 126,100
Short-term bank deposits RHASRTTIE AR 192,695 709,437
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 345,072 835,537
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 3.6% RBRRITERZERFMNER3.6% (=
(2019: 2.2%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity T—NF :22%) ZEFERZ2FHE
of 52 days (2019: 57 days). HAAS2B(ZZE—hH4F :57H) o
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14 Bank Deposits With Maturity Over Three
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Continued)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following

(b)

iﬁ?ﬂ 18 A ZIH B rYR1T 17
RRBEERREEEHERE
(&)

BekBESEER ()
ReRRSSEBEUTHIEHHE -

currencies:
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ 236,624 686,951
RMB 63,694 117,172
US dollar 22,751 2,854
Canadian dollar 610 911
Others 21,393 27,649
345,072 835,537

The Group’s cash and bank balances of HK$59,758,000 (2019:
HK$113,150,000) were denominated in RMB and were deposited
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies and remittance of these deposits out
of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

AEBUARBEFENR S RIET
%5 #259,758,0000% ;t( = & — fL & -
113,150,000 % 7T ) 17 B A8 A B A 4 3R
T BREAARBTENERAZBA
SN K BB P B ZE 38 <P AR B BT AR M Y
HNEE HIIH57 7E B Ak fpl o
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 15 EB#hXE&TBANEERRIERK
Provision for Long Service Payments B
2020 2019
— —hEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Retirement benefit liabilities BARERAEE
Defined contribution schemes (Note a)  REftzst2l (Mizta) (13,750) (15,891)
Defined benefit scheme (Note b) HERAGTE (FzEb) (10,346) (13,459)
Provision for long service payments REARG @ BH (ko)
(Note ¢) (48,778) (45,258)
Defined contribution schemes (a) HREMFKETE

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered by
an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees makes monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the

completion of service in the relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the schemes at various applicable rates of monthly
salary that are in accordance with the local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has defined contribution scheme
payable of HK$13,750,000 (2019: HK$15,891,000), which were
recorded in other creditors and accrued liabilities.
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement under the scheme is
calculated based on the final salary of the staff and the length of
service with the Group. The scheme assets are held independently of
the Group's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group and the
employees in accordance with qualified independent actuary’s
recommendation from time to time on the basis of periodic
valuations.

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

15

(b)

RASEIEER RIIRS
=8 (&)

SERAEE

AEB ST REBRERERMG
gl o ZATEIMENESERERRAS
BAZ &RFE MERGFERAE - 5
B AENRBYGEEEEESRNZA
SEEESRRA °

MErEIRAKERESRAERB IR
BENERN EREENRFRE 2 EZETE
2 HRERET TR o

R ERAFEETHBYL A ERBE
EE (BE) ER A RHEAEELME
B AETHE-

The net liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of EHREHBERARAERZFAEET
financial position are determined as follows: S NEE -
2020 2019
—EEH —NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Present value of funded obligations EEEMEZRE (87,591) (95,911)
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEC A AFE 77,245 82,452
Net liabilities in the consolidated REMBIRRARAFEE
statement of financial position (10,346) (13,459)
Remeasurement on defined benefit EFMFFEREEMNEE (FIERZRIN
obligation excluding interest expense 3,845 (1,070)
Remeasurement return on plan assets ~ &E#zt 2521 EE 2 B3R (2,999) 58
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15 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 15 EAKE&ENEBR RHIRKE

Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBAGFEI(E)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as follows: REBMNEBEENZ ST -
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FANEERR (95,911) (114,438)
Current service cost IR B BRI AR (1,978) (2,437)
Interest cost BB (1,356) (1,831)
Employee contributions EEHR (568) (671)
Remeasurement on defined benefit B ETERATEFETE
scheme 3,845 (1,070)
Benefits paid EENE =R 8,377 24,536
End of the year FREE R (87,591) (95,911)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: FFEIEENATEEENT ¢
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Beginning of the year FHEEER 82,452 95,691
Interest income FBUA 1,186 1,534
Employee contributions EEHX 568 671
Employer contributions {EEH 4,431 9,052
Administrative expenses paid Mt EIEEX N ZITHER
from plan assets (16) (18)
Remeasurement on return on plan assets &E#zt 25HE1EE 2 B (2,999) 58
Benefits paid SRR (8,377) (24,536)
End of the year FREH 77,245 82,452

178 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2019/20



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im o Al IS IR B 5t

15 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 15 EAKE&ENEBR RHIRKE

Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBAGFEI(E)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as E FEERRAER I SBAT
follows:
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Current service cost IR A RS A4 1,978 2,437
Interest cost B A 1,356 1,831
Interest income on plan assets STEIEE 2 F B (1,186) (1,534)
Administrative expenses THER 16 18
Total, included in employee benefit H®E - BB EEEET
expenses (Note 28) FsZ A (ff3E28) 2,164 2,752
Of the total amount debited to the consolidated income statement, Bt A AGEBaiN@ETR e eREE
approximately HK$1,135,000 (2019: HK$1,489,000) and EXEARITHER - 5 5491,135,000
HK$1,029,000 (2019: HK$1,263,000) have been included in cost of B (=—ZE— N4 1,489,000 1) &
sales and administrative expenses, respectively. 1,029,000 7T (ZZF— N5 : 1,263,000
/’%E)
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: IRz T 2REREBNT
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NEF
Discount rate BhIR = #%0.6% p.a. HF1.5% p.a.
Expected rate of future salary increases AR 2 TBHAE & =R HF54.0% p.a. BF45% p.a.
The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in the FHREEHBRABRKRERNATERIE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain of Ez BT E Az 846,0008 L (= F
HK$846,000 (2019: a loss of HK$1,012,000). — N5 : E5181,012,00087T) °
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 15 RBRARETENEEBERRBKRE
Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBAGFEI(E)
The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation Eﬁ SXHBARKERNATRENE
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income F2 Rt EFEt 2 AE1833,546,0008
was a loss of HK$33,546,000 (2019: a loss of HK$34,392,000). TT(ZZ—NF : E51834,392,00087T) °
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan FEHIEERBNASEEERS L
assets are as follows: T
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
Equity instruments fxET A 19.0% 14.5%
Debt instruments BEETH 68.7% 76.0%
Other assets Hih&EE 12.3% 9.5%
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (“DBO") to changes AERAIBEEHBREBNGRES
in the assumption is:
Impact on DBO
HAEEANEENTE
Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Assumption BRE& R Z B R IE N BRI
Discount rate ARIR = 0.5% Decreased Increased
by 1.9% by 2.0%
W 1.9% #N2.0%
Salary increase rate g ==X 0.5% Increased Decreased
by 1.9% by 1.9%
#hN1.9% WA 1.9%
Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme by the HE-T-_—F=—A=+—HItFE"

Group for the year ending 31 March 2021 are approximately
HK$3,348,000.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is
4.0 years.
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(b)

(@)

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 15 EBAEEINEERRIRE
Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBAGFEI(E)
Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in the next R_ZE_ZEF=A=+—HBHRERAN
ten years on 31 March 2020: BEERARRTFREHRARZEAB DT -
Between Between
Less than a 1-2 2-5 Next 5
year years years years
—F R —ZmME —EHFE T—AEFH
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FHT FHET FET
Defined benefit obligation REBNEE 12,785 11,290 39,581 23,607
Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is exposed to a AEEFBARETRMNETERZIERE
number of risks. The defined benefit scheme offers a defined benefit b o REBAGTERH—BRFKER
depending on members’ length of service and their salary at the time 765 6F B B 150 S5 HAO B BB A ) 365 BN 1 7 A SR
of leaving the firm. Active members contribute 2.5% of their salary RN o JEERAK BARIZEFENEY 2.5% A
to the scheme, while the Group bears the remainder cost of funding sHEIMER - MAEE B EEZTEIAE
the scheme. The scheme exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as HRER - LAl AR EEERITXER
interest rate risk, salary risk, and investment risk. %~ FENRER % E R R EBE R o
Provision for long service payments (0 RIOARBEEE

The Group provides long service payments for its employees in
respect of long service payments on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was valued by
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using
the projected unit credit method.

AEERBEEBSEBIROIES THR T
RIFTEAETIMNRPREETFET -

HRARGERBEEEHBILAERE
HESt (F8) AR ARFKAER EM
EERPEAETHE -
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Provision for long service payments
(Continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is determined as follows:

15

(0)

RASEIEER RIIRS
=8 (&)

REPRE B (&)

EHEAEPHRARARRZBEWT

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FEIT

Liability in the consolidated statement — 4R& A REAZ BfE
of financial position (48,778) (45,258)
Re-measurement on plan liabilities STEBECETE (3,621) (11,381)

Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position are as follows:

EREUBARARAERBEZ SN
B

2020 2019

—E-ZF —E-NF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Beginning of the year FYER (45,258) (34,990)

Current service cost A RS A (2,131) (2,088)

Interest cost A B A (656) (607)
Remeasurement of provision KRG e BE T2

of long service payments (3.621) (11,381)

Benefits paid EENE =R 2,888 3,808

End of the year FREER (48,778) (45,258)
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 15 RBRARETENEEBERRBKRE
Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
Provision for long service payments () RERBSEE (&)
(Continued)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as TEiReEnRERZSB/AT ¢
follows:
2020 2019
HK$ '000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Current service cost 88 RIFA AR 2,131 2,088
Interest cost BB 656 607
Total, included in employee benefit R EeREEEERENFAXA
expenses (Note 28) (FfFzE28) 2,787 2,695

Of the total charge, HK$2,787,000 (2019: HK$2,695,000) have
been included in administrative expenses.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate AhIR

Expected rate of future salary increases Rl 2 T8 H1E & &

4% W 2,787,000 T( ZF — A
F 12,695,000 70) BIEEITRE RN ©

FIERAZ FERERERNT
2020 2019
0.6% p.a. 1.5% p.a.
B50.6% BF1.5%
4.0% p.a. 4.5% p.a.
5F4.0% BF45%

The remeasurement of provision of long service payments recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a loss
of HK$3,621,000 (2019: HK$11,381,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long service payments
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$48,174,000 (2019: HK$44,553,000).

FAE2EmBABRRAERN R RS
SEBIE 2 BEH T E AE1E3,621,0005
T (=ZF— R4 : 11,381,000 7T) °

EiRA 2ERARERAERN KRS

S RHE 2 Bt EHI=E AE1848,174,000
BT (ZZE— N4 : 44,553,000787T) ©
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 15 EBAEEINEERRIRE
Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
Provision for long service payments () RERBSEE (&)
(Continued)
Expected contributions to the long service payment obligation by ﬁA?fEfﬁFEéﬁﬁi/i\ﬁﬁ)Eiiﬁ‘?% CAEE
the Group for the year ending 31 March 2020 after the offset the REBE_Z_TF=-A=+—HILEFE
accrued MPF account balance is approximately HK$3,392,000. EES T e REBRBESEEHRD
/443,392,000 7T °
The weighted average duration of the long service payment RGBT 2 MEFHFERT.0
obligation is 7.0 years. F o
Expected maturity analysis of long service payment obligation in the RZZEZZTF=A=1T—HZEHRE
next ten years on 31 March 2020: SEERRKRTFE 2 FBRRNEBE S -
Between Between
Less than a 1-2 2-5 Next 5
year years years years
—F LR —ZME “ZhEF T—EEFH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHT FHET
Long service payment obligation KERZEEET 3,392 4,344 14,290 18,184
The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong Kong BIBEEBERBED  WERARGSET
Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long service payment HAEBRGIEREHRGFEZEELS

obligation exceeds the employer balance in the Hong Kong
mandatory defined contribution plan. It exposes the Group to
actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment
risk of the Company's MPF scheme’s constituent funds.
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16

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of financial

16 ELERHIE

EARERVATRENAGRBHIRE
EEFIEAEEREE  RMEERAY
KA —HBRHE - AIREHRIBEERE
EANRI BARIR S » SR M BN R AR
THRBR(RELESEERETE) W

position: g
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
REZZBZZFF RIZE-F RZZE-N\F
=RA=+—H =A=+—H mH—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(#5E2) (A& &E2)
Deferred income tax assets R 12 {8l A 18 1 Bl #) 3R AT
to be recovered after 12 months HIBEEE 66,294 56,729 72,457
Deferred income tax liabilities 1P 12 B A& BT et
to be settled after 12 months HIEEE (29,410) (27,659) (30,957)
36,884 29,070 41,500
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EEBIE (F&)
Movements in net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) are as FEERBEE, (AR ZEHNT
follows:
2020 2019
HK$ '000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(Restated)
(4= &%)
Beginning of the year, FEEER (RFEZ27)
as originally presented 29,070 (3,014)
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNEENBHREER6 2T E - 44,514
Beginning of the year, as restated FHEEsR (K ES) 29,070 41,500
Deferred taxation credited/(charged) FELRABRIRETA (Fk) 2
to the consolidated income FEIEFIA (FiaE25)
statement (Note 25) 7.864 (12,313)
Exchange differences PEH =58 (50) (117)
End of the year FRER 36,884 29,070
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16

Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

Decelerated tax

IEFER IR ()

AEE FNETHEEER BB
B (5 Bl — OB A AR 2 A B3 A1)

T

Lease liabilities,

depreciation Tax losses provision and others Total
R ETE g HESE BERHML e
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

—EF-BF ZFNF SESRF TR
HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
i FET FET FET

Beginning of the year, 44

as originally (REZ3)
presented 9,673 6,771 23,150 44,716
Impact of adoption ~ FRANEEITS
of HKFRS 16 SR
[pd-7 = = = -

—g-2F —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET
(Restated)

(#=&7|)

441,027 9,307
- 463,898

ZB-BF —T-NF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)

(4 E5)

473,850 60,794

- 463,898

Beginning of the year, #4544
as restated (gE51) 9,673 6,771 23,150 44,716

(Charged)/credited to 7E4R A 1B2EER N

the consolidated (308%) /A

income statement (56) 2,902 11,415 (21,566)
Exchange differences [E ¥ Z=%8 - = = -

441,027 473,205

6,854 (28,520)
(3,258) (3,658)

473,850 524,692

18,213 (47,184)
(3,258) (3,658)

End of the year EREE 9,617 9,673 34,565 23,150

444,623 441,027

488,805 473,850
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EZEMIE (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the AEEFANEEHBEERABCE
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation B) (R — B AVE R 2 AR SH AT
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: (Continued) AT : (4B)
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEBIEEE ¢

Accelerated tax

depreciation Intangible assets Right-of-use assets Total
mEHETE BREE EREEE e
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

SESBF ZFNF SESERF CTONF SBSRF ZTONF SBSRF TR
HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i FET FET FET TET FET TFET FAT

(Restated) (Restated)
(45Z3)) (#ZE5))
Beginning of the year, 44
as originally (REZ3)
presented 52,733 63,635 - 173 392,047 - 444,780 63,808
Impact of adoption ~ FANFH BB
of HKFRS 16 R R
16 272 - - - - - 419,384 - 419,384
Beginning of the year, #1444
as restated (& 5&51) 52,733 63,635 - 173 392,047 419,384 444,780 483,192
Charged/(credited) to 7E4R & B2EER N
the consolidated k& (GEA)
income statement 13,325 (10,902) - (173) (2,976) (23,796) 10,349 (34,871)
Exchange differences [E i =% - = - = (3,208) (3,541) (3,208) (3,541)
End of the year FRER 66,058 52,733 - - 385,863 392,047 451,921 444,780
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Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EZEMIE (&)
Deferred income tax liabilities: (Continued) LL@:EIEE\ g (&)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying ERER I A EE T AR AT IS F a5 Al i
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits iﬂifﬁIVaﬁﬂ/ﬁﬁﬂ*“:“”\fﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘vtﬁﬁmﬁqzm
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March 2020, BEER —E-_TEF=ZRA=+—
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets in respect of SRRV %’% ] IEEE Bt /&5 18 49 457,698,000
losses of approximately HK$457,698,000 (2019: HK$411,784,000). BIL(ZZE—JLF : 411,784,000/ 7T )
Unrecognised tax losses amounting to approximately TR E I B I8 & E - 49202,602,000
HK$202,602,000 (2019: HK$206,763,000) and HK$47,208,000 Bt = & — 1 F : 206,763,000
(2019: HK$40,510,000) will be expired up to year 2037 and 2024 7T ) & 47,208,000 (=T — N5 :
respectively, while the remaining balance can be carried forward 40,510,000 7T ) R R IE & 2 Bl
indefinitely. T FERT_FER R NE
BR A PR B AL o
Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$7,714,000 (2019: RN B A B A b R B B A B BT BiR B
HK$11,395,000) have not been recognised for withholding tax that HN_EENF—A—HEARADERY
would be payable on the undistributed retained profits amounting i M 27,714,000 T( ZF — L& -
to HK$124,696,000 (2019: HK$167,492,000) of the Company’s 11,395,000/ 7T ) E T ) FEHI B - W R
subsidiaries in Mainland China earned after 1 January 2008. Such T 32124,696,0008 (=T — L F -
amounts are not intended to be distributed in the foreseeable future 167,492,000 % 7) BiREFIEEE - B
to the group companies outside of the Mainland China. RN A KR B 4a B A
PRIN:E JEIVNG]
Trade Payables 17 EXENIRE
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: EEEMNREBENRESTAOT
2020 2019
—B-F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
0 — 30 days TH=+H 167,135 217,446
— 60 days =+—=x+A 1,727 278
- 90 days ANT—EhTAH 1,333 344
Over 90 days 8@ N B 1,966 1,642
172,161 219,710
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17 Trade Payables (Continued) 17 EXENERE ()
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the EEEMNREMNRAEBEN T E®
following currencies: & :
2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FEIT
HK$ BIT 128,588 170,117
RMB AR 43,573 49,593
172,161 219,710
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values MR EFHREE - €XEMNERENKR
due to their short maturities. HEAESENEATE -
18 Other Creditors and Accrued Liabilities 18 HttEMAIRERETEHA

Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise accrued
salaries and wages and other provisions. Substantially all of the other
creditors and accrued liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB.
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19 Share Capital 19 RAE
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
share value share value
g 4= H{E ighak - =] [Eif(=]
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FET FA FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of TR EAREE
HK$0.10 each 0.10%7T
Beginning and end FHEF R R
of the year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :
Beginning of the year FHEEER 585,543 58,554 585,543 58,554
Shares issued under RIEAR 0 BT 2l
share option scheme BITHR A (M1EE31)
(Note 31) 161 16 - -
End of the year FRERH 585,704 58,570 585,543 58,554

During the year, 161,000 shares (2019: Nil) of HK$0.10 each were
issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme of the Company. Total
proceeds less expenses amounting to HK$3,601,000 (2019: Nil)
were provided to the Group with working capital.

During the year, the Group purchased 1,686,126 (2019: 570,224) of
its own shares through the trustee of the Share Award Scheme from
the open market. The total amount paid to acquire these shares
was approximately HK$40,631,000 (2019: HK$10,800,000) and
has been deducted from shareholders’ equity. As at 31 March 2020,
such shares were recorded as treasury shares of the Company and
the Group as they were not yet vested.

F£R 161,000 (—FE—hE: 8)F
fREEA0.10B T Z RN IEAR AR 2K
D EARERT 81317 - FTIS BRI L E
B # 53,601,000 T(=F—NF :
) RERASBEIRHRDES -

FAAEEFBABERNEEFEF
HARRFAMES LEE1,686,126%
- N F 5702240 ) E B A K
M- RBEZERNINZ2REHE
4 /40,631,000 (=T — L F
10,800,000 7T ) + E B IR 5 #E 2= R #f
e RM—E-_FEF=A=+—8 Bk
NEAGE  ZEROIEARRARIRAR
SEMETFTRAR -
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20 Reserves

20 f#fE

Share  Shares held
Capital ~ Exchange based  forshare  Statutory
Share  Redemption translation compensation award eserve
premium reserve reserve Capital  Investment reserve scheme #ERE Contributed  Revaluation Retained
-8 e reserve reserve  MROXE  RERMHE (note ) surplus reserve  earnings Total
RHEE RERE fERE B RERE  WHEER  NER (Hiski) RER HERE REEA 48
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$000
747 - 74T FAT FAT FET FEL FET AT FAT FA7 FAT
Balance as at 1 April 2019 R=5-NEBA-R
(as previously reported) AN RIES) 616,811 152,034 31374 2,019 53,719 25311 (133,020) 113 80,696 140204 2335367 3,356,934
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 FRAVE BB
Eflloz7e - - 429 - - - - - - - (ds48)  (085)
Asat 1 April 2019 (as restated)  R=F-NEBA-A
(@=3]) 616,811 152,034 41,668 21,079 53,119 25317 (133,020) 7,213 80,69 140,224 2,090,219 3,116,080
Proceeds from shareissued ~ BE/TRIATEE 3585 - - - - - - - - - - 3585
Fairvalue logs on financia RATRIINARE
asselsatfanaliethough WA EREEN
other comprehensive income A F/EEE - - - - (53,069) - - - - - - (53,069)
Remeasurement of etirement ~ EfEERGEHAR
benefitibiltes and RRERBEER
provision for long
service payments - - - - - - - - - - @m) 2115)
Tansfer tostatutory reserves AT EEEE - - - - - - - 3,885 - = (3,885) =
Employee share award EERAER
scheme - value of itEl- EERHER
employee services - - - - - 23,845 - - - - - 3845
Release of share-based Rivihih e
compensation reserve fo EARhR I
share premium upon exercise  EAKREE
of share options 126 - - - - (726) - - - - - -
Transler upon lapseof share BRI B MR
options - - - - - (555) - - - - 555 -
Vesting of shares of share R ZEHNRAGR
award scheme - - - - - (21,637) 27,630 - - - (5,993) -
Bxchange diferences arisng. ~~ BEEHHERAL
from translation of foreign EiZE
subsidiaries - - (25,293) - - - - - - - - (25,293)
Poftatirbutable toequity ~ AARIRIEEAE AR
holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 73,634 73,634
Purchase of shares BARG - - - - - - (40,631) - - - o (40,631)
Dividends k& - - - - - - - - - - (487,213) (487,213)
Babnceasat 31 March 2000 H=F-%F
ZA=t-RER 621,122 152,034 16,375 1,019 650 26,304 (146,021) 31,158 80,69 140,224 1,664,542 2,608,163
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20 Reserves (Continued)

20 fe#fE (&)

Share  Shares held
Capital Exchange based for share Statutory
Share  Redemption  translation compensation award Teserve
premium Teserve Teserve Capital ~ Investment Teserve scheme iERE  Contrbuted  Revaluation Retained
A b4 fesenve esene  ARORE  RAREEE (notei) surplus fesenve eamings Total
REE  BERE  FEEE  EREE  RERE  MBERE  REZRD (Rizki) EdRR  fMEEE  REEA &g
HS000 HS000 H$000 H$000 H$000 H$000 H$000 HK$000 H$000 H$000 HS000 HK$ 000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT A7 b8 b8 b8 748 AT FET
Balance as at 1 Apri 2018 RE-N\FmA- E
(as previously reported) &E@\W'ﬁﬁﬁ FEE) 616811 152,034 84,334 2,079 47595 47900 (145,053) 28,680 80,69 140,24 2436827 3/
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 RAEEHERS
EH16278 - - (130) - - - - - - - (T (25500
Asat 1 Aprl 2018 (asrestated)  R=F-NEMA-A
(5 616,811 152,034 83,604 21,019 4759 47900 (145,053) 28,680 80,696 140,224 2,212,057 3,285,627
Fairvalue gain on financial assets RATEFIAL D
at fair value through 2EhAZEBAE
other comprehensiveincome ~ AATERA - - - - 6,124 - - - - - - 6,124
Remeasurement of etirement ~ EXfSERAEENAR
benefit iabltes and RRERBERR
provision for long semvice
payments - - - - - - - - - - (12.393) (12.393)
Transfer from statutory reserves  BEZEFEE - - - - - - - (1.407) - = 1407 =
Employee share award ESRpREE
scheme - value of -EERBER
employee services - - - - - (1.209) - - - - - (1,200)
Transfer upon lapse of share ~~ ER iR HAEA
option - - - - - (1,067) - - - - 1,067 -
Vesting of shares of share award - R ZREHERR A 5E
scheme - - - - - (20.247) 2833 - - - (2,586) -
Bchange diferences arisng - BB
from translation of foreign JEHER
subsidiaries - - (41,936) - - - - - - - - 41,936)
Proftattibutable toequity ~ AREREZHA
holders of the Company iR - - - - - - - - - - 569,907 569,907
Purchase of shares BARG - - - - - - (10,800) - - - - (10,800)
Dividends & = - - - = = = = = = (679.240)  (679,240)
Babnceasat 31 March 2019 A=F-N1%E
ZA=T-REH 616811 152,034 41,668 2,079 53,719 25317 (133,020) 22713 80,69 140,24 2,090,219 3,116,080
0) Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies (i) 7|‘ET)@‘:F' BREEREEIEN - &

are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit
to the fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the
companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.

RIZBRARIF R A Z 10% 2Bl
iaﬁﬁi'ﬁi%%ﬁi%ﬁ
RNAFEMEARZ50% Bl - AFE
RESKBERERMERITRAR
I8 25T BB I 1A Bl 2
B WZHEEESKEAERR
NAIFEMERZ 25% KF °
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21 Revenue 21 WA
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of food and beverages HERM NS 7,877,944 8,398,170
Rental income e U A 47,737 50,287
Management and service fee income BB MRS E WA 6,127 7,114
Franchise income BRIREBA 51 457
Sundry income I A 31,238 37,855
7,963,097 8,493,883
22 Other Income and Other (Losses)/Gains, 22 HtWARHEAF(FHE),
Net gl
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Dividend income from listed equity LR EREWA
investments 12,246 11,736
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment REYENNTE (BE) %F
properties (42,400) 19,800
Loss on disposal of other property, HEHMYE - BKE KX EFEE
plant and equipment, net (19,072) (10,588)
Loss on disposal of investment properties HE&ERE Y% 2 E1E - (741)
Impairment loss of property, M - BB MR ERERE
plant and equipment (15,254) (3,529)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets A E 2 BEE1E (40,580) -
Government subsidy (Note a) BIFEB (Fizta) 60,289 1,009
Gain on modification of leases HEFE) 2 5 H 3,480 =
Others EHAh 751 -
(40,540) 17,687

(@) This primarily represents a subsidy of HK$57,240,000 (2019:
Nil) granted by The Government of the Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.
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23

Expenses by Nature 23

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are

BEMHESENER

BREHEXNARITRERNER DT

analysed as follows:

LI

2020 2019
—E-EF ZT-NEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
(Restated)
(#c=E2)
Cost of raw materials and packing R R B 2,258,184 2,334,759
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 408 564
Depreciation expenses (Note 6) TERX (MisEe6)
— property, plant and equipment - M - BE KRB 357,784 341,050
— leasehold and land use rights - DEECRAREEENHEE T
classified as right-of-use assets Ko b {5 FA 4 14,243 14,262
- right-of-use assets — properties —(FRAREE - W3 861,782 848,557
Expenses relating to leases of BN TIERBEENRZ
— short-term leases - GHAHE 22,737 15,606
— variable lease payments not - A EHENRAE T EEREAE
included lease liabilities 49,970 71,093
Exchange losses/(gains), net fE SR &8, CaF) 512 (3,061)
Employee benefit expense 1B B @M= (T eIE ARG

(excluding share-based e (FiisE28)

compensation expenses) (Note 28) 2,672,600 2,668,644
Share-based compensation expenses LARAD 2B (P a) (Pd7E28)

(Note a) (Note 28) 23,845 (1,209)
Auditor’s remuneration IZE A & 4,019 3,827
Electricity, water and gas B8  KERERE 385,717 399,767
Advertising HES 71,871 74,062
(Reversal of loss allowance)/ BRI ARIE (EREE),

loss allowance on trade EE R (MEE13)

receivables (Note 13) (307) 137
Sanitation BRE 124,973 118,246
Repairs & maintenance BERREER 105,177 94,041
Other expenses Hb & A 760,344 731,713

7,713,859 7,712,058
Representing: &k -
Cost of sales HERKA 7,232,445 7,266,605
Administrative expenses 1THE 481,414 445,453
7,713,859 7,712,058
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23 Expenses by Nature (Continued)

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2019, amount included
the reversal of the share-based compensation expenses FE -
previously recognised for the awarded performance shares of
approximately HK$22,560,000. The vesting of such awarded
performance shares were conditional upon attainment
of performance target with reference to the Group’s
performance and the performance target was not achieved.
Therefore, no awarded performance shares were vested.

24 Finance Costs, Net

:

24 BIBEFEHRAR

2% 52

WL =

23 EMEIENEAR ()

@ #HEZZE-—NAF=ZA=+—HL
ZeEBEEL LA
R LB 1R A9 DARR (D S A+t B
& #922,560,0007 T o A B8 42
REBER D AZE
KEMETMRIABREAE
B MRIFBIERENK - At -
WiE SR B SR AR D -

EAREHE

2020 2019

= —TNF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FEL

(Restated)

(FEEZI)

Finance income B U A 16,098 14,803
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEBEMP KA (110,538) (114,189)
Finance costs, net B 7 7 Ak A (94,440) (99,386)

25 Income Tax Expense

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until year
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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25 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 25 FEHEA (&)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income e BRRAHR 2 HIBEE -

statement represents:

2020 2019
—EDEH —E—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(#c=E2)
Current income tax: BNEATRIR
- Hong Kong profits tax - BBNEMN 35,210 93,476
— PRC taxation — FR B R B T 13,072 24,594
Deferred income tax relating TS ERES REEE
to the origination and reversal W R ERIERR IR
of temporary differences (7,864) 12,313
Over provision in prior years BEFERERE (546) (1,927)
39,872 128,456
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25 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 25 FEHEA (&)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the RN E A BBR T AR ) < FLIE B R A IR
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong RBEBZHEMAEZIERTIGE L ER
Kong as follows: AT
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(45 EZl)
Profit before income tax R AR B Al 114,258 700,126
Calculated at a taxation rate EHE16.5%
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) ZT—NF : 16.5%)FTEMTIE 18,853 115,521
Effect of different taxation rates HBER PR E 2 &
in other countries (1,583) 10,761
Income not subject to taxation AT WA (19,919) (14,260)
Expenses not deductible for taxation B b0 E=¢
purposes 27,598 6,862
Reversal of previously recognised R RRTE R L
temporary difference ETRERE 339 6,901
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ g 15,714 5,352
Over provision in prior years BEFEREAE (546) (1,927)
Others EAh, (584) (754)
Taxation charge HEL 39,872 128,456
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26 Dividends 26 RE
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Interim dividend, paid, RIS - BARE AR 197810
of HK19 cents (2019: HK19 cents) —T—RF 1958)
per ordinary share 111,284 111,253
Final dividend, of Nil (2019: HK65 cents) EEE’ﬂH HR
per ordinary share -z J‘IE : 65/aﬂﬂ) - 380,603
111,284 491,856
The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year EERTEBREAFERARE (=ZF
(FY2018/19: HK65 cents per share). An interim dividend of HK19 —N\/—NEE : F65HE) - FR
cents per share (FY2018/19: HK19 cents) was paid during the year. EIREFHRESRIIEWL(ZZE—N

S NEE D 1958() -
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27 Earnings Per Share 27

(@) Basic (a)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Company for share award scheme).

FREN

HR

5 R FI IR A TR B A B
(R IAE N E BT IR (R B35
N FIBARLD SRS BIRE B 2 mAR) 2
BT EORAEH o

2020 2019
i =N
(Restated)
(#EZl)
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIRIERE AR A (F8T)
of the Company (HK$'000) 73,634 569,907
Weighted average number of BTS2 I 8 (T8 )
ordinary shares in issue ('000) 580,095 580,429
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) &RXENm M (BEGET) HK$0.13 % T HK$0.98 & T
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27

(b)
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Earnings Per Share (Continued) 27

Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding

the ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the share

award scheme) with the weighted average number of ordinary

shares deemed to be issued assuming the dilutive impact on the

share options and shares under the share award scheme.

Fhomr (%)

s
BREEENDIRBEESTRITZE
BN FARBFERNE BT EBK
(T EERNRRRERD ZE 8B R A
BB 2 IE P BEL AR MTE
2 R AR AR B e A 2R Rt 81 A Ak
N RBEERE

2020 2019
i —T-NEF
(Restated)
(#EZl)
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIRIERE AR A (FBT)
of the Company (HK$'000) 73,634 569,907
Weighted average number of BTS2 I8 (T8 )
ordinary shares in issue ('000) 580,095 580,429
Adjustment for share award A& ST &l A& (FEAL)
scheme ('000) 1,566 1,291
581,661 581,720
Diluted earnings per share BREERN (BRET)
(HK$ per share) HKS$0.13 78T HK$0.98 7 T

RREE
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28 Employee Benefit Expenses

Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows:

EBERAFEX

FANRERNFESIT

2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and allowances T& - &% KoERh 2,440,191 2,428,235
Discretionary bonuses JEEETEAL 124,572 133,076
Pension costs BERAR A
— Defined contribution plans - ATHAEE 102,886 101,886
— Defined benefit plan (Note 15) - ATEAEE (HE15) 2,164 2,752
— Long service payments (Note 15) - RHRRFS & (BI5E15) 2,787 2,695
Employee benefit expense B E@AIFx<
(excluding share-based (TEFEARG ZHE)
compensation expenses) 2,672,600 2,668,644
Share-based compensation AR D AT B2 (Fd5Ea)
expenses (Note a) 23,845 (1,209)
Employee benefit expenses EEBARAXZ 2,696,445 2,667,435

€)) During the year ended 31 March 2019, amount included

(@ #HEZZ—

FEZER

NE=ZA=+—HIt
BR[O ST R L 88

the reversal of the share-based compensation expenses
previously recognised for the awarded performance shares of
approximately HK$22,560,000. The vesting of such awarded
performance shares were conditional upon attainment
of performance target with reference to the Group’s
performance and the performance target was not achieved.
Therefore, no awarded performance shares were vested.
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29 Benefits and interests of directors 29 EEWNAZNER(KEBEE

(disclosures required by section 383 of BCARRBI) (£622F) 5
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance 3831F (AR (HEEES A
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of @=EHR)RAD) ($622GE)
Information about Benefits of Directors) FEBLTHAPEER)

Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March BE_ZT-_FTF=A=1T—HILFEXN
2020 is set out below: BEEEMeHI AT

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management

of the affairs

of the

Company

orits

subsidiary

Salaries, Share-based  undertaking

allowances Employer's compensation BBES

and contribution benefits  HERALHF

benefits in to pension DRGLAN DENELE

kind Discretionary scheme HeRR SHmiRfte
Fees ¥& - 2K bonuses EXMEAE Sub-total (Notei) EftfRiESf Total
Name of director ESfg ik Bzl FEERA HE 15 it (Fisk)  ER<HE an
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AT FET FET FET FET &L TET FET

Non-executive diectors 33772 %

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BB S04 1,180 - - - 1,180 - - 1,180

Chairman FE
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita i) ~ BEBXL 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Gy ik

Michael 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel ~ FF&E%4 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Independent non-executive BV FHITEE

directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael ~ £5Ei2504 400 - = = 400 = = 400
Mr LiKwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEE%E 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry S35 4 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert  BEZ54 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Executive directors HITEE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEREE

Chief Executive Officer ~ BJEA7TE 50 4,800 1,440 18 6,308 1429 - 1731
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan ERASE 50 2,160 1,560 18 3,788 510 - 4,298
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(a)
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Benefits and interests of directors 29
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March
2019 is set out below:
Salaries,
allowances Employer's
and contribution
benefits in to pension
kind  Discretionary scheme
Fees  Hg2HR bonuses  EERIEIRE
Name of director B3t He BmRY  HEERA SEIE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
T T T T
Non-executive directors #8772 %
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BByt 5E4 1,060 = = =
Chairman B
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, [ i
Michael 180 - - -
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel ~ FE5%4 180 = = =
Independent non-executive  BUHTEE
directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael ~ ZEfR5E4 300 = = =
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEIE %4 300 - - -
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry S0t 54 300 - - -
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert  BRFI%E4 300 = = =
Executive directors HTEZ
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEALE
Chief Executive Officer EEHRITE 50 4,288 5,949 18
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita (i)~ BEBELL(i) 50 5317 302 -
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BEALSE 50 1,992 1375 18

204 Café de Coral Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2019/20

EEMAEZMNER(KER
BC D EMRABI) (£622FE) 58
383k (AR (BWEBEEEF
w=ER)RAD(£622GE) &
EBLTHRAKEER) (8)

%%Mé%@
BE-Z-NF=A=+—ALFEN
S EFHEHIT

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's

other services

in connection

with the

management

of the affairs

of the

Company

orits

subsidiary

Share-based ~ undertaking
compensation ElEs
benefits ~ HERALG

RO SENECE
WemH  SHmiEke

Sub-total (Notel) EftREESRN Total
G (&) sEkeme o

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

1,060 = = 1,060
180 = = 180
180 = = 180
300 = = 300
300 = = 300
300 = = 300
300 = = 300

10,305 1,705 = 12,010

5,669 = = 5,669

3435 598 = 4,033
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
No director waived any emolument during the year.

Notes:

(i) The share-based compensation benefits represent the relevant expenses relating
to each of the directors apart from those relating to performance shares. Benefits
relating to the performance shares will be presented based on the market price of
the shares on the day of vesting.

(ii) Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2019:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
(2019: Nil).

29

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

EENANZMERZ(KEBER
BCRBMERB) (5£622FE)%E
383k (AR (BWEBEEEF
w=ER)RAD(£622GE) &
EBLTHRAKEER) (8)

EEME (&)
FREEEHZYREAHS -

FAE -

(@) AR ST SR RS EER AR
X TEEHEERNAEBNMS - HEH
Bt BREREM MR ERO NGB B HE
275

(ii) BEBXIN T NFHOA—HAARA
??Lﬁﬁ%:ﬂﬁc?%#iﬁﬁ%%

ESRAREER

BEEMEEHERRAQASEMB L

%$ﬁﬁﬁ12ﬁ@%ﬁ%§ﬁi%%
BARSBAN(ZF—NF : 8) -

ESEBERN
FAMERIRARLRERNEEE
Ee(ZT—NF 8-

AENESRBEMBEFE=FX
NHRE
BERESERRRREFREREM
AZEFWAEEELHAR(ZT—N
FE)-
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(e)

(f)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2019: Nil).
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ARELES REESHIE
EERHEEEASRACE
N EERRHMRSZER

FAMENES  ZFEFNXIEHE
LEABBERSXmAZER BERK

HiRH (ZT—NEF: &) -
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29

(9)

O Bl 5 IR bl 5t

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one (2019: three) director whose

29

(9)

EEMAEZMNER(KER
BC D EMRABI) (£622FE) 58
383{# (PEl(BBEEF

=mER)HRAD)(F622GE) &
EBLTHRAKEER) (8)

hE&

=SEF AL
AERAEEARNDER

SEMA LB

12(ZF-NF :38)EF - EMeE

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 29(a). The T 29() c Hpd B (ZE—NEF
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2019: two) individual 2Z) ANTRAFERI B2
during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
HKS '000 HK$000
FET FET
Basic salaries, gratuities and K5 - A& R E 2Rk
other allowances 14,396 7,317
Discretionary bonuses JEE EAEAT 8,776 3,616
Contributions to pension schemes RINEFT B 72 36
Share-based compensation expenses LARR (9 2 A5 Bl 2 2,336 1,652
25,580 12,621

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

4,500,001 /7L 5,000,000 % 7T
5,000,001 % 7% 5,500,000 7T
6,000,001 # 7T % 6,500,000 % 7T
7,000,001 #7C2 7,500,000 /%8 7T
8,000,001 57T % 8,500,000 7T

Bie 2 BRI -

Number of individuals

2020
-

AB
2019

RREE
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29 Benefits and interests of directors 29
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(h) No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss (h)
of office was paid or payable to any director or the five highest paid
individuals during the year.

(i) Senior management’s emoluments by band (i)

The senior management’s emoluments (excluding directors) fell
within the following bands:

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

3,000,001 # 7T % 3,500,000 7% 7T
3,500,001 # 7T % 4,000,000 7 7T
4,500,001 /87T % 5,000,000 /87T
5,000,001 % 7T % 5,500,000 % 7T
6,000,001 # 7T % 6,500,000 7 7T
7,000,001 7# 7T % 7,500,000 7 7T
8,000,001 # 7T % 8,500,000 7 7T

EENAENERE(KEE
BARFMRM) (55622F) 5
383 ‘(2B (WEEEF
@mER) RAD (F622GE) &
FRLMARAKERER) (8)

ENEINEERALRSTMALE
IS R A AR B Y B
BB AT o
SREEAETHMNEE
BREBAR (TREES) 2 HHGE
o

Number of individuals

AR
2020 2019
—s-%F —TNF
- 1

1 1

1 —

1 —
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30 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to

30 LEBEERERME

(a) BBAEFEEEELZFR

net cash generated from operations THER
2020 2019
—EEF —E—NF
(Restated)
(FEEZI)
Profit before income tax Br B A Al 114,258 700,126
Adjustments for: FE
— Finance income - B (16,098) (14,803)
— Finance cost of lease liabilities -HEaBEZHBKA 110,538 114,189
— Depreciation of property, - - BMEREHETE
plant and equipment 357,784 341,050
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - EREEEZINE 861,782 848,557
— Amortisation of right-of-use assets - ERREE -HELTIHR
— leasehold land and land — T A RE 2
use rights 14,243 14,262
— Amortisation of intangible assets - E A A 408 564
— Fair value loss/(gain) on investment - EWEZ ATFEEE CEF)
properties 42,400 (19,800)
— Net loss on disposal of other - HEEMYE - WEERREZREE
property, plant and equipment 19,072 10,588
— Gain on modification of leases - HEB W= (3,480) -
— Net loss on disposal of investment - HEREME L FHE
properties - 741
— Gain on disposal of intangible assets - & EFLEE 2 % F) - (565)
— (Reversal of loss allowance)/ - HEEWERIA (B0 58
loss allowance on trade receivables B EE s (307) 137
— Share-based compensation expenses  — LAR% D i< 23,845 (1,209)
— Dividend income from listed - EERERSWA
investments (12,246) (11,736)
— Impairment loss of property, - M - HEREEOREEE
plant and equipment 15,254 3,529
— Impairment loss on right-of-use - ERREEZRERBE
assets 40,580 -
Operating profit before working MBNE & F BT 2 2 E R
capital changes 1,568,033 1,985,630
Changes in working capital: MENEEE)
— Inventories -FE (19,301) (6,963)
— Prepayments and deposits - AN FRENES 22,817 (11,547)
— Trade and other receivables - EE R H AR (19,362) 20,443
— Trade payables - BEENERE (47,549) 12,232
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities  — HAth fE BRIE L FEET & 27,022 16,502
— Retirement benefit assets and - R RAIEEMKIBRG S BE
provision for long service payments (2,368) (7,413)
Net cash generated from operations EEEEZFER® 1,529,292 2,008,884

RREE
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30 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 30 ZEBRLHKRERME(E)
Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) HFEBREFRERXRANEEY
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ¥ BERRZBREREE
equipment comprise:

2020 2019

—ECEF —E—hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Net book amounts BRTEFE 20,366 15,540
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - WE R&E2FEE

plant and equipment (19,072) (10,588)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE REFBEENR
plant and equipment 1,294 4,952

(©0 In the consolidated statement of cash () HABEHREXRANLERSE
flows, proceeds from disposal of investment YIRS ETE -
properties comprise:

2020 2019

g %3 —T-NEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Net book amounts R FE - 55,100
Loss on disposal of investment HEREME  EE

properties = (741)
Proceeds from disposal of HERE TS

investment properties - 54,359
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(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,

30 mEBRERERMET (E)

d HZERERERANVEEER

proceeds from disposal of intangible assets EEMSHERE
comprise:
2020 2019
3 —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
Net book amounts BRTEFE - 1,577
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEAEE 2 - 565
Proceeds from disposal of L EmR B EFTS
intangible assets - 2,142

RREE
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(e)
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s

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 30 SZREBREFRERMT (&)
Cash Flows (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (e) BZ-ZT_ZF=A=+—H

financing activities for the year ended 31 TFERETBELENEGY
March 2020 Bk
Lease liabilities
HEERE
HK$000
FAETL
As at 1 April 2018 R-—Z—-—N\FWMA—H 2,887,222
Additions NE 753,198
Cash flows: RERE -
— Payment of lease liabilities - HEABNK (941,162)
Finance cost RUE R AN 114,189
Exchange difference IE W =RE (22,318)
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE—hFE=A=+—H 2,791,129
As at 1 April 2019 R-ZE—hEMA—H 2,791,129
Additions NE 697,945
Cash flows: BERE -
— Payment of lease liabilities - HEBERK (935,542)
Finance cost BE R A 110,538
Termination of lease KIFHRE (43,388)
Exchange difference IE W =RE (20,618)
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_TF=AF=+—H 2,600,064
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31

Share Options and Share Award Scheme

Share Options

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 24
September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company may grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Company had granted options to certain employees of the
Group (including executive directors of the Company) pursuant to
the 2003 Scheme. The 2003 Scheme expired on 24 September 2013
and the Group has stopped granting share options under the 2003
Scheme since then.

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing
of a shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012
Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
No share options had been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption up to 31 March 2020.

For options granted under the 2003 Scheme, the exercise price in
relation to each option was determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company, but in any event would not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant, which must be a business day or (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company . The exercisable period and the vesting
period of the options were also determined by the Board of Directors
and the options shall expire at the end of a 5-year period after the
options become exercisable save that such period shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date on which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with the 2003 Scheme.

31

B KRG R RS

fiz 10 HAFE
BEARRR-_ZZ=FNA-+WH
B2 I in BARE ST 21 (12003521 1) » K
AR REGRRIEHRTE - MEER
SEERHROAEARBERAARZE
B o AR E) B2 2003 5HEIR H A% (D B
ETAEEETRE (REARBHIT
EE)2003:T8IER=_E—=F A
“+tHBRIHER - Bt AEBEE
1E3% 2003 51 835 H A% 9 B -

AAGER-_Z——FhA+—Bf@
BRFEABZREN—ERMDEETE
(1201251 81]) - 1R, 2012518] - EF
BAREGRRGEGHRTE  mMEE®
SEEREBROAENRBEAQR LR
B e B20125 IR RE_T=-F
Z—A=Z+—HBALL  YERZAERLY
A AR 1 ERE o

1R 1% 2003 58I H 2 (EAAI R {0 Bt - H
TTEEBRARRESRRE - BEMAE
AT ABLROEHAB(EARSZE)
RRFIRIDET BT RERAN
B2 W (B sk (i) B R o B AT A EAR
S AR RBRPRE LB AT B RE
RFTH 2 PR E K (i) AR R E
B UERER/E - BB 1TES
MEBBMAESRRE  ROBER
AT 2 A A FHimE AT EBR
1% 2003 5T BIRAR (ER I R 2 B 2
AT ERRA
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Share Options and Share Award Scheme 31 RO HER K G B 2
(Continued) (%)
Share Options (Continued) Bz 0 HRfE (48)
As at 31 March 2020, the weighted average fair value of all RZZEZZTF=HA=+—0 "  FIARE
outstanding options granted under the 2003 Scheme was HK$4.51 2003 5T &I B i RITE A AR (0 HARE R
per option, which was determined using the Binomial option pricing MEFHRATFERA ZBERETEERER
model. The significant inputs into the model were weighted average BETABMASIET - ZBEAEANE
share price of HK$22.15 at the grant date, exercise price shown ANERRE L B&NETFHRE22.15
below, volatility of 27%, dividend yield of 3.5%, an expected option BT TXEHIHITEE @ KiE27% -
life of eight years, and an annual risk-free interest rate of 1.9%. MREFE35% - BB TREAF B\ &
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously MeFERRFIE19% - IRBHEES
compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily RERFHIZEEZEMAEARBRE -
share prices over the last three years. ERBEI=FEBERENHR DMt
Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-_TF=A=+—RHILFE
are as follows: N R B EBIFERAT -
Exercise  Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Lapsed the year
BLRH frEsm g EEH B it %X EFEH
HKS
AT
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 22310 255,000 - (161,000) (94,000) -
Z3-3EtAZtNE ZF-—%ZA=t-RAE-3-FEAC1A
255,000 - (161,000) (94,000) -
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31 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 31 & 8 # & IR 17 58 B 5+ &

(Continued) (#&)
Share Options (Continued) Bz 0 HRfE (48)
Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2019 BE_T—NWF=-A=1T—HLHFE
are as follows: N R B S BIFERAT -
Exercise  Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Lapsed the year
oz IR fifefE (2 B fife E5| Fris
HKS
AT
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 22310 492,000 - - (237,000) 255,000

TERETACTAR CR—FZASr-RECRCRE-ASAH

492,000 - - (237,000) 255,000
There were no outstanding exercisable options as at 31 March 2020 RZZEZZTF=A=+—8  BBERK
(2019: 255,000). The related weighted average share price at the ITERR] FITERDEE(ZE—NF -
time of exercise of the options during the year was HK$25.18 (2019: 255,00017) ° FATTHERR ) EAtE 2 1878
Nil) per share. MEFHRERER25.18BT(ZF

—NEF &) o

Share Award Scheme Iz 10 52 st &l
On 27 August 2013, a share award scheme (the “Share Award RZZE—=FNA=-++tH KAAE
Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the ERRE R —IBR (5 RZENET 8] (TR
Board of Directors of the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or DB ETEl ] sk [ZEt8l]) - RIESTT
amended, the Scheme will remain valid and effective for 15 years BUBSERT » %At 2145 B 54y B HA#E 5T
from the date of adoption. THERNERBEIREGRN °
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31 Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year, 1,202,289 (2019: 1,408,274) restricted shares (Note
b) and 3,273,474 (2019: Nil) performance shares (Note ¢) were
granted to selected participants pursuant to the Scheme. Details of
the restricted shares and performance shares awarded under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

31 ROOHERKDRES S
(#&)

IR ip 2 EEt &l (&)
FN1,202289/( = F — h F:
1,408,274 1% ) PR &l 1% A% 12 (Hf 5Eb) &
3273474 (— T — h&F : &) EER
D (MisEc) ERBZTER TLEES
HE - BE_ZT-_TF-A=+—HI1
FE - BREBEZFER OB GRS

FERMFBOT -
Number of shares
it (]
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2019 during during during 2020
Date of grant pershare R=Z-NF theyear  theyear  theyear W=Z=F%  Vesting period
RitiAH BRAYE mE-H ERg ERER FREAM ZA=t-B HEH
HKS
AT
(Note a)
(B3t a)
1/8/2016 248 269,181 - (269,181) - - 31July2017-
31 July 2019 (Note b)
“TtEtA=T-BZ
ZE-NFA=T-H (KD
317712017 236 579,327 - (285,146) (18,030) 276,151  31July2018-
31 July 2020 (Note b)
“E-\FtA=t-HZ
ZZ-2ELA=1-A(Kitb)
317712018 186 1,327,223 - (436,480) (61,927) 828,816  31July2019-
31 July 2021 (Note b)
“Z-NErA=T-HZE
ZEZ-EtA=+-B(HzED)
317712019 24.1 - 1,202,289 (1,059) (69,857) 1,131,373 31July 2020-
31 July 2022 (Note b)
“TCRELA=T-HE
“Z-CEEAS A (MED)
317712019 236 - 3273474 - (124,846) 3,148,628  June 2022 (Note ¢)

—Z-—F7RA (Mo

2,175,731 4,475,763 (991,866)

(274,660) 5,384,968
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31

Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Details of the restricted shares and performance shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 March
2019 are as follows:

31 ROHMERKRGREBE S

(&)

R 1 22 Bt &) ()
RBE-FE—NFZA=+—HILF
- IRERARAD SER T B 0 PR A M AR
1 REFERDFBRRMT -

Number of shares
K #E
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2018 during during during 2019
Date of grant pershare RZZ—/\F the year the year theyear WZZ—SF  Vesting period
it A S BRATE MA—H ERE FRHE ERXH® ZA=t-B 5B
HKS
AT
(Note a)
(W&t a)
15/9/2014 238 1,537,425 - - (1,537,425) - July 2019 (Note d)
“Z-NELA (M d)
317712015 258 204,420 - (201,113) (3,307) - 31July2016-
31 July 2018 (Note b)
T ~EtA=1-RE
ZZ-N\EtA=T—A (D)
317712015 24.6 304,681 - - (304,681) - July 2019 (Note d)
“Z-NELA (M d)
1/8/2016 248 591,929 - (292,951) (29,797) 269,181 31July 2017 -
31 July 2019 (Note b)
“E—tEtA=1-RE
ZE-NEtA=T—A(HED)
1/8/2016 243 600,334 - - (600,334) - July 2019 (Note d)
ZE-AELA (M)
317712017 23.6 980,987 - (321,447) (80,213) 579,327  31July2018-
31 July 2020 (Note b)
2 \§tA=1—RZE
ZZ-REL A=A (MHED)
317712017 238 221,161 - - (221,161) - July 2019 (Note d)
“Z-NELA (M d)
317712018 18.6 - 1408724 - (81,501) 1,327,223 31July 2019 -

31 July 2021 (Note b)
“F-15tA=t-RA%
“E-—E+A=+-B(HiD)

4,440,937 1,408,724 (815,511)

(2,858419) 2,175,731
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Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year, the Group purchased 1,686,126 (2019: 570,224)
of its own shares through the trustee of the Scheme from the
open market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
approximately HK$40,631,000 (2019: HK$10,800,000) and has
been deducted from shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2020. The
shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for this Share
Award Scheme were recorded as treasury shares of the Group. As
at 31 March 2020, there were 5,687,811 treasury shares (2019:
4,993,551) held through the trustee of the Scheme.

Notes:

(a) The fair value of the awarded shares was based on the closing price per share at
the date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the dividends during the vesting
periods as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

(b) The awarded restricted shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33%
of the awarded shares respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of
the grant date and the balance of the remaining awarded shares on the third
anniversary date of the grant date. In case such anniversary date is not a business
date, the date of vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter.
Management has revised its estimates of number of shares that are expected to
vest based on the market vesting conditions.

(e} The awarded performance shares are subject to attainment of performance targets
with reference to the Group’s performance.

(d) The vesting of awarded performance shares were conditional upon attainment
of performance target with reference to the Group’s performance and the
performance target was not achieved. Therefore, no awarded performance shares
were vested. These awarded performance shares were lapsed on 31 March 2019
(Note 28).

(e) During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors
of the Company, participated in the Share Award Scheme.
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B0 HE KRG R RS
(#&)

IR 1p 8 BhEt &l ()
FR - AEEBBZTENZTARA
Mmi5s EEE1,68612601k( =& — N

F 570,224 EBERG - R=ZZ—
%$:ﬂ:+—a'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁz

#8SFEH 540,631,000 L (—E— R
E : 10,800,000 70 ) * B2 B RFE =
IR o A2 Bk bt AR 1) SR ED T &1 i i
BEMAEBHNROEEALAERNE
Tkﬁk% R_E_ZTF=ZA=1+—

AT B X FE AR B 5,687,811
@ﬁﬂ%ﬁ(:éﬁ*hi : 4,993,551 %) °

s

(a) B G A TFERENXH A RS
BREBBHANBRERFEEAR AR
EEAERBRAREZARE

(b) RERBIERORLAIDHRE - ERER
HEFE—ERFARFE_ERAFHDHIH
JB B PR AN 2 33%  FIBRHYEEIR PR 7 RIRA K
HEHEAE=ERAFARES - %HEEIE\E
JELER BRONEERHRAREENT—
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32

(@) Capital commitments

(b)

O Bl 55 R 2= Biil 53

Commitments

T

32 A&¥E

(a) BERRAIE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had the following capital RZZEZTF=A=+—0  A5KEZ
commitments: BN -
2020 2019
—ECIEF —E—hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BB A%
plant and equipment
Authorised and contracted for BHUER B ERY 13,813 69,683
Authorised but not contracted for EHEERERY) 435,527 510,089
449,340 579,772
Committed leases not yet commenced (b) EARBBIAERE
As at 31 March 2020, the total future lease payments for leases RZZE_TF=A=+—H HERE
committed but not yet commenced were payable as follows: Y4B R SR AR & 3k (M s AR B e ) B 5 40
T
2020 2019
ZECEF —E—hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Properties S
Within 1 year —FRNEm 5,937 20,764
After 1 year but within 5 years TEERFRNEMm 20,575 87,997
26,512 108,761

RREE
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33 Financial Guarantees

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had given guarantees totaling
approximately HK$945,000,000 (2019: HK$915,000,000) to
financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries.

The Group's bankers have given guarantee in lieu of deposits
amounting to approximately HK$159,462,000 to the landlords and
utility providers of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2020
(2019: HK$133,353,000).

34 Future Operating Lease Arrangements

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

33

34

B R R

RZBEZZTF=A=+—H  AQFMA
SR BIREEEENB AR 2 RITE
BEEERA $£49945,000,0008 T (=&
— L% : 915,000,000 7¢) °

RZZ_ZTF=A=+—0 ~&£E2
FRBTEMAEERBRARIZEER
NAREHEFREER  URKBES
& A #) /159,462,000 T(—ZF— N
% :133,353,00087T) °

RREEHE 2R H

R-ZE-ZF=ZA=+—H ' ~E£ER
B RE 2 SEHEmMN AR ER Z
R EFIEERENT ¢

2020 2019

HK: 5 ’000 HK$000

FET T

Not later than one year —F R 38,600 41,815
Later than one year and not later FEFRFTANER

than five years 51,120 57,574

89,720 99,389
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35 Related Party Transactions 35 BAMARS
(@) The Group has the following significant (a) FAKXAEEEBEBE T EUT 2
transactions with related party during the BARS :

year:

2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Operating lease rentals paid MRS N2 S EHERS
to a related party:
- Tinway Investments Limited (Note i) - X#EIREGR AR (KiED) 2,400 2,400

Notes: &t -

(i) Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned by Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, (i) REREARATHBEE LT - Rk T
an associate of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, and Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited, EZBMBANR—BEAEFR(BERLE
the trustee of a unit trust of which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny being a beneficiary. FERZ 7 A ) Z X5 AArdley Enterprises
Ms Lo, Mr Chan and Mr Lo are Directors of the Company. (PTC) Limited R #E %5 - B+ REER

BEEHRBARRES -

The above transactions were carried out in accordance with the PR S TR EE AR S RIS
terms of the contracts entered into by the Group and the related BRUEFETT -
party.
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEBAEME
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Salaries and allowances M KB 23,516 23,390
Fees ik 100 150
Discretionary bonuses FEREEEAL 12,952 12,610
Contributions to pension schemes RIKEET SR 126 108
Share-based compensation expense LARR 5 32 A< Bl 2 4,675 4,973
41,369 41,231
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(a)

36 Statement of Financial Position and 36 AARMBEMRRERRHEEE
Reserve Movement of the Company g
Statement of financial position of the (a) ZAXQTEKEAMRRTE
Company
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
= —TNF
=A=+—8 =B =—E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FAETT FETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B ARRKE 331,802 331,802
Amount due from subsidiaries TN NGB Q] 842,218 1,242,815
1,174,020 1,574,617
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekR&FEIER 448 263
448 263
Total assets BEE 1,174,468 1,574,880
EQUITY B RE
Capital and reserves attributable 72 R #EFHE A
to the equity holders FEAG AR A K s
of the Company
Share capital [i&N 58,570 58,554
Share premium 15 = (8 36(b) 621,122 616,811
Shares held for share [ 17 L2 Eh 5T S
award scheme A 2 D 36(b) (146,021) (133,020)
Other reserves H bk 36(b) 272,805 271,878
Retained earnings IRER A A 36(b) 367,675 760,327
Total equity R A 4 4E 1,174,151 1,574,550
LIABILITIES =l
Current liabilities mENEE
Other creditors and E b pE{SERIA & FERT B
accrued liabilities 317 330
Total equity and liabilities [N B EERE 1,174,468 1,574,880
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36 Statement of Financial Position and 36 ZAATMBRRKEFEEE
Reserve Movement of the Company B (%)
(Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARTBFEEEH
Shares
Capital  Share-based heldfor  Contributed
Share  redemption compensation  share award Surplus
premium reserve reserve scheme (note ) Retained
BR LRGN ROREGE BaEs earnings Total
Rt EE BEGE  HHeRE  sEZRG (RizEi) fREEA g
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Balance as at 1 April 2019 RZZ—NENA-BEH 616,811 152,034 25,371 (133,020) 94,467 760,327 1,515,996
Employee share award scheme BB Ri7 %812
- value of employee senvices - EEREER - - 23,845 - - - 23,845
Release of share-based RirfoRABRmbRGD %8
compensation reserve to e RHEARRMEE
share premium Upon exercise
of share options 726 - (726) - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share BRI HMmER
options - - (555) - - 555 -
Proceeds from share isstied TR ZFEH 3,585 - - - - - 3,585
Vesting shares of share award fon ﬁﬁbuﬁwmﬂxf B
scheme - - (21,637) 27,630 - (5,993) -
Purchase of shares AR - - - (40,631) - = (40,631)
Profit attributable toequity AR EREREARBIEER
holders of the Company - - - - - 100,000 100,000
Dividends RE - - - - - (487,214) (487,214)
Balanceasat 31 March 2020  W=E-FE=A=T+-B&#% 621,122 152,034 26,304 (146,021) 94,467 367,675 1,115,581
Balance as at 1 April 2018 RZE-\FMA-BEH 616,811 152,034 47,900 (145,053) 94,467 911,086 1,677,245
Employee share award scheme S R{7 283t
- value of employee senvices - EEREER - - (1,209) = = = (1,209)
Transfer upon lapse of share  ERGBELHMER
options - - (1,067) - - 1,067 -
Vesting shares of share award  FR{3 5B IR (358
scheme - = (20,247) 22833 - (2,586) -
Purchase of shares BARS = - = (10,800) - - (10,800)
Profit attributable toequity ~ AAGRIESE BT
holders of the Company - - - - - 530,000 530,000
Dividends RE = = = = - (679,240) (679,240)
Balanceasat31 March 2019 R=Z-NE=A=t-B&H 616,811 152,034 25371 (133,020) 94,467 760,327 1,515,996

RREE
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36 Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company
(Continued)

(i) Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group reorganisation
made in prior years and represented the difference between the
value of investment in a subsidiary acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereon. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus
is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

224 Café de Coral Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2019/20

36

(b)

ARTFMBRRREHES
B (%)

ADTRBED (8)

EHBRTESASENBREFENE
AMEL  ERMSBIHARBUKRNE
BT ABANBRRKRENEEEAR
AIPTETHRDEENZEME - R
BERERRDE  BEHARAI DR TR
R MO EEENEEDREE K
(il) B & ARy A] 2B B it RN E
BEUREDBTRAMRDEERZ
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Principal Investment Properties

FEREMFR

Description

g

Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on the First Floor,
Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling Mall and Nos. 10-16
Lai Wan Road, Mei Foo Sun Chuen,

Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon

NBEH R ATEINNZEE10-165%

BEERES1-17 R N5 A K C#ip

Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on the Ground Floor,
Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 and 173
Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

AEEE LB 167 - 171 R 1735 RIKAE
47-51 5% BB A E —18 3 R HR E0

2/F, Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 & 173
Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

HREEFILE167 171 1735 MIKFIE
47-51 R ERAE 18

Shop A of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase |, No. 688 Nathan Road
and No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
RERE A IMPUE 688 51k M 3 B 17 65 FRAE AL
£ —HAtth & B &1 A

Shop C of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase |, No. 688 Nathan Road
and No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
RERE A IMPUE 688 51 M 3 B 17 65 SRAE AL
SF—HAME B AR C

Shop A on the Ground Floor, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
BEEREBE18TEERL—EAH

Lot number

i B 4w 5%

New Kowloon Inland Lot

No. 5086

T LBE I ER 5086 57

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZETIHIER 223 57

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
EEMMER 22357

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JUBERIHIER 1262 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JUBERIHIER 1262 5%

Inland Lot No. 8423
I3 ER 8423 5%

Type
BE

Shop
[EE

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
B

RREE

Lease term
A

Medium-term

3

Medium-term

A

Medium-term

5

Medium-term

5

Medium-term

5

Long-term
=5
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS mEBER
For the five years ended 31 March 2020 BE_T-ZF=-A=1T—HILAEFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
it St 23 —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+tF “TRF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAT FAT
(Restated)
(E3)
Revenue WA 7,963,097 8,493,883 8,427,399 7,895,262 7,567,176
Cost of sales SHEMA (7,232,445 (7,266,605  (7,385291)  (6,838,442)  (6,522,504)
Gross profit EF 730,652 1,227,278 1,042,108 1,056,820 1,044,672
Other income and other (losses)/gains, net EALUA K
HibF (B518) /i (40,540) 17,687 (13,706) (23,148) 716
Administrative expenses THER (481,414) (445,453) (458,819) (430,609) (430,039)
Operating profit LBRN 208,698 799,512 569,583 603,063 615,349
Finance (costs)/income, net PR (A /A (94,440) (99,386) 11,661 9,619 12,712
Share of profit of associates FEfGEE R Els A - - - - 22
Profit before income tax Bt A& A 114,258 700,126 581,244 612,682 628,083
Income tax expense FEHER (39,872) (128,456) (121,949) (108,832) (110,223)
Profit for the year RER R 74,386 571,670 459,295 503,850 517,860
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ERER,/ (F8) :
Equity holders of the Company AARIRERAA 73,634 569,907 458,055 503,827 517,982
Non-controlling interests FEREHI M R A 752 1,763 1,240 23 (122)
74,386 571,670 459,295 503,850 517,860
Dividends e 111,284 491,856 679,230 473,875 676,954
Basic earnings per share BRERRH HK$0.13 HK$0.98 HK$0.79 HK$0.87 HK$0.90
Diluted earnings per share SRESRN HK$0.13 HK$0.98 HK$0.79 HK$0.87 HK$0.90
Note:  The Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, retrospectively. The summary for the year fizE: AEBER-ZT—NFHNA—BERRNEBNBR

ended 31 March 2019 has been restated as required.

The summary for the years ended 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 have

not been restated.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION
As at 31 March 2020

e AR RE
R-E-_TF=F=+—H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEF “T-NE ZE-N\§ I S —TNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FET FATL
(Restated)
(&&7)
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HAE 1 & i - - 79,485 80,532 84,598
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERRE 1,608,831 1,532,256 2,020,925 1,943,607 1,729,269
Investment properties RENE 585,600 628,000 663,300 567,700 477,500
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,705,239 2,980,808 S B —
Intangible assets EBVEE 1,421 1,852 4,051 4,621 5,500
Deferred income tax assets ERTREE 66,294 56,729 30,506 26,325 29,433
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESHEE - - 147,978 229,621 179,615
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIAEMZE
other comprehensive income WAZ CREE 101,033 154,102 = = =
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ 3EREITBIFIBERIZS 277,820 307,871 295,657 308,523 275,366
5,346,238 5,661,618 3,241,902 3,160,929 2,781,281
Current assets MEEE
Inventories B 260,626 241,325 234,362 240,154 214,551
Trade and other receivables S5 KA YRR 166,518 165,086 191,466 97,271 87,259
Prepayments and deposits A MRS 60,920 38,099 121,198 116,327 156,459
Current income tax recoverable FER ATk EIF 8 39,743 1,017 3,383 9,816 18,994
Bank deposits with maturity over BR=EAZHAN
three months BITER 1,641 21,865 22,778 22,296 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeLkBRe%EER 345,072 835,537 801,240 790,017 1,186,643
874,520 1,302,929 1,374,427 1,275,881 1,663,906
Total assets BEE 6,220,758 6,964,547 4,616,329 4,436,810 4,445,187
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #AE8ERRE (&)
POSITION (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020 R-E-_ZTFE=A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

o 3.:3 —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+tF “T-RF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&==751)
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable RARIRERE ARG
to the equity holders of the Company B R G
Share capital A 58,570 58,554 58,554 58,518 58,356
Other reserves Hifkte 943,621 1,025,861 1,074,300 992,709 882,303
Retained earnings RERH 1,664,542 2,090,219 2,436,827 2,436,150 2,597,618
2,666,733 3,174,634 3,569,681 3,487,377 3,538,277
Non-controlling interests JErE 4,579 5,220 3,819 3,743 3,720
Total equity e 2,671,312 3,179,854 3,573,500 3,491,120 3,541,997
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EXHBERR 29,410 27,659 33,520 31,964 28,038
Provision for long service payments ARG R 48,778 45,258 34,990 45,525 51,955
Retirement benefit liabilities BAERMAE 10,346 13,459 18,747 22,288 20,762
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,845,279 2,017,541 - - —
1,933,813 2,103,917 87,257 99,777 100,755
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables EXEMNRE 172,161 219,710 207,478 211,109 214,468
Other creditors and accrued liabilities EmEMRIENEAER 675,200 648,178 706,965 609,109 575,433
Current income tax liabilities MEHIEAR 13,487 39,300 41,129 25,695 12,534
Lease liabilities HERE 754,785 773,588 - - -
1,615,633 1,680,776 955,572 845,913 802,435
Total liabilities meE 3,549,446 3,784,693 1,042,829 945,690 903,190
Total equity and liabilities RN e EEE 6,220,758 6,964,547 4,616,329 4,436,810 4,445,187
Note:  The Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, retrospectively. The summary as at 31 March Mzt : AEEER-_Z—NAFNA—BERERNEBHER
2019 have been restated as required. The summary as at 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017 EEA6 BEAR-_ZE—NLE=A=+—B2ZHED
and 31 March 2016 have not been restated. BREEEN R_ZT—\FE=ZA=+—H —ZT—+t
FZA=+—HER=ZZE—R"F=ZA=+—RZHEL
&Y -
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